
 

       
 

 
Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021  Fax: (01684) 272040 

Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk 

11 June 2018 
 

Committee Licensing Sub-Committee (Licensing 
Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005) 

Date Tuesday, 19 June 2018 

Time of Meeting 1:30 pm 

Venue Council Chamber 

 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE ARE REQUESTED TO 
ATTEND 

 

 

 

for Sara J Freckleton 
Borough Solicitor 

 

Agenda 

 

1.  ELECTION OF CHAIR  
   
 To elect a Chair for the ensuing meeting.   
   
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS  
   
 When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by 

the nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to 
the visitors’ car park at the front of the building and await further 
instructions (during office hours staff should proceed to their usual 
assembly point; outside of office hours proceed to the visitors’ car park). 
Please do not re-enter the building unless instructed to do so.  
 
In the event of a fire any person with a disability should be assisted in 
leaving the building.  

 

mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk


 Item Page(s) 

 

 2 

   
3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July 
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare 
any interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to 
which the approved Code applies. 

 

   
4.  APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - WITCOMBE CIDER 

FESTIVAL 
1 - 419 

   
 To determine an application for a premises licence for Witcombe Cider 

Festival, fields adjacent to the M5 motorway, 250m south of Pressmead 
Farm, Brockworth Road, Churchdown, GL3 4RA. 

 

   
 

COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING SUB-COMMITTEE 

Councillors: G F Blackwell, R E Garnham and J Greening  

Reserve: Councillor P N Workman 

 
 
Recording of Meetings  
 
In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded and this may include recording of 
persons seated in the public gallery or speaking at the meeting. Please notify the Democratic 
Services Officer if you have any objections to this practice and the Chair will take reasonable 
steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is complied with.  
 
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, Officers, 
the public and press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or additional lighting will 
not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in advance of the meeting.  
 



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee (Licensing Act 2003 and 
Gambling Act 2005) 

Date of Meeting: 19 June 2018 

Subject: Application for Grant of a Premises Licence: Witcombe 
Cider Festival 

Report of: Peter Tonge, Head of Community Services 

Corporate Lead: Robert Weaver, Deputy Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Cllr J R Mason, Lead Member for Clean and Green 
Environment 

Number of Appendices: 8 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

An application has been received for grant of a premises licence under Section 17 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 in respect of Witcombe Cider Festival. 

Representations have been received from residents and responsible authorities on grounds 
that they believe one of more of the licensing objectives will be compromised if the event goes 
ahead. 

Recommendation: 

That the Sub-Committee determine the application. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Sub-Committee is required, in accordance with Section 18, of the Licensing Act 2003, to 
determine the application taking such steps as it considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

If any party to the hearing were successful in appealing any decision taken by the Sub-
Committee at a Magistrates Court, the licensing authority may be liable to having costs 
awarded against them. 

Legal Implications: 

Decision Making 

Members are required to determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives.  Members must only impose those conditions that are deemed to be necessary and 
proportionate to promote the licensing objectives. 

 

1

Agenda Item 4



Rights of Appeal 

(i) In accordance with the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 5 of the Act, where a licensing 
authority rejects in whole or in part, an application for grant or variation of a premises 
licence, the applicant may appeal against the decision, to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 
days of being notified of the decision. 

(ii) Similarly, where a person who made relevant representations in relation to the 
application contends that the licence ought not to have been granted, or that different or 
additional conditions should have been imposed on the licence, he may appeal against 
the decision to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of being notified of the decision. 

Human Rights 

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the key articles of the European Convention on 
Human Rights into domestic law.  Decisions on licensing matters are actions of a public 
authority and must be compatible with Convention rights.  Consequently Members of the Panel 
must be aware of the rights contained in the Convention (particularly those set out below) 
when making licensing decisions. 

In particular Members should conduct the hearing in a fair and proper manner (Article 6: Right 
to a Fair Trial) and in accordance with the relevant hearing regulations.  Members should also 
consider any decision in light of Article 8: Right to Respect for Private and Family Life, Article 
10: Freedom of Expression, Article 14: Prohibition of Discrimination and Article 1 of the First 
Protocol: Protection of Property. 

Rights under the Human Rights convention can only be breached where it is necessary and 
proportionate to do so. 

Other legal implications are as set out elsewhere in the report. 

Risk Management Implications: 

None 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

The decision of the Sub-Committee and details of rights of appeal will need to be notified to all 
parties.  If the application is granted, a licence will be prepared and issued. 

Environmental Implications:  

Noise pollution, waste and recycling. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) allows applicants to apply for a premises licence or a 
variation of a premises licence at any time. In this case, an application for a new 
premises licence was received on 3 May 2018 from Mr Joseph Pointon in respect of 
Witcombe Cider Festival, Fields Adjacent to the M5 motorway, 250m south of 
Pressmead Farm, Brockworth Road, Churchdown, GL3 4RA. . The application was 
advertised as per the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003. A copy of the Application 
is attached as Appendix 1.  A copy of the Public Notice is attached as Appendix 2.  

1.2 A plan showing the original layout of the site is attached as Appendix 3. This plan has 
been changed slightly following discussions at the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) which 
met on the 14 May and 4 June 2018. The changes will be included in an updated plan 
(Appendix 4). 

 

2



2.0 THE APPLICATION 

2.1 Licensable activities and hours applied for a maximum of three days per year and in 
accordance with the table below.   

Live Music or similar activity 

Amplified and Unamplified 
Music, Outdoor Music Will 
Cease at 23:00hrs 

Friday 09:00 to 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 to 01:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 to 00:01, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Monday 00:00 to 01:00 

Recorded Music or similar 
activity 

Recorded Music Will be Played 
Between Live Music 
Performances. Outdoor Music 
Will Cease at 23:00hrs. 

Friday 09:00 to 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 to 01:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 to 01:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Monday 00:00-01:00 

Performance of dance or similar 
activity  

Friday 09:00 to 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 to 01:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 to 01:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Monday 00:00-01:00 

Late Night refreshment Friday 23:00 to 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 to 02:00, 23:00 
to 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 to 02:00, 23:00 
to 00:00 

Monday 00:00 to 02:00, 23:00 
to 00:00 

Supply of Alcohol Friday 09:00 to 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 to 01:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 to 01:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Monday 00:00-01:00 

3



 

Hours premises open to Public Friday 09:00 to 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 to 02:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 to 02:00, 09:00 
to 00:00 

Monday 00:00 to 02:00 

2.2 Promotion of the Licensing Objectives 

 The application states that the following steps shall be taken to promote the licensing 
objectives (presented as written): 

2.2.1 General 

 

 

A wide range of measures are in place to ensure that the four licensing objectives are 
promoted at this festival.  In addition to the below-listed conditions, many more 
preventative measures are contained within the Event Operating Schedule, Event Safety 
Plan, Risk Assessments, Health & Safety Plan, Sound Management Plan, Safeguarding 
Plan and Traffic Management Plan. 

2.2.2 Core Conditions 

 1. Licensing activities can only take place under the authority of the premises licence 
on a maximum of two occasions each calendar year (that being one event per year, 
plus one contingency weekend that needs to be used in the event of unforeseen 
circumstances in relation to the main event), and cannot be carried out on more than 
three consecutive days on any one occasion, i.e. when the site is open to members 
of the public.  For the avoidance of doubt, this does not include the setting-up and 
taking-down of the event.  

2. All responsible authorities shall be notified at least 28 days before the licensable 
activities can take place under the authority of this premises licence.  

3. In addition to the responsible authorities, all residents who live within a 1/4 mile 
(400 metre) radius shall be given at least 28 days’ notice of the event. 

4. The licensing authority and other responsible authorities shall be afforded full 
access to the site for the purpose of any inspection.  

5. Event road signs shall be provided and erected by the AA (or equivalent provider) in 
the 24-48 hours preceding the event.  In addition, early warning signs (to be placed 
no less than a week before the event) shall also be supplied and erected by the 
provider. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



2.2.3 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 1. Non-alcoholic/low-alcohol drinks will be promoted during the event, especially to  
designated drivers. 

2. SIA-badged security staff and stewards shall be employed to control the whole site.  
Security staff shall carry out searches on entry, and monitor the bars and crowds. 
Any person deemed to be drunk or whose conduct falls below the required standard 
shall be warned by security staff and shall be escorted from the site if necessary. 

3. Between the hours of 09:00 and 20:00 on event days, there shall be no less than 30 
security officers on site. 

 

4. Between the hours of 20:00 and closing-time on event days, the number of security 
officers shall be maintained at a minimum ratio of 1 security officer to 75 patrons.  

5. Security officers shall remain on site (or in the immediate vicinity) until it is fully 
cleared of patrons. Thereafter, an overnight security presence shall be maintained.  

6. A mobile security presence shall be operated.  Between 09:00 and 20:00 mobile 
patrols shall be carried out from time-to-time along Brockworth Road and Court 
Road. Between the hours of 20:00 and closing-time, mobile patrols shall be carried 
out at least twice-per-hour and shall continue until such time as those who have 
attended the festival have dispersed.  

7. A CCTV system shall be installed at the security checkpoint on the site in order to 
record images of patrons attending the event.  Recordings shall be retained for a 
minimum of two weeks and shall be made available to the statutory authorities on 
request in the event of problems occurring.  

8. A number of buses shall be employed to provide a picking-up service to transport 
attendees to the festival site.  

9. Buses shall also be employed to transport patrons away from the festival site at the 
end of each day. A minimum of eight buses shall operate from 21:00 to closing-time 
on Saturday and Sunday evenings. A minimum of four buses shall operate on Friday 
evening from 21:00 to closing-time. 

10. Stewards shall oversee the transport facilities and shall encourage customers 
heading towards the exit to make use of the available buses.  

11. Security staff shall travel on the buses to maintain good order.  

12. In order to encourage a gradual dispersal of patrons, a one-hour drinking-up time 
shall be implemented following closure of the bars, during which time food and 
drinking-water shall remain available. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



2.2.4 Public Safety  

 1. SIA-badged personnel, supported by a team of stewards, shall perform duties 
including crowd management, parking, marshalling traffic on the site, monitoring 
entrances and exits, fire prevention, and generally assisting members of the public. 

2. A first-aid station shall be present on site throughout the event, staffed by medically 
trained staff.  

3. Drinks shall not be served in glass containers.  

4. Searches shall be conducted of patrons entering the site. Attendees shall not be 
permitted to bring weapons, drugs, glassware or alcohol into the festival.  

5. In order to ensure the safe movement of traffic onto and off the site, the following 
arrangements shall be in place:  

a. The licence holder shall produce a Traffic Management Plan for the event and 
shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that vehicles waiting to enter the site do 
not create queues of traffic on Brockworth Road.  

b. ‘SLOW’ signs shall be positioned on Brockworth Road, 200 metres each side of 
the entrances to the site.  

c. Stewards in high-visibility clothing shall be positioned alongside entrances and 
exits when vehicles are moving onto or off the site at all times the festival is in 
operation.  

d. Floodlighting shall be used to illuminate the section of Brockworth Road alongside 
the site, so as to enhance visibility for motorists during the hours of darkness.  

6. A final Event Operating Schedule, Event Safety Plan and Traffic Management Plan 
shall be submitted to the Council and Police at least six weeks in advance of the 
event 

7. The access route for vehicles entering the site shall be clearly marked by means of 
posts and tape. 

8. The organiser shall assess the firmness of all vehicle routes prior to and during the 
festival and will install trackway as necessary to permit emergency vehicles access 
to the main stage area at the rear of the site. 

2.2.5 The Prevention of Public Nuisance  

 1. The festival field shall be protected by the use of heras fencing as necessary, and 
shall be regularly monitored by stewards/security. 

2. A fabric covering shall be attached to the heras fencing, where appropriate, so as to 
provide privacy. 

3. A mobile phone shall be held by the Event Manager or deputy at all times the event 
is open to the public. This mobile shall be kept in working order at all times and the 
number shall be made available in advance to the licensing authority, emergency 
services and residents within a half-mile radius. 

4. Music in the open air shall cease by 23:00 at the latest.  

5. On days when music is taking place outdoors, Music Noise Levels (MNLs) shall be 
monitored at such intervals and from such locations as have been agreed in writing 
with an Environmental Health Officer from Tewkesbury Borough Council.  

6. Control limits set at the mixer position shall be adequate to ensure that a maximum 
MNL of 65dB LAeq (15 minutes) measured at one metre from the façade of noise 
sensitive properties shall be achieved between the hours of 09:00 to 23:00. 

6



 

7. In the case of music taking place indoors on the site, and occurring after 23:00, 
such source sounds shall be virtually not audible or discernible.  ‘Virtually not 
audible or discernible’ shall be interpreted as the noise being barely audible and 
discernible at the façade of any noise-sensitive dwelling and, as a consequence, 
would be inaudible within that dwelling. This will be determined by an Environmental 
Health Officer employed by, or authorised by, the licensing authority.  

8. The premises licence holder will facilitate a follow-up meeting within one month 
following the last day of the event, to which the Parish Council and interested parties 
shall be invited. 

2.2.6 The Protection of Children from Harm 

 1. A safeguarding policy shall be implemented to protect children and vulnerable 
adults.  

2. Under 18’s shall not be permitted entry to (or exit from) the site unless accompanied 
by an adult.  

3. Under 18’s shall be issued with identifiable wristbands. 

4. Parents shall be encouraged to have their mobile number written onto wristbands 
issued to young children, to facilitate children being reunited with their parents 
should they get lost. 

5. The ‘Challenge 25’ scheme shall be adopted, so that any customer attempting to 
purchase alcohol (or drink tokens) who appears to be under the age of 25 shall be 
asked for an accredited photographic proof-of-age (e.g. passport, photo driving 
licence, or a PASS-approved card) and a sale shall not be made unless this 
evidence is produced.  

6. A ‘Lost Child’ point will be provided alongside the First Aid facility.  

7. Any person who attempts to purchase alcohol for under-18’s, or supplies it to under 
18’s, shall be warned by security staff and shall be escorted off the site if necessary. 

8. Marshals and security staff shall be instructed to be on the look-out, during their 
patrols, for any underage persons consuming alcohol, and shall confiscate any 
alcohol from persons under the age of 18.  

9. A wide range of soft drinks shall be on sale at various locations around the site.  

3.0 CONSULTATION 

3.1 Responsible Authorities 

3.1.1 One responsible authority made a representation: Gloucestershire Constabulary.  This 
representation is attached as Appendix 5. 

3.2 Other Persons 

3.2.1 14 valid representations have been received from members of the public; two 
representations support the application and 12 representations object to the application. 
These representations are shown in Appendix 6. 

3.2.2 The 14 Other Persons have been given notice of the hearing in accordance with the 
Licensing Act (Hearings) Regulations 2005.  

 

 

7



4.0 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

4.1 The applicant has submitted additional information over and above that contained in the 
original application, by way of a representation to support the application. This 
information is attached as Appendix 7.  

5.0 LOCAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

5.1 Tewkesbury Borough Council is a licensing authority under this Act and is responsible 
for the licensing of ‘licensable activities’. The licensable activities that are required to be 
licensed under the Act are as follows: 

 the sale by retail of alcohol, 

 the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member 

of the club, 

 the provision of regulated entertainment, and 

 the provision of late night refreshment. 

5.2 The Act is underpinned by four objectives:  

i) the prevention of crime and disorder;  

ii) ii) public safety;  

iii) iii) the prevention of public nuisance; and,  

iv) iv) the protection of children from harm.  

The licensing authority must promote these objectives in carrying out its functions. 

5.3 The Council’s adopted Licensing Policy Statement, attached at Appendix 8, includes 
the following: 

5.3.1 Each objective is of equal importance and the licensing authority’s policy relating to each 
of them is given in this Licensing Policy. These objectives are the only matters to be 
taken into account in determining an application. The licensing authority will consider 
attaching conditions to licences to promote the policy objectives as appropriate, but only 
to achieve the licensing objectives and only if representations are made. 

5.3.2 The objective of the licensing process is for a unified system of regulation to allow the 
sale and supply of alcohol, and the provision of regulated entertainment and late night 
refreshment, to be carried out in a way that ensures public safety but is not to the 
detriment of residents and does not give rise to the loss of amenity. The licensing 
authority’s aim is to facilitate well run and managed premises with licence holders 
displaying sensitivity to the impact of the premises on local residents. To this end, terms 
and conditions attached to the various permissions granted under the Act will be focused 
on matters within the control of the individual licensees and others granted relevant 
permissions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



5.3.3 Licensing law is not a mechanism for the general control of anti-social behaviour by 
individuals once they are beyond the direct control of the individual, club or business 
holding the licence, certificate or permission concerned. As a matter of policy, however, 
the licensing authority expects every holder of a licence, certificate or permission to be 
responsible for minimising the impact of their activities and anti-social behaviour by their 
patrons within the immediate vicinity of their premises. The licensing authority will seek 
to work with all parties to support and promote the licensing objectives. The licensing 
authority will only apply terms and conditions to licences that act to promote and support 
the licensing objectives and are relevant to the individual circumstances of the case. 
Although the licensing authority may use standardised conditions and forms of wording 
to cover commonly arising situations and circumstances, “blanket conditions” will not be 
applied to licenses and specific conditions may be drawn up and applied to meet local 
need and circumstances. In attaching conditions to a licence, the licensing authority may 
seek to attach one or more conditions drawn from the pool of conditions contained in 
Annex D of the Guidance to the ‘Act’. The licensing authority will always seek to ensure 
that any conditions applied to a licence are necessary, proportionate and reasonable. 
Conditions will not be used that duplicate any other legal requirements falling on an 
employer or operator of premises. 

5.3.4 The licensing authority expects that any conditions that are necessary will, in the first 
instance, be identifiable from an applicant’s risk assessment. Risk assessments should 
clearly indicate the measures necessary to be undertaken to support the licensing 
objectives and these measures must be recorded in the operating schedule. There is no 
requirement to submit the risk assessments as part of the application. If conditions are to 
be applied these will only be so applied following a hearing of the Licensing Sub-
Committee and the opportunity to make representations to the Sub-Committee has been 
given to all parties concerned. If the Sub-Committee is satisfied that conditions should be 
applied it may make such reasonable conditions in any form at its discretion.  

5.3.5 Every application considered by the licensing authority will be considered on its own 
merits. The licensing authority will seek to balance the needs of the wider community, 
local community and commercial premises and activities, against the needs of those who 
may be adversely affected by the activities. The views of vocal minorities will not usually 
predominate over the general interests of the community. Where it is necessary to 
depart from the guidance, either in this policy or at any other time, the licensing authority 
will give clear and sound reasons for doing so. 

5.3.6 The four licensing objectives are the only matters to be taken into consideration in 
determining an application. 

5.3.7 Where the Policy refers to issues the licensing authority will expect applicants to address 
in their operating schedule, it also recognises that not all issues are appropriate for all 
sizes of premises. 

5.4 Crime and Disorder 

5.4.1 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning entertainment, 
alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people, can sometimes be a source of 
crime and disorder problems. 

5.4.2 The licensing authority will expect Operating Schedules, where appropriate, to 
satisfactorily address these issues from the design of the premises through to the daily 
operation of the business. 

 

 

9



5.4.3 Applicants are recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Licensing Officers and 
Gloucestershire Police. In addition when planning and preparing Operating Schedules 
applicants are advised to take into account local planning and transport policies, tourism, 
cultural and crime and disorder reduction strategies as appropriate. 

5.4.4 In addition to the requirements for the licensing authority to promote the licensing 
objectives, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1988 to do 
all it can to prevent crime and disorder in the Borough. 

5.5 Public Safety 

5.5.1 The licensing authority will expect Operating Schedules, where appropriate, to 
satisfactorily address these public safety issues. Applicants are encouraged to seek 
advice from the Council’s Licensing Officers and the Fire Safety Section of 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service.  

5.5.2 The Council encourages applicants for premises licences that provide regulated 
entertainment (or any other premises providing a licensable activity where occupant 
capacity may be a public safety issue) to seek advice regarding safe occupancy levels 
from the Fire Safety Section of Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service. 

5.6 Public Nuisance 

5.6.1 Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in the early hours of the 
morning, can sometimes cause a range of nuisances impacting on people living, working 
or sleeping in the vicinity of the premises. 

5.6.2 The licensing authority is keen to protect the amenity of residents and businesses in the 
vicinity of licensed premises. Whether or not residents and businesses are in the vicinity 
of licensed premises will be a matter of fact and degree and will be determined on a 
case by case basis having regard to the likely impact on activities at the licensed 
premises on the residents and businesses concerned. 

6.0 NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

6.1 Statutory guidance has been issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. The 
Sub-Committee must have regard to the guidance when determining this application. 
Below are relevant extracts for the benefit of the Sub-Committee.  

6.2 Licensing Objectives and Aims 

6.2.1 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which 
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.  

The licensing objectives are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm.  

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives, 
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.  

 

 

10



6.2.2 However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These 
are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in licensing work. 
They include: 

 protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and 
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises; 

 giving the Police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively 
manage and Police the night-time economy and take action against those 
premises that are causing problems; 

 recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in 
our local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, 
encouraging innovation and supporting responsible premises; 

 providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local 
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions 
about the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and 

 encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving 
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that 
may affect them.  

6.2.3 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority 
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This 
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this 
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may 
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they 
may depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons. 
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the 
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the 
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.  

6.3 Licence Conditions – General Principles 

6.3.1 Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the 
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as 
“must”, “shall” and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions: 

 must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

 must be precise and enforceable; 

 must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve; 

 should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities 
placed on the employer by other legislation; 

 must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises 
and events concerned; 

 should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated 
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an 
individual case; 

 should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;  

 should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met, (for example, 
whilst beer glasses may be available in toughened glass, wine glasses may not); 

 

 

11



 cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the 
direct management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the 
behaviour of customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter 
or leave; and  

 should be written in a prescriptive format. 

6.4 Each Application on its Own Merits 

6.4.1 Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the 
licensing authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy; for example, if the application falls 
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and 
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the 
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of 
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need 
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be 
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case.  

6.5 Public Nuisance 

6.5.1 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises 
certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing 
objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the 
licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including 
those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 
pollution, noxious smells and litter.  

6.5.2 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however 
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It is 
important to remember that the prevention of public nuisance could therefore include 
low-level nuisance, perhaps affecting a few people living locally, as well as major 
disturbance affecting the whole community. It may also include, in appropriate 
circumstances, the reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of other 
persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public nuisance may 
also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or 
where its effect is prejudicial to health.  

6.5.3 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control the 
levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple measure 
such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or more 
sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker 
mounts. Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should 
be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific premises. Licensing 
authorities should be aware of the need to avoid inappropriate or disproportionate 
measures that could deter events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. 
Noise limiters, for example, are very expensive to purchase and install and are likely to 
be a considerable burden for smaller venues. 

 

 

 

 

12



6.5.4 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the 
area of the premises. But, as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and, when their 
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other 
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and 
additional conditions may be appropriate.  

6.5.5 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions should 
normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, music noise from premises 
usually occurs from mid-evening until either late-evening or early-morning when 
residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. In 
certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise immediately surrounding the premises 
may also prove appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter 
and leave.  

6.5.6 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly 
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant 
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from 
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area and to respect the 
rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.  

6.6 Crime And Disorder  

6.6.1 Licensing authorities should look to the Police as the main source of advice on crime and 
disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership 
(CSP).  

6.6.2 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder. For 
example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the 
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately 
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and 
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for 
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. But 
any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that 
the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are 
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.  

6.6.3 In the context of crime and disorder and public safety, the preservation of order on 
premises may give rise to genuine concerns about the ability of the management team 
with responsibility for the maintenance of order. This may occur, for example, on 
premises where there are very large numbers of people and alcohol is supplied for 
consumption, or in premises where there are public order problems.  

6.6.4 Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors 
should not normally be attached to premises licences. The designated premises 
supervisor is the key person who will usually be responsible for the day to day 
management of the premises by the premises licence holder, including the prevention of 
disorder. A condition of this kind may only be justified as appropriate in rare 
circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with 
particular premises, poor management competency could give rise to issues of crime 
and disorder and public safety.  

 

13



6.6.5 It will normally be the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and 
not the licensing authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are 
competent and appropriately trained. However, licensing authorities must ensure that 
they do not stray outside their powers and duties under the 2003 Act. This is important to 
ensure the portability of the personal licence and the offences set out in the 2003 Act 
and to ensure, for example, that the prevention of disorder is in sharp focus for all 
managers, licence holders and clubs.  

7.0 DECISION 

7.1 The Sub-Committee must have regard to the statutory guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State, the Council’s adopted policy statement, the representations 
made and the evidence it hears when determining this application. In particular, 
the committee must seek to promote the four licensing objectives when 
determining the application. 

7.2 Members should take into consideration only those objections which relate to one 
or more of the licensing objectives, which are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 

Members should disregard objections which do not relate to the licensing 
objectives. 

7.3 The Sub-Committee, having regard to the all of the above, must take such steps 
as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives which can 
include: 

 Granting the application as requested; 

 Modifying the conditions of the licence; or 

 Rejecting all or part of the application. 

7.4 If the application is granted whole or in part, relevant mandatory conditions will be 
included in the premises licence under Section 19 and 19A of the Licensing Act 2003. 

8.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

8.1 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 

9.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES 

9.1 Statutory Guidance under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

10.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

10.1 None 

11.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

11.1 None 

 

14



12.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

12.1 No adverse impacts have been identified 

The Legal Implications section refers to Human Rights implications 

13.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS 

13.1 None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Background Papers: Guidance Issued Under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Tewkesbury Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy  
 
Contact Officer:          Pete Tonge, Head of Community Services                                   

 01684 272259  Peter.Tonge@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:               Appendix 1 -  Full Application & Covering Letter 
                                   Appendix 2 -   Public Notice 
                                     Appendix 3 -  Initial Plan  
                                    Appendix 4 -  Amended Plan – To follow 
                                    Appendix 5 - Representation from Responsible Authority 
                                    Appendix 6 - Representation from Other Persons 
  Appendix 7 - Representation from Applicant 
  Appendix 8 -  Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

15

mailto:Peter.Tonge@tewkesbury.gov.uk


16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



Page 1 of 23 
 

TO THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 

I am an independent Licensing Consultant, and I operate a business named 'Easy Licensing' which is 

based in Cheltenham. 

In June 2013, I retired as a Police Officer, having completed 29 years’ service in two Constabularies, 

this being 9 years with Dorset Police followed by 20 years with the Gloucestershire Constabulary.  

My career was focused on front-line ‘response’ policing, and I dealt with a very wide variety of 

crimes and incidents.   

My licensing expertise was gained in the second half of my service.  In 2000 I was appointed 

‘Divisional Licensing Officer’ for the Cheltenham & Tewkesbury division of the Constabulary.  

In that role, I oversaw all applications connected with 800 licensed premises, monitored crime and 

disorder activity associated with those premises, and worked with Licensees to reduce problems. 

I also exercised a sharp focus on under-age sales, and arranged numerous test-purchasing 

operations to deal with the issue.  

In 2011, I was appointed ‘Licensing Manager’ for Gloucestershire Constabulary, managing a small 

team at HQ and overseeing the applications and activity connected with the 3,000 licensed premises 

across the County’s six Local Authority areas.   In that role I led on all licensing matters for the force, 

carried out regular detailed analysis on crime and disorder levels associated with licensed premises, 

worked in close partnership with a wide range of agencies and organisations, and formulated 

strategies for reducing alcohol problems. 

During those 13 years I was focused wholly on Licensing issues and was involved, firstly, with the 

Licensing Act 1964, and then in the implementation and bedding-down of the Licensing Act 2003. 

I oversaw thousands of applications every year, relating to every type of licensed premises, ranging 

from small community events requiring a simple Temporary Event Notice through to permanent 

licences for Cheltenham Racecourse.  

In short, my long police licensing career was focused entirely on raising standards within the licensed 

trade and reducing associated crime and disorder.  

I have extensive experience of working with Nightclubs, Pubs, Hotels, Restaurants, Off-Licences, 

Supermarkets, Late-Night Takeaways and other types of premises.  I can say that some of the 

licensed premises in Gloucestershire have in the region of 300 Incidents per year, some being of a 

serious nature.  These premises are a heavy drain on police frontline resources.  

Appendix 7

162



Page 2 of 23 
 

WITCOMBE CIDER FESTIVAL 

This festival has been running for 6 consecutive years, so I believe it is important that the Committee 

are supplied with a history of the Witcombe Cider Festival, and transparency regarding the 

Constabulary’s stance toward it over that time.  I believe it may help and inform their deliberations 

regarding the current application.  

Mr Joe Pointon approached me in September 2013 and enquired as to whether I could assist him, as 

a Review was being threatened by the Gloucestershire Constabulary in relation to the festival, 

which took place over just 2 days per year on the August Bank Holiday weekend. 

I was surprised that a Review was being considered, because the level of crime & disorder associated 

with the festival was remarkably low (See Incident Report 2013 - Appendix 1) and the festival music 

did not even continue into night-time hours, so it was unlikely to be a noise nuisance. 

In my long licensing experience, initiating a Review is a serious step and should be used as a last 

resort.  The Revised Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 issued by the Home Office states (at 11.4) 

“the licensing authority must review a licence.... if the police have made an application for summary 

review on the basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.” 

Reviews should only be undertaken when all other options have failed, or the crimes are so serious 

that only a revocation is appropriate. The Police have a wide range of other options available to 

them including Supplying Advice, Agreeing Undertakings, Giving Warnings, Issuing Fixed Penalties, 

Prosecution for Offences, Issuing Closure Notices, and enacting Closure Orders.  These alternative 

methods of dealing with problems are usually successful and are much less costly to the Police, 

Council, and licence holder. 

Mr Pointon and I met with the Police Licensing Manager PC Jaine Simner and I found that a few 

festival neighbours had raised various complaints, which were of a generally minor nature, and 

wanted the festival stopped.  We subsequently met up with these neighbours at Tewkesbury 

Borough Council offices and listened to their concerns.  A number of measures were promised for 

the 2014 festival to address their concerns and improve the event.  (See letter to Kathryn Hill at 

Tewkesbury Borough Council dated 9th January 2014 - Appendix 2)  Mr Pointon offered to submit 

a Minor Variation so that these voluntary measures could be added to the Licence as Conditions. 

Despite Mr Pointon offering these measures, Mr David McFarlane (acting for the Constabulary) 

submitted a Review in February 2014, seeking Revocation.  

163



Page 3 of 23 
 

This application was contested by Mr Pointon, and I would refer the Committee to a statement 

provided by an experienced local frontline Police Officer, PC Lee Thompson (Appendix 3), in which 

he stated that it would be a travesty if the licence was revoked. 

The Hearing concluded on 22nd April 2014.  The Committee dismissed the Police application for 

Revocation, preferring to convert Mr Pointon’s voluntary measures into conditions on the licence. 

(See Decision Notice - Appendix 4)  

I visited the subsequent festival on Saturday 23rd August 2014, as I wanted to check that the festival 

was being run in the best way possible.  I arrived at 1.30pm and remained there until 4.30pm. 

There was a positive atmosphere and everyone seemed to be enjoying the event.  Families were 

present and there was no obvious drunkenness.  I saw absolutely no aggression or disorder. 

My very brief diary notes (which were compiled at the time) record “All running very sweetly.”  

I can produce my diary if required. 

At 10.45pm the same day I returned to the festival to observe the closure procedures and dispersal, 

as this is the time when the risk of problems is normally at its highest.  On my arrival, I found 

that the Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Licensing Manager, Mr Bhavdip Nakum, was already there.  

He had also paid an unannounced visit and we walked round together observing activity and 

discussing aspects of the festival.  We found that the Music on the stage stopped at the required 

time (11pm), crowds were dispersing in an orderly manner, and there was very little evidence of 

drunkenness. 

 Unfortunately, around midnight, a fight erupted at the top of the festival field.  Door supervisors 

immediately intervened and separated the parties involved, however the same individuals started 

fighting again a few minutes later on the pavement immediately outside the gate.  Again the 

doorstaff intervened, this time sending one on his way and holding the other back.  The police 

attended this incident, albeit it had settled down when they arrived a few minutes later.  Mr Nakum 

and I both left the site at half-past-midnight as the site was, by that point, almost empty.  

I was entirely satisfied that the festival was being run responsibly, and conditions on the licence 

were being fully complied with. 

Mr Pointon later assured me that the individual who had started this fight was known to the local 

door supervisors, and that he would be banned from entering all future festivals. This type of action 

is simple but effective, because it sends out a strong message to all his friends and the community 

that bad behaviour will not be tolerated.   

164



Page 4 of 23 
 

The Police confirmed after the festival that there was only that one incident (which we had 

witnessed) requiring direct police involvement, along with just a few other low-level complaints 

from the neighbours.  (See email from PC Simner dated 27/08/14 - Appendix 5) 

In keeping with the condition on his licence, Mr Pointon duly met up with the authorities and 

neighbours at a Feedback meeting on Tuesday 2nd September 2014.  I also attended this meeting. 

Although the festival had gone extremely well, some anxiety still remained on the part of the 

neighbours, as the result of which, Mr Pointon offered a number of measures to address the issues 

raised in order to reduce continuing resident and police concerns. (See Additional Measures 2015 - 

Appendix 6)   

This Feedback meeting concluded at 8.45pm, at which point Mr McFarlane came over to me and 

said that the Constabulary was “still not happy” and he was going to seek another Review.  I replied 

that a Review had only just taken place (4 months earlier) and there were no grounds for another.  

This conversation, although one-to-one, was partially overheard by Mr Pointon and Mr Colin Hoult 

(the Council’s Licensing Officer) who were standing nearby talking, and I related the conversation to 

both of them immediately afterwards. 

The next day, on 3rd September, I received an email from Mr McFarlane regarding the conversation, 

and he continued to threaten a Review.  I produce this email (See email - Appendix 7) along with my 

response, which was copied to the Licensing department at Tewkesbury Borough Council. (See email 

- Appendix 8) 

Mr McFarlane subsequently invited me to a meeting at Police HQ on Monday 22nd September 2014. 

The purpose of this meeting was for us to examine in a little more detail the evidence the police held 

regarding the few festival incidents and discuss the possibility of the festival opening hours being 

changed.  Mr McFarlane wanted the festival to conclude at 8pm. 

Prior to this meeting he requested that I bring Health & Safety Records to the meeting.  (See email 

dated 12th September 2014 - Appendix 9)  In my view, and with my long experience of policing, 

Health & Safety matters are generally well outside the remit of the Constabulary. There had, in fact, 

been no incidents over the previous festival concerning Health & Safety, and no requests for such 

information from relevant Tewkesbury Borough Council officers. 

Following this, Mr Pointon and I were invited to a further meeting at Police HQ by PC Simner. 

This took place on Tuesday 18th November and Mr Pointon offered the additional measures as a 

solemn Undertaking. (See Undertaking dated 18/11/14 - Appendix 10)  

165



Page 5 of 23 
 

In response to this Undertaking, PC Simner sent an email dated 24th November 2014 (Appendix 11).  

The 2015 festival ran extremely smoothly with the extra measures in place and was followed by the 

usual Feedback meeting with residents, council and police.  PC Simner reported that “there had 

been no incidences of crime or disorder” (See paragraph 6.1 on page 4 of Feedback meeting minutes 

- Appendix 12).  This was a remarkable achievement. 

 The 2016 festival also ran very smoothly with very low incident numbers (Feedback meeting 

minutes produced - Appendix 13), but it had, by this point, become so popular with the local 

community that it came close to reaching the permitted capacity on the licence. 

In early 2017, Mr Pointon expressed to me his desire to extend the capacity of the festival licence to 

3,000 patrons on the Saturday and Sunday, and also to include the Friday evening, but capping the 

numbers on the Friday evening to 1,500 people in total.   Given the fact that the festival constantly 

had extremely low levels of crimes and incidents, this seemed to me to be very reasonable.  

The field concerned (being 8.7 acres) and the separate car-parking area could safely accommodate 

many more people without feeling over-crowded.  Mr Pointon had clearly demonstrated his ability 

to manage the event well and keep it tightly under control, but he again planned a number of extra 

preventative measures to accompany an increase in the licence.  

Prior to this application being submitted, I outlined Mr Pointon’s proposals in a letter to all the 

responsible authorities, along with the extra measures that would promote good management 

(See letter dated 24/4/17 - Appendix 14).  However, the police immediately stated they would object 

to any increase in the licence, and did not even want to enter into discussions on the matter (See Mr 

McFarlane’s email dated 25/04/17 - Appendix 15). 

Prior to submitting the application, Mr Pointon also met with the neighbouring residents to discuss 

his plans and outline the extra measures that were designed to ensure they were not detrimentally 

affected. Unfortunately, despite the extra measures, both neighbours stated that they would object. 

The application was duly submitted on 7th June with the following preventative measures offered: 

1. The number of Registered Doorstaff/Security employed will be increased to correspond with 

the increase in capacity.  A minimum ratio of 1 door supervisor per 75 patrons will remain in 

place at all times. This is a high ratio and follows best practice for festival events. 

166



Page 6 of 23 
 

2. The heras fencing between the festival site and the neighbouring properties will be covered 

with fabric screening material, so as to provide a much higher degree of privacy for the 

neighbours and additional sound attenuation. 

3. Transport arrangements will be substantially enhanced in the following manner:   

a. Three double-decker buses and a single-decker will be available on site from 9pm to close 

on Saturday, Sunday and Monday evenings to provide dedicated transport for festival 

visitors.  Two buses will operate from 9pm to close on Friday evening. 

b. The bus fare will be subsidised to encourage use (£2 per person in 2017), and this will be 

payable by either a drinks token (pre-purchased) or cash.  Children (under 18) will travel 

free.  

c. Stewards will oversee the transport facilities. They will encourage customers heading 

towards the exit to make use of the buses.   

d. Doorstaff will travel on the buses to maintain good order.  

e. The buses will service two routes:  Route 1. Brockworth, Hucclecote, to Gloucester City 

Centre Bus Station (to assist with ongoing transport connections as necessary).   

Route 2. Shurdington, Warden Hill, Tivoli, to Cheltenham Town Centre. 

f. In addition, Stagecoach has agreed to monitor demand and provide additional buses at 

peak times on its number 61 service (which serves this route).   

4. A CCTV camera will be installed at the entrance to the site in order to record visual images of 

all those attending the event and signs will be displayed to make attendees aware that CCTV is 

in operation.  This will act as a further deterrent to antisocial behaviour.  Recordings will be 

made available to the statutory authorities in the event of problems. 

5. Temporary signs (notices of consideration) will be attached to the lamp-posts along Painswick 

Road asking patrons to be considerate to residents and keep noise levels low. 

6. The overflow car-park will be utilised and extra stewards deployed to this area to ensure good 

traffic flow is maintained. 

7. Furthermore, as a result of resident feedback from last year’s event, the fairground 

arrangements will be modified to reduce extraneous noise.  In particular, the provision of the 

noisy ‘dodgem cars’ will cease, and the fairground will remain closed on Friday evening. 

167



Page 7 of 23 
 

These substantial measures were designed to reduce the chance of crime, disorder, and public 

nuisance occurring, increase public safety, and provide more privacy for the neighbours.  

In particular, the improved transport arrangements would reduce the number of pedestrians 

walking down Painswick Road and thereby minimise contact between local residents and those 

attending the event.  Bus transport would also ensure that those festival attendees who chose to 

use the service travelled home promptly and safely and were not left hanging around on the streets 

at the end of the evening. 

Mr McFarlane’s anti-festival stance was particularly apparent during the public consultation period 

which followed the submission of the application for an extended licence.  He arranged for PCSO’s to 

canvass residents on the Abbotswood housing estate near the festival site in order to encourage 

objections.  This action stirred things up among the local community and encouraged negativity 

towards the festival, which was unhelpful to say the least.  

At the Hearing on 25th July 2017, the Committee granted the new licence. The Committee allowed 

the Friday evening to be added with total numbers of attendees being capped at 1,500.  They also 

granted most of the requested increase in capacity on Saturday and Sunday.  

The Committee added conditions to the licence based predominantly upon the previous licence 

along with the preventative measures offered by Mr Pointon (as above).  A further condition was 

added requiring professional monitoring of noise levels by an Acoustic Engineer who was accredited 

by the Institute of Acoustics or equivalent body.  Mr Pointon immediately complied with this 

condition by employing Acoustic Consultants Limited from Keynsham, Bristol. (Their comprehensive 

12 page report is attached - Appendix 16).  

The Committee also granted permission for Mr Pointon to install pre-booked yurts on the site, 

however, this was not actually utilised.  Although he had been considering a small camping facility 

for the benefit of customers who lived further away, he decided not to go ahead with that option.  

During the 2017 festival I again carried out inspection visits, during the daytime and at closing-time 

on both the Saturday and Sunday in order to monitor the management and operation of the festival.   

During the daytimes, there was a fun atmosphere and everyone seemed to be in very good spirits 

and enjoying the occasion.  There were considerable numbers of families with children of all ages, 

some making use of the Assault Course provided by the Army and others enjoying the fairground 

rides.  I did not see even one incident of violence or aggression.  I checked the Drinks Marquee 

several times and found that there were only adults within the marquee each time I visited.  

168



Page 8 of 23 
 

There was always at least one door supervisor present in the marquee monitoring the activity, 

sometimes two or three. 

Although there were high numbers of children and teenagers present, I saw no under-age drinking 

anywhere on the site.  Doorstaff and stewards in high-visibility clothing were very evident and were 

spread across the whole site, paying close attention to what was going on, i.e. patrolling, and not 

simply standing around.  

I returned again at closing-time (10.30pm – 1am) on the Saturday, specifically to observe the 

dispersal period.  As mentioned previously, this is the time when the risk of problems is normally at 

its highest.  However, Mr Pointon had implemented a ‘winding-down’ procedure that promoted a 

gradual and more orderly dispersal.  I was very impressed by what I witnessed.  The atmosphere was 

still calm and sociable, as it had been during the daytime.  Door Supervisors were tightly controlling 

the Bar area and observing people as they made their way to the exit.   Two Police Officers were also 

present on the site and were observing activity.  Again, I did not see any disorder and there was very 

little sign of drunkenness.  Festival attendees were not even unsteady on their feet. 

The Bus transport facility (provided by John Dix Travel - See www.johndixtravel.co.uk) was being 

implemented for the first time last year.  Comprehensive transport provision can make a massive 

positive contribution at large events, so I paid particular attention to the way it was operating.   

A large number of people wanted to make use of the Bus service, and there were orderly queues 

under the watchful eye of a door supervisor.  The buses were arriving in quick succession with only a 

few minutes between each, so customers did not have to wait long for a lift home. The buses loaded 

up passengers and a door supervisor was then invited on board to accompany them on their 

journey.  The number of buses needed seemed to have been gauged exactly right, in that the queues 

were exhausted just as each bus filled. It would have been almost impossible to improve on the 

service. 

During my evening inspection on Saturday 26th August, I recorded some short clips of the dispersal 

period and the bus transport arrangements using body-worn CCTV, and I produce a copy of the 

recordings for the Committee to view (Appendix 17).  It shows very clearly that, even at the peak 

times, (i.e. immediately after the Main Stage finished, and when the Bar closed), there was an 

extremely orderly dispersal and a relaxed atmosphere. It shows door supervisors monitoring 

everything closely, and shows the two Police Officers present standing and observing for long 

periods.  Their services were hardly called upon, even at this peak time.   

169

http://www.johndixtravel.co.uk/


Page 9 of 23 
 

The situation on the Sunday was exactly the same when I visited during the day, and again at 

dispersal time, to the extent that I did not bother to record it. 

There was a stark difference between what I witnessed at this festival and what I have seen 

hundreds of times outside nightclubs at closing time.  I would suggest that this is due to nightclub 

patrons being concentrated in the 18 - 25 age range, whereas the festival is an ‘all-age event’ that 

includes children right through to mature people. 

Following the festival, PC Matt Hammond requested the footage from Mr Pointon’s static CCTV 

system for the stated purpose of investigating the few crimes that had taken place.   

Despite the increased capacity, the number of incidents and crimes was, again, extremely low, 

(See incident records - Appendix 20). 

I wish to draw the attention of the Committee, at this point, to the Incident that took place at 

2300hrs on Saturday 26th August.  Door Supervisors were facing aggression from a member of the 

Barstaff who was being escorted off the site for drinking on duty.  The door supervisors requested 

the assistance of one of the Police Officers on site to eject the man. However, the Police Officer 

declined to assist and walked away, leaving the doorstaff to deal with it on their own. 

The police have a legal duty to assist Licensees in such circumstances. Section 143 (4) of the 

Licensing Act 2003 provides that “a police constable must help to expel drunk or disorderly 

individuals from relevant premises, or help to prevent them entering as the case may be, 

if requested to do so by anyone who works at the premises.”  This was an extremely disappointing 

response as well as being a neglect of duty. 

Remarkably, on 25th October 2017, Mr McFarlane then submitted another Review application, 

again seeking Revocation of the Premises Licence (copy of Review attached - Appendix 18).   

Mr Pointon and I were shocked by this application which came ‘out of the blue’, as there had 

been no indication from the Constabulary that they were unhappy at any point during the festival.  

In our view, and in the view of many others including Police Inspector Mark Duncton (Appendix 19) 

the festival had been a resounding success, so a Review of the licence and Revocation would both be 

entirely unjustified.  

I wish to point out that, even in circumstances where a Review is necessary, there are often steps 

that can be taken by a Committee (such as reducing licensing hours or adding conditions) that can 

170



Page 10 of 23 
 

resolve problems and remove concerns.  None were suggested by the police.  They simply sought 

Revocation, which is ‘the final step’ and should never be taken lightly.   

Mr McFarlane made several allegations in his Review application, including a claim that Mr Pointon 

breached his licence conditions by exceeding the capacity on the licence.  The evidence for this was 

based primarily on the fact that police officers had spent several days studying Mr Pointon’s CCTV 

footage and had counted everyone in and out of the Main Entrance.  This was supplemented by a 

few comments from Sgt Claire Morgan regarding the number of people on the site. 

 Mr McFarlane stated (on the 4th page of the Review application), “The current number of festival 

goers permitted under the current licence is 2,250 on each day (with 500 staff and security 

personnel in addition to this).”  However, that statement is wrong and misleading, because he has 

changed the wording that the previous Committee carefully chose at the last Hearing.  The licence 

condition he is referring to (Annex 3 - Public Safety section) actually states, “On Saturday and Sunday 

no more than 2,250 patrons shall be permitted at the event at any one time; additionally total staff 

and performers shall not exceed 500.” 

Mr Pointon informed the Committee, at the last Hearing, that he wanted to promote the festival as 

‘family friendly’ and that there would be various entertainments laid on for children under 18, 

who would be admitted free provided they were accompanied by adults.  As such, they were not 

regarded as ‘patrons’ by the Committee, nor included in the figures mentioned in this condition.  

This is made very clear in the Committee’s Decision Notice (copy attached – Appendix 21), which 

refers to children separately from patrons and staff, and also to ‘an unknown number of children’.  

I wish to point out that Mr McFarlane attended the last Hearing, and would also have been supplied 

with a copy of the Decision Notice at the time, so was well aware of all these facts. 

The Police figures are, therefore, totally inaccurate and spurious, as their head-count included all the 

children and young people (under 18’s) who were not actually ‘patrons’.  The Committee will also 

note that the brief report from Sgt Morgan (included in the Review application) makes it evident 

that she had not been properly briefed prior to her visit.  She was not even sure of the numbers 

permitted on the licence and quotes an inaccurate figure.  She spoke to a door supervisor with a 

clicker at some point, but this was a ‘token gesture’ and not followed through in any way.  She did 

not pursue any concerns or suspicions she may have had, and did not speak to the licence holder Mr 

Pointon. 

171



Page 11 of 23 
 

Furthermore, the Police did not take into account in their calculations customers who exited the 

festival via the rear exit, which led directly to both the car-park and the public footpath to the Cross-

Hands roundabout.  This exit was not covered by any CCTV cameras.  

This exit was permanently staffed by a door supervisor to monitor numbers leaving and turn away 

anyone seeking entry.  It was not used as an entry point for patrons because all the search facilities 

and ticketing were situated at the Main Entrance.  Consequently, anyone who left via this rear exit 

was told that, if they returned, they would have to re-enter by the Main Entrance, where they would 

again be searched and their wristband checked.  When customers left via this exit, the door 

supervisor radioed the numbers through to staff at the Main Entrance so that an accurate count 

could be kept of overall numbers of people on the site.   

The police were well aware of this rear exit, as it had been discussed with SAG members at some 

length during their site visit with me on 3rd August 2017.  Three police officers were present at this 

site visit (PC Matt Hammond, PC Steve Kiernan, and a female officer who was, I believe, Sgt Claire 

Morgan).  

Furthermore, this rear exit was also one of a number of things discussed at the SAG meeting on 

10th August at which Mr McFarlane and Sgt Morgan were both present.  (See minutes of the meeting 

- Appendix 22).  This exit is specifically addressed in paragraph 1.  “second exit (to car park) is for exit 

only and is radio linked to main gate. Anyone leaving this way will have to go down to main entrance 

for readmission.”   

Furthermore, the suggestion is made that police officers had, somehow, been able to separate out 

staff and security personnel simply by viewing the CCTV footage.  Whilst some staff such as door 

supervisors and stewards would have been identifiable by high-visibility clothing or ‘T’ shirts, many 

other staff such as managers, fairground staff, catering staff, stall-holders, entertainers, staging and 

sound system engineers, Rugby for Heroes staff, media staff and others were not in any type of 

uniform.  Also, those staff who did wear high-visibility vests might well have taken them off if they 

left the site temporarily. In reality, it would not have been possible for the Police to identify 

accurately who were staff and performers by simply watching the CCTV footage.  

Mr Pointon had a number of accurate methods in place to keep a track on numbers at the festival.  

Firstly, he knew exactly how many tickets had been sold in advance.  In fact, he had stopped selling 

tickets two weeks in advance because it had ‘sold out’, and he did not want to sell tickets to people 

who would then be refused entry at the gate.  No tickets were sold at the gate. 

172



Page 12 of 23 
 

Secondly, Mr Pointon had installed electronic scanning at the checking-in/reception point in the 

entrance marquee.  Patrons had to show their ticket to Reception staff on entry, and the tickets 

were electronically scanned onto a database.  This tracked exactly how many adult customers had 

come through the gate. (See screen-shot from electronic scanning system - Appendix 23).  

Thirdly, all customers had a wristband fitted by Reception staff before they were allowed in.  

Children and young people under 18 were fitted with wristbands of a different colour, and 

Mr Pointon knew how many wristbands were being issued for adults and children.  Mr Pointon 

visited the Reception desk repeatedly throughout the festival, liaising with staff regarding all issues 

and checking the numbers scanned in. 

This was all in addition to the clickers operated by Mr Simms’ staff who were maintaining a count of 

the overall numbers of people on the site from a Health & Safety/Fire Risk perspective. 

The allegation of a Breach of Condition by exceeding the numbers of patrons on the licence is, 

therefore, entirely wrong.  Mr Pointon went to great lengths to keep a count of numbers at the 

festival and remained within the limits on the licence.  Had the police spoken to Mr Pointon during 

the festival regarding any concern of being over-capacity, I have no doubt that he would have 

advised officers of the numbers permitted on the premises licence (a copy of which was available at 

the festival), and would have shown the officers the methods being used to track numbers of 

patrons and under-18’s, along with figures for overall numbers of people on the site.  

Regarding the wristbands, again the material from Mr McFarlane is misleading.  At no point did 

Mr Pointon run out of patron wristbands as stated.  He did run out of children’s wristbands, because 

numbers of children attending last year was considerably greater than anticipated, and that was to 

be welcomed.  Mr Pointon had ordered 1,000 children’s wristbands for the weekend and these ran 

out during the festival.  However, running out of children’s wristbands was a minor hiccup because 

Mr Pointon simply made use of the leftover Friday night yellow wristbands, which did not cause any 

problem as it allowed staff to continue to identify those under 18 years of age, and staff at the Bar 

were instructed accordingly.  

In relation to the allegation that the number of Door Supervisors was below the required level, 

the police figures were completely wrong, because their calculations were based on the same 

inaccurate numbers as outlined above. The condition regarding doorstaff ratios again relates to 

‘patrons’ and not overall numbers which include staff, security, performers, children and teenagers. 

173



Page 13 of 23 
 

The number of door supervisors at the festival was actually lower than planned, but this was entirely 

due to exceptional and unfortunate circumstances involving an unexpected death of a family 

member, concerning which Mr Simms and Mr Munir provide the full circumstances in their 

statements (Appendix 24 and 25 respectively).  

A nonsensical and false allegation is made that the festival “ran out of both water and beer”.  

Mr Pointon answers this point in his statement. (Appendix 26) 

A very serious allegation has been made by Mr McFarlane of “the widespread use of illegal drugs” 

along with allegations taken from social media of drugs being freely available and being sold on site.  

Drugs are an issue that Mr Pointon takes extremely seriously.  He has always had a ‘zero-tolerance’ 

policy in place regarding illegal drugs, and he has gone to great lengths to make sure that drugs are 

discouraged at the festival.  This stance is most clearly seen in the searching procedures that he 

put in place.  Random searching has actually been carried out at the festival in previous years, but 

Mr Pointon made the decision last year to search everyone (males, females and teenagers), and they 

were searched meticulously, including emptying pockets onto a table, checking inside wallets, 

handbags, other possessions they were carrying (such as cigarette packets, phone cases), bags and 

clothing.   

My wife and I were present for several hours during the daytime and again for a few hours in the 

evening on both the Saturday and the Sunday.  We saw no drugs being sold or offered to anyone.  

If  drugs were present, it was very low profile and not at all obvious.  I again refer the Committee to 

the statement submitted by local Police Inspector Mark Duncton, who was there in an off-duty 

capacity and was sober. He also saw no sign of drugs.  Nor were First Aid staff called upon to deal 

with any incidents involving drugs. 

I wish to remind the committee that there were police officers wandering around on the site for 

substantial periods of time and, apart from one, none refers to witnessing drugs in their reports.  

The only reference made to the presence of drugs actually being detected was by Nigel Davies, who 

states that he smelt cannabis being smoked but he was unable to identify the culprit. 

It is, frankly, outrageous that Mr McFarlane is making such a serious accusation based largely on a 

few Social Media reports.  Such reports are notoriously unreliable, especially given the fact that he 

stirred up antipathy toward the event among local people who live near the site by canvassing 

objections.  It is very likely, in my view, that the media reports he provides are malicious and, even if 

they are not, they have been greatly exaggerated.  They simply do not fit with my observations, nor 

those of Inspector Duncton, Mr Pointon or Mr Simms.   

174



Page 14 of 23 
 

If patrons of the festival witnessed drug-dealing as purported, they could easily have spoken to door 

supervisors or the police officers present and the matter could have been investigated properly and 

suspects could have been searched. (NB. police have powers to search, which doorstaff do not).  

I am also perplexed as to why, if drugs were rife, the police officers present did not take any positive 

action to deal with the issue.  The festival had a fun atmosphere and was not in any way threatening.  

It would have been easy for officers to approach patrons and check whether or not they were 

smoking cannabis or in possession of drugs. A private area for searching suspects (such as the first 

aid tent) could easily have been found by Mr Pointon had the police officers requested it. 

All door supervisors on duty at the event had been instructed to be vigilant for any sign of drugs and 

were told to deal positively with this issue if they saw anything, or if anyone drew their attention to 

drug issues.  I have every confidence that anyone found taking or dealing drugs would have been 

escorted from the site or, alternatively, the police would have been called.  The alleged incidents, 

if they occurred, must have been ‘few and far between’. 

The door supervisors actually identified a well-known drug-dealer and escorted him off the site. (See 

Incident Records - Appendix 20.) 

Mr Pointon is very keen to protect the good reputation of the festival as a family-friendly and drug-

free environment and greatly resents this sort of accusation, which not only casts a slur on the 

festival and him but, again, stirs up antipathy in the local community.   

A further indication of Mr Pointon’s anti-drugs stance is the fact that, if this licence is granted, 

he undertakes to reinforce the anti-drugs message even further by including a ‘sniffer’ dog this year.  

The dog and handler will be able to identify people who have the scent of drugs on them while 

queuing to get in and immediately prior to them being searched.  The dog and handler would be 

provided by Mr Munir’s company Assure Security Limited. (Appendix 24.)   

Mr Pointon also stated that he would be prepared to provide an Amnesty Box for drugs, ensuring it 

is securely guarded by a door supervisor and handed to the police at the conclusion of each day.  

Mr McFarlane was informed of these two additional proposed measures at the recent SAG meeting 

on 14th May, which Mr Gordon Buchanan (EHO) chaired. (Minutes not yet supplied) 

Mr Pointon would also be happy to provide a small dedicated tent where police officers could carry 

out strip-searching of suspects next year if the Constabulary wished to cooperate and provide 

support.   

175



Page 15 of 23 
 

The Committee will probably be aware that it is normal practice for any police officer, fire officer or 

council officer who is carrying out a licensed premises inspection to speak to the Licence Holder, 

especially if they have any concerns about the manner in which premises are being run.   Mr Pointon 

was on site the whole time and his mobile number had been provided in advance to all the 

Responsible Authorities, along with the location of the management office, yet at no point did 

anyone from the Constabulary speak to him regarding concerns of numbers being too high (or any 

other issue).   

On Mr Pointon’s behalf, I had specifically emailed his contact number to Mr McFarlane on 

22nd August (ahead of the festival), along with details of the Acoustic specialist company being 

employed.  (Copy of email - Appendix 27) 

Mr McFarlane alleges in his Review material (Public Nuisance section) that “the Noise volume was 

excessive and above the prescribed limit”.  The Committee will appreciate that Noise Levels are a 

very complex subject (hence the previous Committee’s requirement for Mr Pointon to employ a 

qualified Acoustic Engineer and the provision of a detailed report). 

However, noise issues are not, essentially, a police matter, especially at a pre-planned and licensed 

event such as this festival which had EHO involvement.  The Council’s own Licensing Policy refers to 

this in paragraph 25.5 where it makes it clear that it expects the police to focus on ‘crime and 

disorder’ and for ‘noise nuisance’ to be dealt with by Environmental Health.  In fact Environmental 

Health Officers visited the festival, and met up with Mr Pointon.  They did not express any concern 

that the music was too loud or above the limit. They were later supplied with the Acoustic Engineers 

report and did not raise any concerns with Mr Pointon.  Nor did they join in the Constabulary’s 

application for a Review. 

If the Police Officers on the site had genuine concerns that the music was too loud, they could simply 

have approached Mr Pointon.  I have no doubt that he would have introduced them to the Acoustic 

Engineer on site who could have explained to them the sound levels and monitoring points etc.  

This might have allayed their concerns, but if not, they could have liaised with the Environmental 

Health Officers at the Council. 

Potential problems should always be addressed at the time and not retrospectively, so that issues 

can be examined in detail and, if necessary, immediate action taken to resolve problems or 

concerns. 

176



Page 16 of 23 
 

Mr Peter Tong and Mr Alastair Low (Tewkesbury Borough Council) carried out licensing visits to the 

festival (separately) and had no difficulty getting hold of Mr Pointon.  The SIA Officer, Charlotte 

Haslam also visited the festival and met up with Mr Simms (Head of Security) with no difficulty.   

The police, however, made no effort whatsoever to speak to Mr Pointon about anything during the 

whole weekend, despite the fact that two police officers were wandering around, keeping 

observations on the site each evening from 6pm until the festival ended.  Neither officer made any 

attempt to speak to Mr Pointon, even though they were obviously not busy.  At the conclusion of the 

evening Mr Pointon approached the officers and thanked them for attending.  Neither of them 

raised any concerns with him at that point.  

There was no request from the police to reduce numbers, and no request to shut the entrance and 

stop more customers entering (as one would normally do if premises appear overcrowded).  

There was no request to turn down the Music because it was considered to be too loud, 

and no attempt to liaise with the Acoustic Engineer carrying out the accurate noise monitoring.   

Nor had anyone from the Constabulary asked for a meeting with Mr Pointon after the festival to 

discuss their observations or express concerns, even though both Mr Pointon and I both had contact 

with PC Matt Hammond, who had been allocated the task of collating any incidents from the festival.  

In fact, he complimented Mr Pointon on the fact that the festival had a low number of incidents.  

He stated that there had been far fewer incidents at the festival than they have on any weekend in 

the town and city centres. There had been no large-scale disorder for the police to deal with, and no 

arrests on the site, etc.   

In particular, it should be noted that no-one from the police even attended the regular Feedback 

meeting held on Monday 27th September at Witcombe Cricket Club (to which they had been invited). 

(Feedback minutes attached - Appendix 28) 

I turn now to the current application, which was submitted on Thursday 3rd May 2018.  

Mr McFarlane indicated on Thursday 10th May that the Constabulary will object to this application, 

saying, “I will be at the Hearing” and that there were “some anomalies”.  

I have not yet received the police representation regarding the current licensing application, 

(and this does not have to be served on the Council until 1st June), so I submit this representation 

based on the Review application that was submitted by Mr McFarlane on 25th October 2017 and 

which is referred to above.  I anticipate his objection will be based upon the same allegations.   

177



Page 17 of 23 
 

I wish to stress that Mr Pointon has always been prepared to listen to the police and neighbours’ 

concerns at any point and, over the past 6 years.  He has readily promised and implemented a whole 

range of measures to reduce problems and accommodate the neighbours, even to the point of 

voluntarily dispensing with the popular ‘dodgems’ ride in the fairground due to repetitive and 

annoying announcements over a tannoy.  These are not the actions of an uncaring licence holder.  

Mr Pointon took this action because he had due regard for the neighbours, even though the 

fairground operator was unhappy with him that their dodgems ride was withdrawn. He shows 

consideration to neighbours even though the event takes place on only one-weekend-per-year. 

Mr Pointon is always keen to enhance the reputation of his festival and places a high value on it.  

He employs specialist help when necessary, such as in Health & Safety, Electrical specialists, Noise 

Management, Security, Traffic Management, Waste Management, and Transport. 

In fact, Mr Pointon has gone to extraordinary lengths to ensure that the festival continues to be 

operated in an extremely safe and responsible manner, and has made it clear that he will implement 

further measures in keeping with the new larger licence.  The low levels of crime & disorder, 

low demand on police services, lack of accidents and injuries in previous years, and the growing 

popularity of the festival speak for themselves.  Parents simply do not take their young children to 

events where there is large-scale drunkenness, a threatening atmosphere and open drug-dealing. 

Many of Mr Pointon’s customers return year-after-year and bring their friends. 

Mr Pointon fully implemented the numerous conditions placed on the licence during the 2017 

festival, and it ran extremely smoothly.  The transport provision using buses went particularly well.   

Mr Pointon operates in a professional manner and does not cut corners to save money.  On the 

contrary, he is generous and allocates free space for charity stands and uses the festival to raise a 

large amount of money for a local charity ‘Rugby for Heroes’ (which supports ex-service personnel).   

He has also previously offered free tickets to local charity ‘The National Star Centre’ which cares for 

people with severe disabilities and brain injuries, so they can join in the fun.  Mr Pointon would 

happily provide a dedicated steward to accompany a group such as this to ensure their total safety.   

I have no hesitation is saying that Mr Pointon has proved himself to be a responsible Licence holder. 

In fact, Mr Pointon is among the most responsible of all the Licence Holders I have ever met.  

He understands his responsibilities, takes them seriously, goes well beyond the minimum 

requirements on the licence, listens to and is considerate towards his neighbours, leaves the festival 

fields and surroundings in immaculate condition after each festival, has taken numerous steps to 

178



Page 18 of 23 
 

address police and neighbour concerns, and his promises are followed through even when there is 

considerable financial cost involved.   

In my lengthy time as a Police Licensing experience I came across very few Licensees who would 

consider arranging transport home for their customers. Patrons are normally just left to find their 

own way home.  Mr Pointon is not only arranging transport home, but is arranging transport to and 

from his event. 

Not surprisingly, the Witcombe Cider Festival has proved to be extremely popular with the local 

communities.  The festival originally centred on the wide choice of ciders locally produced, but 

its focus rapidly shifted so that it now focuses primarily on Live Music.  It is renowned for featuring 

some eminent and popular artists, and these have become the main attraction.  However, a wide 

selection of primarily local ciders are still on offer, and this feature provides a quirky distinctiveness 

and distinguishes it from other music festivals in the UK, particularly since traditional and naturally 

flavoured ciders tend to be more popular than beer, for example, with female festival goers.  

Despite the name, this festival is not an Alcohol-led event.  Drinks prices are set at a minimum of 

£4 per pint, and others are considerably higher.  These prices are considerably higher than all local 

Bars. 

This festival has grown in size each year since it started, but is still relatively small in comparison to 

many other music festivals and, significantly, operates predominantly during daytime hours.  

Ticket prices are also considerably less than other festivals, allowing local people to enjoy a popular 

music festival at relatively low cost and without the environmental damage caused by unnecessary 

long-distance travel.  

Despite an increase in capacity granted by the Committee last year, the festival came close to 

reaching its capacity again. This is one of the primary reasons why Mr Pointon has decided to move 

the festival to a much larger site and increase the maximum capacity to 9,999 (although he 

appreciates it may never actually reach the maximum number).  

At the end of 2017, Mr Pointon located a large site at Shurdington that was considerably better than 

the previous site.  Mr Pointon and I attended a site visit and meeting with the land-owner to discuss 

possibilities for relocating the festival from the site at Painswick Road.  However, the Shurdington 

site had some difficulties with access routes and, at the start of 2018 Mr Pointon identified this new 

site at Brockworth Road, which was clearly a better location.  He engaged in negotiations with the 

land-owner, Mr Will Speakman, and has been given the opportunity to hold the festival there. 

179



Page 19 of 23 
 

The site consists of two large flat and level fields running between the M5 Motorway and 

Brockworth Road, Churchdown. The fields are situated in an open rural area which has very few 

residents nearby.  The nearest property (Pressmead Farm) is 550 metres from the intended Main 

Stage position and there is also a coppice sandwiched between that will absorb some of the sound.   

The field closest to the motorway would be used as the main festival field and the Main Stage would 

be located towards the western side of this field with loudspeakers projecting noise in an easterly 

direction across open farmland which stretches for miles.  This field has a dense 1.5 m high hedge 

and barbed wire around its perimeter, which would help keep intruders and gate-crashers out, 

and would keep festival attendees in.  Metal Heras fencing would be used to supplement any 

sections of the perimeter that require bolstering.  Behind the stage, Mr Pointon would install 

2 metre high Heras fencing to keep festival-goers forward of the stage.  

Raised viewing platforms would be implemented at the side of the Main Stage for the exclusive use 

of door supervisors, so that crowd activity can be closely monitored.  Any person seen throwing 

any objects in the crowd will be escorted off the site immediately and will be banned 

from attending future festivals.  Warning signs will also be displayed to help deter such irresponsible 

behaviour.  Warnings will also be given in advertising and with ticket information.   

The second field (nearest Brockworth Road) would be used as a welcoming area along with Bus-

loading facilities, and Taxi drop-off point.  An Emergency RV point would also be provided in this 

area.  Again, this field has a dense 1.5 m high hedge and barbed wire around its perimeter. 

This year, Mr Pointon would extend the Bus provision considerably.  Mr Dix (Mr Pointon’s transport 

provider) would provide 10 buses and would transport festival attendees to and from the festival.  

Routes are being planned to collect customers at various pick-up points in the morning from around 

10am, as well as taking them home in the evening from 9pm onwards.  Furthermore, although Mr 

Dix and Mr Pointon made an accurate assessment last year of the number of Buses that were 

needed, Mr Dix has offered to have additional vehicles on standby if they find that demand is 

exceeding the available buses.  Mr Dix would also have his own (additional) set of door supervisors 

to provide security on the Buses, so that his activities do not impinge on security management on 

the main festival site.  Buses will cost 2 drinks-tokens per journey (tokens cost £2 each), although 

children under-18 will travel free.  The use of Buses will be actively promoted on the festival website 

and Bus tickets will also be pre-sold with festival tickets.  

A further very large (third) field next door to the site (on the southern side), which is also owned by 

Mr Speakman, would be used as a car-park with a capacity of around 2,418 cars. There is a gateway 

180



Page 20 of 23 
 

that leads between these two fields so that people parking their cars can walk to and from the 

welcome field without going near the road. Beyond that car-park field is another very large field 

which would also be used for car-parking if needed. This field would accommodate 2,949 cars.  

The total number of parking spaces available would be well beyond that which could be expected, 

even if the festival reached full capacity. 

Trackway will be installed as necessary in the car-park field to prevent mud getting onto the highway 

in the event of rain.  Trackway will also be installed to provide a Bus turning-circle and Taxi drop-off 

point in the welcome field.  There will also be trackway running down the south side of the welcome 

field and into the festival field for the use of emergency vehicles. 

For the last few years, Mr Pointon has employed a specialist Traffic Management company 

‘Link Highway Services’ to provide and erect road signs, and provide and install the temporary traffic 

lights.  http://www.linkhs.co.uk/traffic-management .  This year, he intends to employ them to also 

manage the Car-Park, so that this element does not become a distraction for either himself or 

Mr Simms. (Mr McFarlane is aware of this via the SAG meeting). 

 Cars will be charged £10 per day to park at the event, so there will be a financial incentive to use the 

Buses unless cars are carrying at least one passenger.  

I have visited the site on a number of occasions since it was identified and consider it to be perfect 

for holding a music festival.  In my view, it would be extremely hard to locate a better site.   

Mr Pointon has already had discussions with the new neighbours at Pressmead Farm and Dean 

Farm.  They are not particularly close to the site and have no objection to a festival taking place 

once-per-year. (See Mr Hopkins statement attached - Appendix 29.) 

Prior to submitting this application, Mr Pointon and I carried out a site visit with Tewkesbury 

Borough Council’s Environmental Health Manager Mr Gordon Buchanan on 11th April.  He has 

considerable experience involving large and small festivals, and stated that this site is very suitable 

for use as a festival site. 

Two of the main objections from the Constabulary in the past, have been the fact that the festival at 

Painswick Road was located on an ‘A’ Road and that there were residents living in close proximity.  

These issues have been raised repeatedly and were raised again in the Review application.   

Both these objections are dispensed with on this new site, as Brockworth Road is an unclassified 

road, being neither an ‘A’ road nor a ‘B’ road and, as such, it carries relatively little traffic. The speed 

181

http://www.linkhs.co.uk/traffic-management


Page 21 of 23 
 

limit on this road is 50 mph, but drivers would be warned to slow down on the approach by the use 

of multiple road signs in both directions. As at previous festivals, ‘Early-warning’ signs and ‘Slow’ 

signs would be erected in Brockworth Road by a contractor employed by Mr Pointon.   

In accordance with advice supplied by the Police Road Safety Officer (David Collicott) and Highways 

(David Pritchett), Mr Pointon also plans to install temporary traffic lights to allow vehicles to exit the 

festival site safely.  This system worked extremely well in previous years. 

Unfortunately, there is no pavement along Brockworth Road; however there is a grass verge 

alongside the road, which pedestrians can use as a walkway.  Mr Pointon would arrange for the long 

grass and weeds to be cut back along considerable lengths of Brockworth Road, although, as the 

distance from the festival site to the nearest residential area is considerable and, given that buses 

are available, it is anticipated that the numbers of people walking to and from the event would be 

relatively low. 

A detailed Road Safety Plan would be submitted, as usual, and approved by the Police Road Safety 

Officer (David Collicott) and Highways (David Pritchett), with whom Mr Pointon and I have already 

had a meeting.   

Another concern on the previous site related to there being only one entrance to the festival field, 

which had to be shared by Buses and pedestrians (with barriers placed to separate the two).  

This new site has two gateways, so that separate entrances can be allocated to vehicles and 

pedestrians, and there is a separate (third) entrance that leads to the car-parking fields. There is also 

a fourth (emergency) exit from the car-park field at the southern end. 

There are Public Footpaths running across the proposed festival site and through Pressmead Farm, 

but the County Council officers responsible for these have already agreed temporary closures for 

that weekend. 

Full Risk Assessments have already been carried out on the new site by Mr Dewi Scourfield 

(the Health & Safety specialist employed by Mr Pointon).  The maximum capacity of the festival field 

alone for the purposes of a Fire Risk Assessment have been calculated at 60, 500 which is, of course, 

well in excess of the numbers that will be permitted access.   There are wide emergency exits that 

lead from the festival field into the adjacent fields on both sides of the festival field.  These exits 

would allow swift escape in the event of a major emergency. The Fire & Rescue Officer overseeing 

this application (Mr Kevin Saturley) has told me that he considers the event as ‘Low risk’. 

182



Page 22 of 23 
 

There are high-voltage electricity cables running across the welcome field, and enquiries have been 

made with Western Power regarding these.  They have measured the height and they are above the 

legal requirement to allow high vehicles to pass under, however, as a result of this enquiry, Western 

Power have decided to tighten the cable to reduce sag and create more clearance, or will possibly 

relocate the cables underground in keeping with their long-term improvement policies.    

If the Committee has any doubt about the suitability of this site, I would encourage the Committee 

to carry out a site visit.  The scale and suitability of the site and the distances from the nearest 

dwellings are not particularly apparent when viewing it on a plan. 

Mr Pointon engaged fully with the Safety Advisory Group last year to discuss the festival’s finer 

details, and is doing so again this year. 

Feedback from interested parties and the statutory authorities has been taken into consideration 

each year and refinements have been made year-on-year to ensure continuous improvement.  

This process will remain, as Mr Pointon is keen to enhance the reputation of the festival and uphold 

his own reputation as a responsible licence holder. 

It is regrettable that the considerable resources the police have invested into this event have all 

been in a negative context.  Had those policing resources been used to support the festival and 

engage positively with patrons, staff and children, it would have been much more productive.   

In addition to a search tent, Mr Pointon would still be willing to provide the Constabulary with free 

stand space for a feature such as a Crime Prevention display, Road Safety display, or anything else 

that is appropriate for engaging with a mixed-age audience. 

The grant of this licence is very unlikely to result in a significant increase in crime and disorder, 

due, essentially, to the high level of security staff that will be present, coupled with the history of 

good management and the upgraded transport provision.  

Gradual dispersal from the festival has been successfully achieved by allowing the Bar to remain 

open for a further period after the Main Stage ends, with low-level music playing inside the 

marquee. 

Food Stands have remained available until the end of the event and have been heavily used after the 

Main Stage entertainment has concluded. Toilets also remain available.  Nevertheless, the whole site 

has been emptied within an hour of the Bar closing. 

183



Page 23 of 23 
 

If the total capacity were ever to reach 9,999 the minimum number of door supervisors provided 

would be 134. On top of that, there would be in the region of 60 stewards.  Furthermore, the 

continual tension that existed between nearby residents and the festival has now gone and is very 

unlikely to reappear due to the larger distances involved.   

Mr Pointon is not seeking to establish any camping facility for patrons on this new site.  

However, there will be an overnight security presence on the site (as previous years) to protect all 

the valuable equipment and there is a possibility that a few staff may choose to remain on the site 

overnight (e.g. in their vehicle) to give additional protection to their own equipment. 

Plans for this new enlarged festival have been discussed with the Brockworth Parish Council (in 

whose area the new site is located), and they support the application. 

I respectfully ask the Committee to grant the licence exactly as applied for, and in keeping with 

paragraph 5.3 of the Council’s Licensing Policy which states that “The Licensing Authority will aim to 

carry out its licensing functions in a way that promotes tourism, increases leisure and culture 

provision, and encourages economic development within the borough.” 

 

Andrew Cook   
  
Licensing Consultant on behalf of Mr Joseph Pointon 

184



 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Incident Report 2013 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

185



 

Saturday 24th August 2013 Drug Search 7.22pm 

Male was spotted with white powder around his nostril.  According he was  searched for 
Class A.  Nothing found. Male free to go on site. 

Saturday 24th August 2013 Eviction  

Called to an incident where a male had been stalking his ex girlfriend.  He had managed 
to gain entry on site.  He was asked to leave of his own accord. Second call about the 
same male back on site.  We ejected the man from site for second time. The male was 
heavily intoxicated so we took the keys to his vehicle and told to leave his vehicle until 
9am because he had been drinking.  He returned the next day to collect his keys and 
vehicle.  Van registration V128 GAM.  

Saturday 24th August 2013 

21.44 Police called to arrest a male being violent and threatening.  He made threats to 
stab, shoot and set on fire all Security personnel.  He was subsequently arrested and taken 
off site.  Police will attend site the next morning to take statements. Police Incident Number 
472/24/8 

Saturday 24th August 2013 

21.26  Two lads play fighting. Security split the two males up and one then tried to carry on 
with staff.  He was restrained by Keith and myself.  In this struggle his partner tried to 
intervene and lost her wedding ring. 

 

Sunday 25th August 2013 

06.30  Man entered site through the hedges claiming he was searching for his phone.  
Nothing was found to be stolen or tampered with.  Man escorted from site. 

7.30AM Neighbour came out and thanked us for a good job done.  He said he 
would be telling the Council how pleased he is with the Security. 

Sunday 25th August 2013 - Arrival time of ambulance 15.52  Dan Bee was stung by a wasp.  
He has an allergy to bee stings.  An ambulance was called to check him over and it was 
decided to take him to GRH for observation at 16.14. 

Sunday 25th August  2013. 22.30  Drunken male leaving site and started walking home.  He 
passed a neighbouring house and thought it was his and tried to gain entry via the back 
door.  I attended and escorted him off the property.  No raised voices or hands on.  The 
male left quietly and walked to the bus stop. 

186



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 

Letter to Kathryn Hill 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

187



Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
Kathryn Hill 
Environmental Health & Licensing, 
Tewkesbury Borough Council, 
Gloucester Road, 
Tewkesbury, 
GL20 5TT 

9th January 2014 
 
 
Dear Kathryn, 
 

Subject: Witcombe Cider Festival 
 
Following our meeting in November, I am writing to thank you for hosting the meeting 
at your offices so that Joe Pointon and I could hear the residents and police concerns 
‘in person’ and be given the opportunity to address them prior to this year’s festival.  
We are grateful to all who attended, and we felt it was a very worthwhile meeting.  
Some good suggestions were made. 

Although I have not yet received minutes of the meeting from you, I think it would be 
fair to say that the main concerns raised at the meeting (along with earlier written 
correspondence) were incidents of drunken anti-social behaviour (especially at closing 
time and overnight), inadequate fencing, urinating in public, road safety concerns and 
litter. 

I am pleased to say that, since our meeting, Joe Pointon has made considerable 
progress on measures designed to deal with all these concerns, and we are confident 
that, if the proposals below can be implemented, the problems experienced last year 
will not be repeated this year. 

Proposals: 

1. No overnight camping will take place on the festival site this year.  This will 
mean that there will be no campers bringing alcohol onto the site by car with 
the intention of drinking it in the campsite prior to entering the arena or 
drinking it overnight.  This will help reduce drunkenness.  Removing the 
campsite will also remove the ‘campfire’ element and eliminate overnight 
disturbance.   

188



Page 2 of 4 

 

As musical entertainment finishes at 2300hours, the whole site can be empty 
and closed down by Midnight on both days, ensuring that the residents are not 
disturbed by any overnight activity.  I would like to add that a minimal but 
reassuring security presence will remain on the site overnight anyway, to 
protect the equipment.  

2.  Mesh Fencing will be provided onsite, as requested by the residents.   
This fencing will be erected in the arena field a considerable distance from the 
perimeters of the gardens so that a large sterile area is created.  This will 
protect areas adjacent to neighbouring properties from intruders, and will also 
deter festival attendees from coming into contact with or annoying residents. 

3. Additional Portaloos will be provided and will be located adjacent to the exit 
in order to encourage their use by attendees as they leave the event. 

4. Additional Rubbish Bins will be provided and located adjacent to the exit 
in order to encourage attendees to deposit their litter responsibly as they 
leave. 

5. Stewarding and doorstaff deployed at the event will be operating to a higher 
standard than last year, so as to address specific issues raised at the meeting.  
In particular, at closing time, there will be a constant patrol of staff (minimum 
of two) along the pavement that runs past the neighbours’ homes, so that 
these staff can intervene promptly in the event that any person who has 
attended the event attempts to carry out antisocial activity such as littering, 
urinating, climbing on hedges etc.  These staff will wear high-visibility clothing 
and will encourage pedestrians to remain on the pavement and not walk in the 
road, so that risk of a road traffic collision is reduced.  Doorstaff will also 
undertake more rigorous searching of customers as they enter the event in 
order to prevent customers bringing in their own alcohol and entry will be 
refused to anyone who arrives in a drunken state. 

6. Staff engaged at the Bar will be briefed to pay greater attention to the state 
of sobriety of customers seeking to purchase alcoholic drinks.  Barstaff will be 
instructed to decline service where they have concerns.  Furthermore, if this 
occurs, they will be instructed to summon doorstaff who will ensure the 
customer concerned moves away from the Bar area and, if appropriate, is 
asked to leave the site.  If necessary, drunk or troublesome customers will be 
escorted off the site by doorstaff. 

189



Page 3 of 4 

 

7. Additional and larger road-signs will be placed out on Painswick Road on the 
approach to the site (from both directions).  These will be placed out well in 
advance so they provide motorists with adequate early-warning of the event.  
This will encourage drivers to pay particular attention and slow down to an 
appropriate speed, improving road safety. 

8. Stewards wearing high-visibility clothing will position themselves on the 
pavement outside the car-park exit at closing-time so they are visible to 
approaching motorists and to help attendees leave safely. This will help raise 
road safety further. 

9. Additional recommendations. It is suggested that, as discussed at the meeting: 

a. The main pedestrian entrance/exit to the festival is moved away from 
the public footpath running immediately alongside Mr & Mrs Oakley’s 
home, and that the gated field entrance is used instead.  This field 
entrance is 75 metres away and will remove the necessity for attendees 
to have close proximity to Mr & Mrs Oakley’s property.  The new 
entrance would, however, still retain a distance of 145 metres from Mr 
Roberts’ property, and doorstaff will be specifically instructed to remain 
in the immediate vicinity of Mr Roberts’ and Mrs Gover’s homes when 
the event finishes, as this is the direction in which most local attendees 
will inevitably walk. 

b. It is suggested that the pedestrian link between the car-parking area to 
the arena (which runs alongside the furthest side of the field some 25 
metres from the rear of Mr& Mrs Oakley’s garden boundary) is 
maintained, so that attendees have no reason to venture any closer to 
their home.  If this suggestion is accepted, Mr Pointon will make 
application to the County Council for the public footpath to be 
temporarily closed so as to provide an additional buffer.  Should this 
closure order be granted, the footpath will be clearly fenced off so as to 
deter access.   

c. With the agreement of residents, event staff patrolling Painswick Road 
will place cones across their drives to deter motorists from using their 
drives for turning around. 

d. Entertainment for children is being increased, so that the whole event 
takes on a more family-friendly atmosphere. 

 

190



Page 4 of 4 

 

It is suggested that, if these proposals are acceptable to the residents, police and 
council, an application is made shortly in order to modify the Licence (Plan) by Minor 
Variation. 

I look forward to your reply when you have had the opportunity to consider the above 
and discuss with all those concerned. 

Yours sincerely, 

Andy Cook 
Licensing Consultant 
 
07565 969398 
andy@easylicensing.co.uk 

191



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 

Statement of PC Lee Thompson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

192



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

L S Thompson 
 

15th March 2014 
 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
 
My name is Lee Thompson, and I am currently employed by the Gloucestershire 
Constabulary as a serving police officer.  I have over 10 years service, all of this as a 
front-line response officer. 
 
Prior to joining the Constabulary, I served 22 years in the British Army, concluding 
my career as a Sergeant. 
 
In the past, I have carried out duties as a steward at several music concerts in various 
countries around Europe.  More recently I have acted as a steward for Gloucester 
Rugby Club, including all the musical concerts that have taken place there over the 
last few years. 
 
I first came into contact with Joe Pointon several years ago, where we would train at 
our local gym. Over the years Joe has become a very good friend. 
 
Two years ago, Joe informed me that he was organising a music event at Witcombe 
Cricket Club. I told him that, if he required a hand with anything, to give me a call.  
However, due to work commitments that year I was actually only able to help for a 
couple of hours giving advice and observing. That event went well and without 
problems. 
 
Last year I was on rest days and became more involved with Joe as the venue had 
changed to a site in Brockworth, just off the A46.  I was present for almost the whole 
time the event was open to the public.  I helped Joe by working as a volunteer on the 
entry area, placing wristbands on customers, checking ages for the bands to be placed 
on attendees, advising on issues I could help with, and generally observing 
proceedings in a neutral capacity. 
 
To my knowledge, during the whole event, Joe had only one incident of note.  This 
involved an inebriated male making threats toward people in his immediate vicinity. 
I had heard the threats that the man made, so I monitored the incident.  I believe it was 
dealt with more than satisfactorily by the event’s security team. It was dealt with 
admirably and promptly.  Also with the amount of security that were stewarding the 
festival, there were more than ample door supervisors to defuse the situation, without 
subjecting the many hundreds of festival revellers to further disruption. 
 

193



2 
 

When police officers arrived, I informed them what I had heard and they escorted the 
inebriated male away. The police officers showed no concern about the event or road 
safety aspects.  One officer even commented that it was about time something like 
this (festival) took place and that events like this were needed around the area.  He 
said that it was a shame he was working, otherwise he would have attended.  
 
Although I was off-duty as a police officer, I would like to stress that I remained 
sober and attentive.  Due to my line of work, wherever I go I tend to only have only a 
few drinks, as I like to enjoy my surroundings while keeping vigilant. I saw very little 
at this venue that would cause any concern to those that attended.  
 
When the festival came to a conclusion each night, apart from a few festival 
participants that were still singing a few tunes on the walk back home or to their 
respective tents, it was nothing that I would say could cause concern to any of the 
local residents. It was all good natured, and attendees in my eyes were well-behaved. 
 
I saw nothing that caused me concern regarding any road safety aspects.  There were 
persons employed to control the traffic and car parks, which they did competently.  
 
After consulting with Joe in recent days, he has informed me that his licence for the 
next event could be revoked due to a few complaints. I believe this would be a 
travesty for the community, attendees and Joe, as he provides a well-constructed and 
well-organised event that is enjoyed by all attending.  Revocation of the licence would 
be totally unjustified in my eyes. 
 
There are very few events provided for the local community to celebrate and get 
together to enjoy each other’s company. This event/festival provides this for the local 
community, but also allows attendees from other parts of the county and country who 
wish to enjoy such events.  This, in turn, provides a spirit that gels everyone together. 
 
I understand Joe has made commitments to improve this year's event.  Joe is a person 
of integrity and is trustworthy, so I have no doubt he will honour those commitments 
to the best of his ability. 
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
 
L S Thompson 

194



DECISION NOTICE 
 
 
COMMITTEE: Licensing Sub-Committee (Licensing Act 2003 and 

 Gambling Act 2005) 
 
DATE: Wednesday, 21 May 2014 – Reconvened from 

 Tuesday, 22 April 2014 
 
 

Premises: Witcombe Cider Festival, Painswick Road, Brockworth. 

Applicant in respect of Review: Gloucestershire Constabulary. 

Application to review the premises licence. 

Present:    Councillors A C Tugwell (Chairman), B Whelan and        
     Mrs C Wright. 

The Applicant:    David MacFarlane – Gloucestershire Constabulary   
     Senior Harm Reduction Adviser. 

Jaine Simner – Gloucestershire Constabulary Licensing 
Manager.      

Witnesses for the Applicant: Mrs R Hamblett-Stubbs – Resident of Painswick Road. 
 Mr J Hunt – Resident of Shurdington Road. 
 Mrs C M Neal – Resident of Moorfield Road. 
 Mr and Mrs Oakley – Residents of Painswick Road. 
 Mr T Roberts – Resident of Painswick Road. 

Representatives of Premises   Andy Cook – Independent Licensing Consultant for  
being reviewed:                                  Easy Licensing. 

Joseph Pointon – Premises Licence Holder.     
  
Witnesses for Premises being  Mr L S Thompson – Resident of Ribble Close. 
reviewed:    Councillor Mrs J M Perez – Resident of Kennel Lane. 
 Councillor V A Perez – Resident of Kennel Lane. 

Responsible Authorities:  Paul Bowden – Environmental Protection Officer. 
Gerry Davies – Senior Environmental Protection Officer. 
Colin Hoult – Licensing Officer. 

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
1. Eight letters of representation had been received from interested parties in support of the 

review application and the recommendations put forward by Gloucestershire Constabulary 
that further events should not go ahead citing that the festival had undermined the licencing 
objectives of the prevention of public nuisance; the prevention of crime and disorder; and 
public safety. 

2. Four letters of representation had been received from interested parties opposing the review 
application and the recommendations made by Gloucestershire Constabulary, citing that the 
event had promoted the licensing objectives of prevention of public nuisance and the 
prevention of crime and disorder. 

THE APPLICATION 
The Witcombe Cider Festival is a music and cider festival held annually on open pasture land in 
Brockworth to the south-east of the A46 Painswick Road, 400 yards south of the junction of Ermin 
Street and the A46 at the Cross Hands Toby Carvery.   

The review request from Gloucestershire Constabulary was received because it was considered by 
the Constabulary that the entrance to the Witcombe Cider Festival, situated on the A46 

Appendix 4

195



Cheltenham to Stroud Road, within a 40mph zone between Brockworth and Cranham, was an 
unsuitable and unsafe location and therefore did not promote the licensing objective of public 
safety. 

Furthermore, following the event in 2013, a number of complaints had been received by 
Gloucestershire Constabulary from local residents who lived in close proximity to the premises.  
The residents alleged that they were disturbed by customers of the event and experienced 
incidents of drunkenness and anti-social behaviour from festival-goers attending the event.  Council 
Officers had attended the festival on both evenings in order to monitor how the festival was being 
managed by the premises licence holder and witness statements had been provided by the Officers 
to Gloucestershire Constabulary which corroborated the concerns highlighted by the residents. 

In light of the complaints and witness statements provided by Council Officers, a meeting was 
arranged with the premises licence holder and his Licensing Consultant to discuss the apparent 
poor management of the event and the adverse effect the event had caused to local residents.  
Council Officers, a representative from the Police and local residents had also been in attendance 
at the meeting.  Following the meeting, a letter had been received from a company called Easy 
Licensing, the Licensing Consultancy acting on behalf of the premises licence holder, which set out 
a number of additional proposals put forward by the premises licence holder which attempted to 
address the concerns raised during the meeting. 

In response to these additional proposals, Gloucestershire Constabulary stated that, due to traffic 
issues at the event in 2013, the poor management of the event and the premises licence holder’s 
reluctance to accept any responsibility for failing in his obligations under the Licensing Act 2003 by 
not complying with the conditions already attached to the current premises licence, they had no 
confidence that he would comply with the additional steps proposed, and as he had made no 
attempt to engage or work with local residents, there was a likelihood that disorder and public 
nuisance would increase considerably should the festival go ahead as planned in 2014.  On that 
basis, they had made their application for a review of the premises licence in respect of the 
Witcombe Cider Festival on the grounds of the licensing objectives of public safety and the 
prevention of public nuisance. 

DECISION 
Having considered the review application; the representations made by all parties, including those 
made at the hearing and the proposals put forward by the premises licence holder to alleviate the 
concerns of Gloucestershire Constabulary; the four licensing objectives; the National Guidance; 
and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, it was resolved, to modify the conditions of the 
premises licence through the addition of a series of conditions as follows: 

1. That, between the hours of 10:00 and 18:00 on event days, there be no less than 10 security 
guards on site. 

2. That, between the hours of 18:00 and close on event days, there be no less than 20 security 
guards on site and no less than a further five patrolling the A46. 

3. That a security guard be located outside, or within 25 metres, of Mr and Mrs Oakley’s property 
at all times when the event is open to the public. 

4. That a security guard be located outside, or within 25 metres, of Mr Roberts’ property between 
the hours of 21:00 and closure of the event. 

5. That security guards remain on site until it is cleared and that a presence be maintained along 
the A46, between the site and the Cross Hands roundabout and 500 metres in the Stroud 
direction, until such time as the area has been fully cleared of those who have attended. 

6. That the exclusion zones surrounding the private and/or residential properties be maintained 
using Heras fencing. 

 

7. That, in respect of the safety perimeter or exclusion zone surrounding Mr and Mrs Oakley’s 

196



property, the boundary be marked and observed at 50 metres in all areas, save for the specific 
points of the boundary where this would not be possible due to the location of the opposite 
boundary of the field, and at this, or these, point(s) only, there should be an allowance of no 
more than 3 metres between the opposite boundary and the perimeter of the exclusion zone. 

8. That, in addition to the events signs being provided and erected by the AA in the 24-48 hours 
preceding the event, the early warning signs to be placed no less than a week before the event 
also be supplied and erected by the AA. 

9. That no camping is to be provided on the site itself or at any other place, in relation to patrons, 
and/or any other persons either attending or being involved with the event. 

The Sub-Committee also sought the following undertakings from the premises licence holder: 

1. That the premises licence holder adhere to any recommendations made by David Collicott, 
Road Safety Officer for Gloucestershire Constabulary, concerning the implementation and use 
of a second entrance to the event site. 

2. That the premises licence holder undertake to obtain at least 10 shifts experience of front line 
bar work in a town or city sports-type bar or nightclub, where he will be exposed to the realities 
of dealing with high volume alcohol sale. 

3. That the premises licence holder distributes a monthly bulletin to ALL interested parties. 

4. That the premises licence holder facilitates a follow-up meeting with all interested parties within 
one month following the last day of the event. 

 
 

197



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 5 
 

Email from PC Simner 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

198



RE: Debrief on Witcombe Cider Festival 
Simner, Jaine <Jaine.Simner@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk> 

Reply| 
Wed 27/08/2014, 13:42 
'Andrew Cook' (andy@easylicensing.co.uk) 

Consultancy 

Andy 
  
There was just the one incident which caused a problem for Mr Roberts .There were a couple of 
isolated incidents after but minor. The Taxis were a bit of a nightmare as always and having been 
there near to close on both evenings was a bit concerned re dispersal. I personally had to direct a 
few people out of the road and pick one up off the road. Watching the attendees come out was not 
good. 
 
Darren did a great job and residents had total faith in him.  
  
I spoke to quite a few of the security staff who said nice venue wrong location.   
  
Jaine 
 
  
From: andyandcathycook@hotmail.co.uk [mailto:andyandcathycook@hotmail.co.uk] On Behalf 
Of Andrew Cook 
Sent: 26 August 2014 18:02 
To: Simner, Jaine 
Subject: RE: Debrief on Witcombe Cider Festival 
  
Hi Jaine, 
  
Noted re your availability.  I will confirm date, time & venue when other replies have come 
in. 
  
Joe has not yet found another site, although I have suggested that, ideally, he could do with 
moving to another site where there are no neighbours and no main road. He could then, 
potentially, have 3 days, later hours, reinstate the camping and increase the capacity. 
  
Attendance on Sat was around 850 I believe and around 600 on Sunday.  Most attendees 
pre-bought tickets it seems. 
  
I believe I am right in saying there was just one incident (on Saturday) when Police were 
called. 
  
Sorry I missed your visit!  I was there during the afternoon, and then again at closing time. 
 
Kind Regards, 
  
Andy 

199



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 6 
 

Additional Measures offered 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

200



Additional Preventative Measures for Witcombe Cider Festival 2015 

Building on the additional measures that were successfully implemented this year, 
and taking into account the feedback that was gathered from residents, council and police at 
the recent follow-up meeting (and subsequent discussions), the following improvements will 
be made to the festival arrangements next year: 

1. The Bar will close earlier.  ‘Last orders’ will be called around 2245hrs and the Bar will 
stop serving drinks at 2300hours, when the music finishes.  Drinking-up time will also 
be reduced to 15 minutes. The Drinks Marquee will, therefore, be emptied at 
2315hours. These changes will result in a swifter dispersal of festival attendees from 
the site. 

 
2. At least 2 extra security staff will be employed, taking the total to a minimum of 27.   

 
3. From the start of the hours of darkness (2030hours) until 2230hrs, a minimum of 

4 x security staff in high-visibility clothing will carry out foot-patrol up and down 
Painswick Road from the festival car-park to the Cross Hands roundabout. (NB. This is 
in addition to the static guards posted outside Mr & Mrs Oakley’s home and Mr Roberts’ 
home.) 

 
4. From 2230hrs until midnight, a minimum of 15 x security staff in high-visibility clothing 

will be spread out along Painswick Road between the festival car-park and the Cross 
Hands roundabout. These staff will endeavour to prevent festival attendees 
encroaching onto private driveways & gardens. They will also encourage pedestrians to 
walk on the pavement and stay out of the road. 

 
5. Drinks prices will be raised by between 10 - 20%. (Exact amount yet to be determined) 

 
6. More robust arrangements will be made for Taxi & Private Hire provision in the festival 

car-park in order to reduce further the incidence of these cars stopping on the road or 
turning in private drives. 

 
7. Signage on the festival site will be improved, e.g. No-Entry signs will be displayed on 

the inside of the car-park entrance. 
 

8. The volume of Bass being played during the infill music between Live Bands will be 
reduced. 

 
9. The street lights along Painswick Road will be checked one month to 6 weeks in 

advance of the festival and any defective lighting will be reported to the Council. 
 

It is hoped that these preventative measures will reduce the anxiety felt by residents 
during the hours of darkness and dispersal period.  It will also ensure that the risk of 
disorder is reduced further.  
 
30/09/14 

201



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 7 
 

Email from Mr McFarlane 
dated 3/9/14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

202



 

Cider Festival 
McFarlane, David <David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk> 

  
Reply| 
Wed 03/09/2014, 09:13 
 
Andy 
  
In furtherance of our conversation at the debrief. I may have been unclear in our concerns. 
  
We were made aware of an incident which occurred at 0300 hrs on the morning of Sunday 
24th August where a man was detained in the Festival beer tent by security staff. It was described to 
us as a burglary. 
  
As you know that there is an expectation by the police that such a serious offence would be reported 
to us by any responsible event organiser.  On checking it was apparent that no such report had been 
made hence I made the request to see the Security Log for the festival but as you are aware nothing 
had been recorded. 
  
To put this in context recently  there has been a burglary at a nearby Festival where the contents of 
the tills were stolen overnight, you can therefore see our concern in respect of this matter. 
  
I would be grateful if you could supply me with the name and address of the individual that had 
been detained and a copy of the photograph of him taken by security staff. I will give you an 
undertaking that we will not contact the individual  unless it is absolutely necessary. 
  
In addition could you provide me with the contact details of the organisation that provided first aid 
for the event. 
  
I was disappointed that you felt it necessary to tell me that “ we haven’t got enough to take us to 
review” which is both inaccurate and unhelpful. 
  
I am awaiting the outcome of the Community Impact assessment which was instigated by the 
Tewkesbury Inspector before we decide how we will progress this matter.   
  
  
David McFarlane  
Senior Harm Reduction Advisor 
Head of Crime Prevention and Licensing.  
Gloucestershire Constabulary Headquarters 
 No 1 Waterwells, Waterwells Drive, Quedgeley, Gloucester, GL2 2AN 
 (01452) 752173  
 David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk 
 

203

mailto:David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 8 
 

Email to Mr McFarlane  
dated 3/09/14 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

204



 
 
 
From: andyandcathycook@hotmail.co.uk [mailto:andyandcathycook@hotmail.co.uk] On Behalf 
Of Andrew Cook 
Sent: 03 September 2014 22:30 
To: McFarlane, David 
Cc: Joe Pointon; licensing@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Subject: RE: Cider Festival 
  
Dear Dave, 
  
Thank you for your email. 
  
Intruder Incident 
I have now spoken to Darren Simms & Joe Pointon regarding the incident where a man was 
found by Security inside the Beer Tent at around 2.30am on Sunday 24th August.  The man 
alleged he was looking for a mobile phone which he had lost earlier.  He was photographed 
and escorted off the site.  
  
The incident was regarded by the security officers as minor, and it is not Joe's intention to 
report it as a crime.  However Darren & Joe are very happy to supply you with the 
photograph and the man's ID for intelligence purposes. The man is local and known as xxxx 
xxxxxxxxx.  He lives in Brockworth.  Exact address unknown, but I guess you may well have 
it on record. 
  
I have asked Darren to let me have a copy of the photo (which he is getting from the door 
supervisor concerned).  I will then pass it on to you along with Incident records. 
  
Perhaps I could enquire what your interest is in relation to First Aid provision? 
  
Threat of Review 
In view of there being just one incident requiring police attendance during this year's festival 
and the fact that all the neighbours viewed the festival as being an improvement over last 
year, I was shocked to be told by you immediately after the meeting that the police are "still 
not happy" and that another Review is, in any way, being considered. That does not reflect 
the impression given to staff by Jaine Simner when she attended the event and carried out an 
inspection.  Jaine indicated she was happy with the way it was operating.  Separately, two or 
three police visits were made by passing local officers who expressed no 
concern.  Additionally, the Licensing Authority carried out extremely thorough inspections 
and have indicated they are happy with the event. 
  
As you know, extensive and costly measures were implemented by Joe this year to 
resolve concerns arising from last year's event.  They had a significant beneficial effect, 
which you heard for yourself at the meeting.  Further improvements and adjustments will be 
made regarding next year's event as result of feedback from the council and residents. 
  
Considering the fact that a Review took place just 3 months ago and the police request for 
revocation was rejected by the Committee, it is my view that a further Review application 
would be totally unjustified and could even be considered oppressive.  It would most 
certainly be opposed. 

205



  
Aside from the incident referred to above, perhaps you could outline, in detail, the reasons 
why the police are still unhappy, so that we can see if there are additional measures that may 
be introduced to allay concerns. 
  
I also look forward to recieving feedback after the Community Impact Assessment has been 
completed. 
  
Andy 
 
Andy Cook 
Licensing Consultant 
 
 

206



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 9 
 

Health & Safety email dated 12/9/14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

207



 

 

From: David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk 
To: andy@easylicensing.co.uk 
Date: Fri, 12 Sep 2014 15:00:38 +0100 
Subject: RE: Cider Festival 

Andy 

If you could bring any Health and Safety Records of the event, ( or any event log that 
you have) it would be useful, 

 Thanks 

   

David McFarlane  
Senior Harm Reduction Advisor 

Head of Crime Prevention and Licensing.  
Gloucestershire Constabulary Headquarters 
 No 1 Waterwells, Waterwells Drive, Quedgeley, Gloucester, GL2 2AN 

 (01452) 752173  
 David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk 

  

 

208

mailto:David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk
mailto:andy@easylicensing.co.uk
mailto:David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk


 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 10 
 

Undertaking given by Mr Pointon 
November 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

209



Additional Preventative Measures for Witcombe Cider Festival 2015 

Building on the additional measures that were successfully implemented this year, 
and taking into account the feedback that was gathered from residents, council and police at 
the recent follow-up meeting (and subsequent discussions), I undertake to implement the 
following improvements for the festival arrangements next year: 

1. The Bar will close earlier.  ‘Last orders’ will be called around 2245hrs and the Bar will 
stop serving drinks at 2300hours, when the music finishes.  Drinking-up time will also 
be reduced to 15 minutes. The Drinks Marquee will, therefore, be emptied at 
2315hours. These changes will result in a swifter dispersal of festival attendees from 
the site. 

 
2. At least 2 extra security staff will be employed, taking the total to a minimum of 27.   

 
3. From the start of the hours of darkness (2030hours) until 2230hrs, a minimum of 

4 x security staff in high-visibility clothing will carry out foot-patrol up and down 
Painswick Road from the festival car-park to the Cross Hands roundabout. 
(NB. This is in addition to the static guards posted outside Mr & Mrs Oakley’s home and 
Mr Roberts’ home.) 

 
4. From 2230hrs until midnight, a minimum of 15 x security staff in high-visibility 

clothing will be spread out along Painswick Road between the festival car-park 
and the Cross Hands roundabout. These staff will endeavour to prevent festival 
attendees encroaching onto private driveways & gardens. They will also encourage 
pedestrians to walk on the pavement and stay out of the road. 

 
5. Drinks prices will be raised by 10 - 20%. (Exact amount yet to be determined) 

 
6. More robust arrangements will be made for Taxi & Private Hire provision in the 

festival car-park in order to reduce further the incidence of these cars stopping on the 
road or turning in private drives. 

 
7. Signage on the festival site will be improved, e.g. No-Entry signs will be displayed 

on the inside of the car-park entrance. 
 

8. The volume of Bass being played during the infill music between Live Bands will 
be reduced. 

 
9. The street lights along Painswick Road will be checked one month to 6 weeks in 

advance of the festival and any defective lighting will be reported to the Council. 
 

It is hoped that these preventative measures will further reduce any anxiety felt by 
residents during the hours of darkness and the dispersal period.  It will also ensure that 
the risk of disorder is reduced.  
 
 
Signed……………………………..  Joe Pointon 
18/11/14 

210



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 11 
 

Email from PC Simner 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

211



 

 

On 24 Nov 2014, at 14:48, Simner, Jaine <Jaine.Simner@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk> 
wrote: 

 

Hi Andy 

Apologies for the delay in getting back to you following last week’s meeting. I am happy in principal 
with the additional preventative measures that were offered with a few slight additions. 

The largest issue around the event is dispersal, Closing the bar earlier will have a huge impact on 
dispersal and as a result dependent on the crowd or demand on the bar it may be beneficial to close 
half an hour earlier. 

More robust SIA briefing , It was identified at last year’s event that there was uncertainty with a some 
of the SIA staff on site. For example controlling the frontage of Mr Oakley’s and Mr Roberts homes, 
Taxi control, general control of persons entering and leaving the site 

Consideration for tickets to be purchased at back entrance rather than persons having to go 
backwards and forwards from car park to main entrance. I appreciate this makes control of numbers 
more difficult. 

Better signage on site. 

Consider /take advice re better use of traffic lights . 3 way ? 

Lighting and signage to encourage use of rear entrance preventing people walking along main road. 

Early liaison with Taxi company and agreed protocol for dropping/collecting customers 

Liaison with AA to ensure signage raised to prevent drunken persons removing or knocking over 

Continued liaison with Mr Oakley and Mr Roberts to address their concerns and to reassure them of 
good event control and management. 

  

I believe all was discussed at the meeting and that none of the above brings anything new to the 
table. 

Regards 

  

Jaine 

 

212

mailto:Jaine.Simner@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk


Cider Festival 2015 
Debrief and Review of Festival arrangements to 
neighbouring residents 

Minutes of Meeting held at Witcombe Cricket Club on Monday 21/09/15 at 7.00pm 

Present: 
Ros Hamblet Stubbs  (RHS) - Resident
Tony Oakley  (TO) - Resident
Ann Oakley  (AO) - Resident

Nick Bishop (NB) - Resident

Hilary Clifford (HC) - Resident
Sean Clifford (SC) - Resident
Jude Perez (JPer) - Resident
Vince Perez (VP) - Resident
Jim Hunt  (JH)  - Parish Councillor
Jaine Simner  (JS) - Glos Police

Bhavdip Nakum (BN) - TBC Licensing Officer
Sandy McMillan  - TBC Environmental Officer
Joe Pointon  (JP) - Festival applicant/ organiser
Dave Pointon  (AC) - Joe Pointon’s father
Mrs Pointin (Mrs P) - Joe Pointon’s mother
Brian Webber (BD) - Festival volunteer
Darren Simms (DS) - Simms Security (Festival security)

Apologies: Tony Roberts  (TR) - Resident

Distribution: Those present, Apologies 

ACTION 

1.0 Introductions 

1.1 VP confirmed he had been asked by JP to chair and minute this meeting as he 
had previously conducted this role at previous meetings.  

TO confirmed Tony Roberts was ill and unable to attend tonight’s meeting but 
had submitted a letter to TBC Licensing. 

2.0 Review of Festival  measures 

2.1 RHS stated the Festival worked well this year and was a big improvement on 

last year. Security was good this year and generally better management of the 
event was evident. Taxis were better managed without the previous attempts 
to 3 point turn and encroaching on RHS’s drive. 

JP confirmed he had briefed the requirements and expectations with Andy Cabs, 
this year about refraining from pulling into drives and 3 point turns. 

2.2 Site entrance – pedestrian site entrance had moved this year away from TO’s 
house leaving only the parking area entrance by TO’s house. TO stated this had 
improved matters generally. 

2.3 Fencing – JP stated the Heras fencing had been erected inline with the Licence 
requirements, as it had been erected last year, comprising 50m separation zone 

apart from the one area where this cannot be physically achieved. 

2.4 Traffic management – JS stated the installation of pre-festival signage had been 
erected in good time this year, almost too early, given advance warning of the 

Appendix 12

213



2 

forthcoming festival with good overall visibility of the signs. 

Traffic lights had been incorporated again this year which controlled the exit of 

the car park area and also controlled the speed of vehicles generally along the 
main road. The car park consisted of a one-way system with entry and exit 
positions and avoided the turning of vehicles and clash at the one entrance 
which was a problem presented the previous year. Exit from site times on the 
traffic lights had been extended by 10 seconds. 

JS stated the traffic management had worked well this year. 

2.5 Toilet arrangements – VP noted that last year comments suggested that toilets 
be introduced at the pedestrian gates to help relieve festival goers upon their 
departure and prevent some the urination that had previously taken place on 
the highway by hedges and driveways. Toilets were placed at the exit this year. 

TO commented that perhaps some further screening be introduced to the toilet 
area as some men still urinated outside of the on-site facilities albeit just 
behind the toilet shelter provision and this was in some instances visible from 
their kitchen window. 

JP confirmed he will increase the screening and make it more strategically 
placed to avoid any future sightings from his kitchen window.  

It was noted that urinating along the main road had not presented problems 
this year and was likely from the extra presence of security by the houses and 
the roundabout. 

JP 

2.6 On-site facilities – JP confirmed caterers had increased in number with a 

greater variety of culinary options available. It was commented that there had 
been complaints about prices being high. JP commented that he was unable to 

dictate costs to the caterers. 

JP stated there were more family orientated entertainment this year together 
with children’s’ rides. It was commented that the high spinning ride felt too 
noisy. 

JP commented that he had paid for acoustic testing to be undertaken during the 
Festival and proceeded to hand out decibel readings that had been taken at 
strategic spots, including in Abbotswood area, during different times and stages 
of the Festival. All readings, he remarked, were within the permitted guidelines 
and stipulation as laid down by the Licence board.  

RHS stated that noise is a very subjective phenomenon with different pitches 
affecting people differently. An increase of a few decibels and indeed 5 decibels 
is a significant jump in audible scale with human hearing and can be 

determined as a nuisance. She could hear the thumping of Bass from what she 
termed the “Star Wars” ride which seemed to play the same music continually.  

It was commented that the Bass is much more audible and the shrieks from the 
ride certainly more noticeable. HC stated she felt the vibrations from the Bass 
at her house in Abbotswood. Her family were trying to enjoy the Bank holiday 
weekend in their garden and the noise was intolerable. 

VP reminded that at the previous year’s meeting the interlude music between 
acts was commented as being over exuberant with Bass. It was noticeable this 

year that the music mixing was much more refined and did not seem to 
produce last years issues. JP advised that the mixing equipment this year was 
more technically competent and a great deal of effort had gone into the 
directional placing of speakers and control of ranges in the noise spectrum. 

BN stated the reading s presented by JP were more or less in line with TBC’s 
readings taken during the Festival. BN confirm there are no statutory 

requirements or restrictions enforceable with fair ground rides. The artist music 
stage was very professional in its set up. Consideration should also extend to 
having super silent generators in the fair ground and if these are not available 

214



3 

strategically placing them further away from residential housing will help. 

TO commented that despite living right next the Festival grounds the noise and 

music had not bothered him. 

RHS stated the music from the fair ground must have created conflict with the 
performing artists during their acts. 

It was agreed that the nuisance factor of this year’s Festival was the high level 

spinning, white knuckle ride, with the incessant shrieking from users of the ride 
and the continuous incessant fair ground music that accompanied this ride. 

JP commented the fair did shut down exactly when asked to at the end of each 
day. The noise issue can be remedied with such rides being omitted altogether 
from future events. 

3.0 Communications to residents 

3.1  Letter drop – a letter drop had been posted to local residents encouraging 
residents to complain to TBC Licensing in order to shut down the Festival. 

DP stated that the letter was anonymous thereby preventing any form of 
contact and means of addressing ay concerns.  

BN stated the wording on the letter was inaccurate and not factual and the 
intention of closing the Festival as the letter alluded to was not possible. 

3.2 Communications – JP confirmed he personally sends out emails out to 
residents. 

Noted a new couple had recently moved in down the road. Tony Gover should 

be removed from the email circulation list. 

JH stated he had received one letter from a resident where that had tried to 
contact JP but JP had not replied. JP confirmed he communicates on all forms of 
social media , carries his phone with him at all time during the Festival and is 

contactable at any time. He doesn’t know what more he can do to advertise his 
contact status. DP asked JH for the letter which JH confirmed he did not have 
details of the individual involved. 

4.0 Site control measures 

4.1 Security – TO stated he had phoned DS to personally confirm the improvement 

in security measures. 

JH commented that one security man had tried to get departing revellers onto 

the footpath. DS stated security cannot physically manoeuvre people off the 
road. Security was placed to protect driveways along the road. There were 15 
to 20 security personnel along the road at dispersal. A sniffer dog had also been 

deployed this year. 

Mrs P confirmed that she had personally taxied some of the artists and that 
Andy cabs had commented how relatively quiet the Festival was during 
dispersal. 

It was commented that the dispersal stage was generally very quiet. TO stated 

security was excellent. 

BN stated there is a very grey area with dispersal as is experienced outside of 
pubs. The further away from the property, being it a pub or festival, the less 
power of authority can be exercised, which can make it more difficult to 

disperse from some properties. 

4.2 Cleanliness – JP confirmed there are litter pickers during the day. To 
commented that the rubbish left at the end of the Festival is magically gone the 
following morning. 

215



4 

There has been less rubbish this year with less found and dropped in hedges. 
There was no rubbish at all left in neighbouring gardens. 

HC commented that a ruck sack and sleeping bag had been thrown into a 
garden in Abbotswood. 

4.3 Site dispersal & time keeping – JP stated site dispersal this year was quick, 
efficient and less congested. Bars were shut on time with bar staff leaving the 

area immediately and being replaced with security who quietly started ushering 
people after a short period. The immediate exiting of people once the last act 
had finished followed by the steady dispersal over the flowing half hour 
contributed to the perceived quiet exit of the festival. DS stated that if you try 
and force people out immediately they tend to get upset hence the method 
adopted.  

5.0 Tewkesbury Borough Licensing Comments 

5.1 NB & SM confirmed TBC had received letters of complaint together with letters 
of support with a fair mix of each. 

There is a need to evaluate the fair ground’s effect on noise and the nuisance 
factor but from a licensing perspective there are no controls that can be 

exercised upon the fair ground. The fair ground need to adopt the use of 
strategic directional speakers. Lights can also affect residents and need due 
consideration when setting up. 

There were no problems with security with the dispersal managed better than 
the previous year. 

With the anonymous letter drop the information portrayed is not correct on how 

the licensing procedure operates. 

JP commented that the monetary contribution from the fair ground to the 
Festival is very minimal but it does bring entertainment to the Festival and they 
do help with the site set up. The one ride that has caused excessive noise and 

concern is very frustrating. 

6.0 Police 

6.1 JS commented that there had been no incidences of crime or disorder. The 
police had received an email about noise from the fairground. 

Two officers visited early during the Saturday. DS stated his disappointment 
that there had not been a greater police presence. JS stated there had been 
incidents during the weekend which had prevented a greater presence. 

7.0 AOB 

7.1 JP confirmed the Festival had produced a small loss but he was pleased with the 
positive feedback he has received for this year’s event. He derives a lot of 
pleasure from bringing good entertainment to the public. 

JP commented that Heather Small never gives an encore performance but 
proceeded to do so which reflects how much she enjoyed the family good 
natured ambience. Titchy Strider confirmed he had a good time. 

Judge Jules who was a last minute fixture proceeded to turn up without his 
music or headphones, but with some quick back up downloading from the 
Festival music team the situation was retrieved. 

JP confirmed there had been a greater presence from corporate groups this 
year and this is an area he wants to encourage and increase next year. 

JP is proud to be able to use his family’s land for the Festival and despite the 
Festival being only for two days a year he takes very seriously the effect on the 

216



5 

neighbouring residents and will continue, as he has for the last two years, to 

improve matters where he can. 

JPer commented that JP should be congratulated for organising such an 
enjoyable Festival for local residents and the wider audience. 

7.2 It was agreed this year’s Festival was a success with the slight blip from the fair 
ground white knuckle ride. 

End of meeting.  

Meeting ended at 8.45 pm 

217



 

 

 

Cider Festival 2016 
Debrief and Review of Festival arrangements to 
neighbouring residents 

 
 

Minutes of Meeting held at Witcombe Cricket Club on Monday 12/09/16 at 7.00pm  
 
Present:   

Ros Hamblet Stubbs  (RHS) - Resident 
Tony Oakley  (TO)  - Resident 
Ann Oakley  (AO)  - Resident 

Vince Perez (VP)  -  Resident 

Jim Hunt  (JH)   - Parish Councillor   
Jaine Simner  (JS)  - Glos Police 
Sandy McMillan   - TBC Environmental Officer 
Joe Pointon  (JP)  - Festival applicant/ organiser 
Danny Pointon (DP)  - Joe Pointon’s brother 
Darren Simms (DS)  - Simms Security (Festival security) 

  
 
Apologies:   Tony Roberts  (TR)  - Resident 
   Alan Taylor  (AT)  - Resident 
   Nick Bishop  (NB)  -  Resident 
 
 

Distribution: Those present, Apologies 
    
  ACTION 

 
1.0 Apologies – received from Tony Roberts, Alan Taylor, Nick Bishop 

 

Introductions – no introductions were necessary as all had previously met and 
were aware of their status. 
 

 

2.0 Main Festival changes this year 
 

 

2.1 JP gave a brief overview of the changes this year from the previous: 
 

Re-usable cups for drinks were issued this year which significantly reduced the 
amount of rubbish generated plus the money generated from the purchase of 
the cups went towards the Festival’s chosen charity. 
 
Security this year has increased to a total of 35 which worked out very well. 

 
All bar staff this year had been changed, now utilising staff from the race 

course. 
 
Food was now all located in one particular zone rather have it spread out on the 
Festival grounds. TO commented the food stalls were located more towards his 
house which helped with screening of the toilet area which the previous year 
had presented problems with people urinating in view of his kitchen window. 

Visually, this year, it was a marked improvement. JP advised more options and 
types of food were offered this year and food traders had reported good 
business. It is difficult to get food traders to commit to the Festival as there is a 
cost to trade on the Festival grounds and they require some certainty that 
returns will justify the cost. There is a need to encourage more sweet stalls. 
Emails from traders had been sent to JP confirming this had been a good event. 
 

 
 

 

3.0 Review of Festival site controls 

 

 

3.1 Noise levels – JH handed copies of a couple of complaint emails. JH stated this 
was the first year he had visited the Festival after a kind donation of a ticket 

 
 

Appendix 13

218



 2 

from JP. Having walked around he was impressed with the general layout. 

Music from the fairground was too loud. He confirmed he had received 5 phone 
calls complaining about the noise. 

 
TG commented the noise is far worse if you are a resident. RHS asked whether 
there be any scope concentrating more on the music festival rather than the 
fair to attract more people for the music. 
 
JP confirmed he had asked that the direction of the fair music be more directed 

towards the hill and to not repeat the same music over and over again. He had 
asked the fair on a number of occasions to lower its music. 
 
JS commented the fair is not that large and its does cater for children making 
the event more of a family event. JP stated not having the fair would be a loss 
to the Festival but there are no plans to increase it in any way. 
 

TO stated the fair is the main acoustic problem. After 2 days you have had your 
fill. The proximity of the event to TO’s house is an unfortunate situation to the 
event. There are a lot of people on the Saturday night taking selfies in the 
carpark until 2.00am. The fair is dismantled on the Sunday night which can go 
on for a few hours. TO was kept awake until about 3am with the main 
disturbance being from the impact drivers used on the nuts and bolts. 
 

JH confirmed 5 people had complained about noise. He advised people are 
parking their cars on Castle Hill drive and then make themselves a nuisance 
when returning. He confirmed one of the complainants is from Castle Hill Drive 
reporting noise after 11pm and she wonders if she will be consulted in the 
future. 
 

JH asked about under-age drinking, JP confirmed they operate a very strict 
Challenge 25 policy and do challenge those looking younger than 25. DS asked 
whether comments received related to the Festival or were general comments 

of under-age drinking on the street which can be a common problem. 
 
Numbers of attendance to the Festival was questioned. JP confirmed 
approximately 1400 on Saturday and approximately 1300 on Sunday. DS 

stated a wrist band system was operated to confirm numbers, a strict challenge 
25 policy was operated and there were a number of people turned away. There 
is a log confirming those turned away but DS would have to check with his 
colleague Jason on the gate. SM commented if logs are available that would be 
a good demonstration of enforcement. 
 
SM confirmed Tewkesbury Borough Council had not attended the Festival this 

year due to lack of resources and had not undertaken any acoustic testing. JP 
confirmed he had employed Dale to take random acoustic readings at strategic 
positions who would then inform JP of any discrepancies which he would attend 
to immediately.  

 
3.2 Traffic management – A one -way system operates on the approach to the 

carpark but not everyone complies. There seemed to be fewer taxis which 
suggests they must be picking up at the Shell garage.  
 
TO asked whether a no exit sign had been placed to help direct the traffic in the 
one-way system. JP stated he assumed so. TO indicated having more men at 
the carpark would help. DS confirmed there were 2 stewards in that location. 
 

RHS asked whether the traffic lights had been positioned differently this year 
which in her opinion was worse this year. The previous position was better in 
helping direct cars towards the carpark. 
 
JS stated the traffic management had worked well this year. 
 

 

3.3 Toilet arrangements – JP confirmed last year there were 36 toilets, this year 

this was increased to 52 with 12 positioned at the hospitality tents. There were 
24 ladies toilet within a fully screened area. The gents had some outside toilets 
with modesty panels. 

 
 
 
 

219



 3 

 

Previously the cubicles were used as unisex toilets but his year the distinct 
segregation caused less blockages and was a vast improvement in their set-up. 

 
3.4 Children facilities – JP stated he is looking forward to expand the childrens’ 

facilities and entertainment by using a charity partner offering rugby training. 
Some social media comments are asking for a Kids’ Club. It’s all an idea for the 
moment. More families attended this year and JP had received good comments 
from families. The families do tend to drop away as the night progresses.  

 

 

3.5 Taxis – JP confirmed having again debriefed Andy Cabs prior to the event 
reminding not to turn in peoples’ drives. It was noted there were about a dozen 
incidents of 3 point turns in the road. TO thinks the Cross Hand garage must 
have been busy as there were a lot of pick ups from there. It was noted the 
carpark by the Festival was plenty big enough catering for parked cars and taxi 
pick-ups. 

 
The subject returned to the car parking in Abbotswood, JH stating drunken 
youths returning to their cars. JP confirmed having spoken with friends who 
lived in Abbotswood and they had not noticed any increase in normal car 
parking and again reiterating the Challenge 25 policy, they make great effort 
not to sell alcohol to minors. 
 

JS stated the dynamics of the festival could be changing with locals deciding to 
park up in the neighbouring roads and not in the field and then leaving their 
cars overnight to avoid drink-driving. SM commented that peoples’ perception 
of drunken behaviour is very often just high spirits. DS commented that 
evidently minors must have been accompanied by an adult if they were going 
to their cars as they would be too young to drive. JH stated he had no proof of 

events but was simply relaying the comments from the complainants. 
 

 

4.0 Communications to residents 

 

 

4.1 
 

TO commented the last set of minutes were sent out very late, he having 
received them in May 2016. 
 

JS stated the news of charity events is very positive news. DP advised it is very 
often difficult to know what to communicate to residents. TO said just advising 
the increase in security gives enormous comfort. RHS stated each year a bit of 
panic sets in as August approaches and some communication gives some 
confidence that matters are in hand or are likely to improve.  
 
TO asked whether it would be better to talk to DS direct about security. JP 

confirmed he has a debrief with DS at the end of each night. RHS commented 
that just popping in and having an informal chat helps matters. 
 
TO commented with attendance figures now having reached the limits as set by 

the Licencing Board he asked JP what does he envisage happening at future 
events. DS advised that there had been people turned away on both days due 

to numbers. 
 
JP commented he had new ideas for next year but these were still in their 
infancy, it would be good to grow the Festival. He was looking at tweaking the 
site layout even to the extent of getting costs from Western Power to bury the 
overhead power cable which currently placed restrictions and limitations on the 
positioning of the stage. 

 
JH stated if the Festival was to grow JP would have to go back to the Licencing 
Board. JS commented JP needs to be realistic about the size of the Festival. 
 
JP reminded that last year the Festival had suffered a financial loss, this year 
the Festival has proved to be more successful thereby covering last year’s loss. 
There is a lot of hard work getting attendees to the Festival including the 

corporate events becoming more prominent. Growth is organic and comes from 
word of mouth. Last year’s comments have helped the Festival grow. 
 

 

220



 4 

TO questioned whether the infrastructure could cope with greater numbers. 

RHS reminded that if the event gets bigger there will be greater costs 
associated with more security and other elements which does not necessarily 

equate to greater profitability. If the event grows at the same percentage as it 
has over the previous year it will be oversubscribed next year. TO expressed 
apprehension if the Festival grows he doesn’t want it getting closer to his 
property. 
 
JP commented that plans are for the Festival to eventually move but could not 

do so at the moment as there remained an unstable base to the Festival. 
Accountants need to review whether increasing the Festival will lead to greater 
profit. RHS stated it is important to maintain quality rather than quantity. 
 
JS stated the Witcombe Festival is affordable compared to other festivals being 
in the region of £50 to £100. JP stated the current price makes it inclusive to a 
lot of people including the tight-knit Brockworth community which he feels an 

allegiance to. The Brockworth community don’t want to feel ripped off. 
 
TO commented it would be a massive risk to move the Festival elsewhere with 
inherent problems other sites would offer whilst JP was now getting over some 
of the problems this site presented. 
 

5.0 Site control measures 

 

 

5.1 Security – TO asked DS was he happy with the security measures. DS stated he 
was very pleased that JP had increased security numbers which gave him the 
confidence to deal with matters in an appropriate manner should they arise. He 
has a good bunch of guys and many ask to work the event as it is a good 
humoured/natured event. Dispersal this year was cleared 15 minutes earlier 

that the previous year. 
 
TO commented that increased security really helped this year. DS reiterated he 

felt very confident this year they could deal with any issues. 
 
The Roving Fest was brought up as comparison where there had been an 
incident. JP commented having attended that festival and witnessed the 

incident that made his mind up to increase security at the Witcombe Festival. JP 
stated any incident whether minor or major is ugly and no-one wants to see 
that. DS confirmed 30 security were on the road this year at dispersal. 
 

 

5.2 Cleanliness – JP confirmed the introduction of the plastic cups this year really 
helped with litter and there were no problems with litter. TG stated he walked 
out on Sunday morning and there was a great deal of litter at the Cross Hands 

garage. A couple of hours later the site was spotless. JP confirmed he and his 
brother had cleaned the site and his OCD makes him clean up thoroughly.  
 
TO commented clearance of litter has always been good. 

 

 

5.3 Site dispersal & time keeping – Music stops at 11pm with last orders at the bar 

at 10.45pm. Question was raised about what time the fair turns their music off. 
JP confirmed he asks that it gets turned off at the same time. 
 
DS confirmed a softly approach is taken with dispersal. Bar staff are completely 
removed from the bar at closing time and this makes people naturally vacate 
the area. The area is left for 30 minutes and the site naturally clears of its own 
accord without the mass exodus which can often be experienced.  

 

 

6.0 Tewkesbury Borough Licensing Comments 
 

 

6.1 SM confirmed TBC had received one email of complaint which was bland in 
nature and related to questioning why this type of event should be held so close 
to their property. 
 

Receipt of risk assessments gave sufficient confidence to enable the Festival to 
proceed. There were no issues presented that required TBC to attend the 

 

221



 5 

Festival. It was noted that previous inspections had given the impression of a 

very professional layout to the Festival. 
 

SM clarified that the term inaudible at the perimeter of the site means you can 
hear music and sounds but it should not bother you, it is unobtrusive. 
 
JH commented that noise travels and he could hear the music from his home. 
 
TO stated he was pleased the large propeller fair ride was not there this year. 

 
SM confirmed noise before 11pm is viewed very differently to that after 11pm. 
If noise/music is shut down at 11pm that goes a very long way to noise 
compliance. It is very difficult to complain about noise before the hours of 
11pm. JS commented that some pubs suffer from complaints about noise which 
the latest licensing changes and smoking out of the properties has not helped. 
TG stated you can be afraid of retaliation if you complain directly about noise. 

 

7.0 Police 
 

 

7.1 JS commented there was a lot of drunkard behaviour at the Cross Hands but 
this may not be reflective of the Festival alone. Festival security does tend to 
send revellers down to the Cross Hands for taxis and this is naturally an area 
for congregation. TBC had allocated a couple of officers this year to attend to 

matters relating to the Festival. 
 
DS commented the response and attendance of the Police this year was “spot 
on”. Compared to last year this was a marked improvement. 
 

 

8.0 AOB 

 

 

8.1 JS commented that the Festival and JP had come a long way and it was 
pleasing to see JP take on comments and make the improvement where 

required. 
 
TO stated you learn to live with it as long as the Festival is organised correctly 
but 2 days is long enough. The site set-up is crucial for the success of the 

Festival particularly the security measures. It proves the conditions as laid 
down by TBC Licencing Board have worked. All these details are very dear to 
the local residents. TO confirmed he is now not as affected as most but the first 
year it was horrendous. The newly located entrance has helped matters. 
 

 

 
End of meeting.  

 
Meeting ended at 8.30 pm 

 
 

 

 

222



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 14 
 

Letter to Responsible Authorities 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

223



 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Licensing department, 
Tewkesbury Borough Council, 
Gloucester Road, 
Tewkesbury, 
GL20 5TT 

 
24th April 2017 

 
 
 
Dear Licensing Officers, 
 

Subject: Variation - Witcombe Cider Festival 
 
The Witcombe Cider Festival takes place over each August Bank Holiday weekend.  
This once-per-year event has been operating successfully for five years (four on the 
current site), and there have been no major incidents during its history.   

A wide range of proactive measures have been put in place to ensure good control of 
the event and, last year, with robust security being implemented, there were no 
incidents of crime or disorder connected with the event. 

This successful event has become more and more popular with the local community, 
as a result of which the Licence Holder, Joe Pointon, wishes to vary the licence in the 
following manner: 

• Increase the maximum capacity from 1,500 to 2,500 on Saturday and Sunday.  

• Extend the duration of the event to include Friday evening from 5pm - midnight 
(but with the maximum capacity remaining at 1,500 on Friday). 

 

A meeting was held with PC Jaine Simner (Police Licensing) on 24th January 2017, 
during which Mr Pointon’s proposals were outlined.  It was suggested that Mr Pointon 
should discuss his proposals with the neighbours immediately alongside the site.  
Mr Pointon has since met with them and they have indicated that they are not 
opposed to these changes provided appropriate measures are put in place to maintain 
good control. 

Ctd/ 

 

224



 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Additional Measures 

In order to ensure that this event remains trouble-free, the following additional 
measures would be implemented this year: 

1. The number of Registered Doorstaff/Security employed will be increased to 
ensure that the high ratio of 1 door supervisor per 75 attendees remains in 
place at all times. 

2.  The heras fencing around the site will be covered with fabric screening 
material, so as to provide a higher degree of privacy for the neighbours. 

3. CCTV will be in operation at the entrance to the site, in order to record visual 
images of those attending the event. 

4. Additional Portaloos will be provided. 

5. The overflow car-park will be available in the event that the car-park reaches 
capacity. 

6. Transport provision will be improved.  Stagecoach has agreed to provide extra 
buses at peak times on its number 61 service (which serves this route).  
In addition, it is intended that a minibus will operate a local dropping-off 
service from 2100 hours to close. 

Musical entertainment will continue to end at 2300hours each day, with the whole site 
being empty and closed down by midnight. 

An application to vary the Licence will be submitted shortly but, in the meantime, if 
any of the Responsible Authorities have any questions or concerns, please don’t 
hesitate to contact me.  Mr Pointon and I remain available to discuss any concerns or 
meet with you. 

I look forward to hearing from you. 

Yours sincerely, 

Andy Cook 
Licensing Consultant 
 
07949 800094 
andy@easylicensing.co.uk 
 
cc. Responsible Authorities, Gloucestershire. 

225



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 15 
 

Police response to letter. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

226



 

 

Witcombe Cider Festival 
McFarlane, David <David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk> 

  
Reply| 
Tue 25/04/2017, 13:52 
'AndyCook100@hotmail.co.uk' 

 
 
Andy 
  
I have read your letter which relates to the proposed increase in numbers for the Witcombe Cider 
Festival. 
  
I have discussed this matter with Senior officers and the  Force Operations Department and the 
position of the Constabulary is that we will oppose any increase in regard to attendees at this event. 
  
Thank you. 
  
David McFarlane  
Senior Harm Reduction Advisor 
Head of Crime Prevention and Licensing.  
Gloucestershire Constabulary Headquarters 
 No 1 Waterwells, Waterwells Drive, Quedgeley, Gloucester, GL2 2AN 
 (01452) 752173  
 David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk 
 

227

mailto:David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk


  

 
 

 

Outdoor Music Event 

Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth 
 

Noise Monitoring Report 

 

Reference: 6848/DO 

August 2017 

Appendix 16

228



www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 2 

Date: 31 August 2017 

Outdoor Music Event 

Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth 

 

 

Noise Monitoring Report 
 

 

Client: 

JDP events Ltd 

Marklands 

Green Lane 

Little Witcombe 

Gloucester 

GL3 4TX  

 

Noise and Acoustic Consultant: 

Acoustic Consultants Limited 

Raleigh House 

Wellsway 

Keynsham 

Bristol 

BS31 1HS 

 

 

 

Prepared by Checked by: 

  

Daniel Oldaker BSc. (Hons), MIOA Blake Lucas BEng. (Hons) MIOA 

 

 

Issue Number: 

1st Issue 

Date: 

31 August 2017 

 

 

229

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 3 

Date: 31 August 2017 

Table of Contents 

 

1. Introduction 4 

2. The Site & Event 4 

3. Noise Limits 5 

4. Noise Monitoring 6 

5. Limitations 11 

6. Conclusion 11 

 

 

 

230

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 4 

Date: 31 August 2017 

1. Introduction 

JDL Events Limited appointed Acoustic Consultants Limited to provide Noise Monitoring 

during Witcombe Cider Festival, which took place between 25th  27th August 2017.  

 

The purpose of the noise monitoring was to determine compliance with the noise limits and 

fulfil the noise monitoring requirements required by the premises licence 17/00437/LIQPRM. 

 

The report summarises the findings of monitoring that took place during the event.  

 
 

2. The Site & Event 

The event site was located on Painswick Road, Brockworth, Gloucester, GL3 4RP. The main 

stage was located approximately 85 metres to the south-east of Painswick Road and the 

housing estate opposite; and 150 metres and 125 metres respectively to the north east of 

Highways and south of Greenacres, the two most exposed residential properties. 

 

The site comprised one main stage (where performances ended at 23:00 hours), carnival rides, 

a bar within a marquee, and several food and drink outlets. 

 
  

231

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 5 

Date: 31 August 2017 

3. Noise Limits 

The premises licence 17/00437/LIQPRM provides noise limits to be assessed at nearby noise 

sensitive properties and requirements for noise monitoring. The relevant extracts are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

5. Music in the open air shall cease by 23:00 at the latest. 

 

7.  

at such intervals and from such locations as have been agreed in writing with an 

Environmental Health Officer from Tewkesbury Borough Council. 

 

8. Control limits set at the mixer position shall be adequate to ensure that a maximum MNL of 

65dB LAeq (15 minutes) measured one meter from the façade of the noise sensitive properties 

shall be achieved between the hours of 09:00 to 23:00. 

 

 

 

A detailed noise management plan must be provided which will set out how the applicant is going 

to ensure that throughout the event the Music Noise Levels (MNL) does not exceed 65 dB(A) over a 

15 minute period at 1 metre from the façade of any noise sensitive premises. This includes 

inaudibility of music noise between the hours of 23:00 and 09:00 (as detailed in section 3 of The 

Noise Council Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts). The plan must 

identify the noise monitoring locations; the duration and pattern of the noise monitoring 

throughout the event; details of the noise monitoring equipment, including calibration details; 

and the credentials of the persons undertaking the monitoring  this must be a member of the 

 

 
  

232

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 6 

Date: 31 August 2017 

4. Noise Monitoring 

Noise monitoring was undertaken in accordance with the submitted noise management plan 

reference 6343 dated 18th August 2017.  

4.1. Equipment 

Sound pressure levels were measured using two Class 1 sound level meters with half-inch 

 

 

The equipment is checked regularly using a Quality System meeting the requirements of 

British Standard EN ISO/IEC 17025:2005, and in accordance with British Standard EN 

10012:2003, and traceable to the National Standards.  

 

This equipment was checked and calibrated as noted below and the certificates are available 

for inspection. Table 1 provides the equipment and calibration status. 

 

Table 1: Equipment and calibration status 

Equipment Description / 
Manufacturer / Type 

Serial number 
Date of 

calibration 
Calibration 

Certification Number 

NTI XL2 Sound Level Meter A2A-11053-E0 10/03/16 42439 
NTI MA220 Pre-Amp 5871 10/03/16 42439 

NTI Microphone Capsule 9276 10/03/16 42439 
Larson Davis Calibrator CAL200 12605 -- -- 

NTI XL2 Sound Level Meter A2A-11041-E0 15/12/2016 4A719-A2A-11041-E0 
NTI MA220 Pre-Amp 6428 15/12/2016 42719-6428-M2230 

NTI Microphone Capsule 9583 15/12/2016 42719-6428-M2230 
Larson Davis Calibrator 13392 15/12/2016 42719-13392-CAL200 

 

Field calibration checks were carried out before, during and after measurement took place. 

The maximum drift recorded on either sound level meter was 0.5 dB; this is not considered 

significant. 

 

  

233

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 7 

Date: 31 August 2017 

4.2. Monitoring Procedure 

One of the sound level meters was attached to the frame of the sound tent, directly opposite 

the main stage.  An upper limit was determined for the on-site sound level meter by carrying 

out concurrent short term monitoring during the first DJ set on the Friday night with the 

second meter, which was located in a field opposite, in a location representative of the façade 

level at 188 Abbottswood Road.   

 

By determining the sound level at the mixing desk that corresponded to the maximum Music 

Noise Level at the residential receivers, a limit was able to be set on the on-site meter that 

would cause an LED to flash when the limit was exceeded. With this system in place, the 

sound engineer had a visual indicator to ensure the Music Noise Level was not exceeded. 

 

The Music Noise Level limit at the mixing desk was determined as 96dB LAeq,15 minutes, this was 

later corrected to 92dB LAeq,15 minutes when the Friday night headline act started. 

 

The second meter was rotated primarily between three locations, which had been monitored 

in previous years and are identified on figure 1.   

 

A fourth location to the south, at Hillside Cottage, was monitored once each on the Friday 

and Saturday nights, however the Music Noise Level at this location was significantly lower 

than at the other receivers and noise levels were primarily determined by road traffic noise.   

 

Music Noise Level readings in terms of the LAeq,15 minutes were taken at each location, as as asset 

out in the noise management plan to determine whether the maximum Music Noise Level of 

LAeq(15 min) of 65 dB was being exceeded at the residential receivers.  If the maximum LAeq was 

exceeded, the mixing desk was visited, the sound engineers were requested to reduce the 

noise level and the limit on the on-site sound level meter  adjusted 

accordingly. 

 

234

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 8 

Date: 31 August 2017 

Figure 1: Site overview showing monitoring positions representative of nearby residents, stage location and speaker 

direction 

 

 

  

A 

B 
C 

235

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 9 

Date: 31 August 2017 

4.3. Measured Data 

The recorded data during the event is presented in the tables below. 

 

Table 2: Noise level measurements on Friday 25th 

Location Start End LAeq, 15 min, dB 

D 18:38 18:53 54.8 

A 19:03 19:18 51.5 

A 19:38 19:53 55.8 

B 20:05 20:13 55.3 

C 20:31 20:46 58.2 

A 21:36 21:51 63.6 

B 22:10 22:25 56.8 

C 22:34 22:49 58.7 

 

Table 3: Noise level measurements on Saturday 26th 

Location Start End LAeq, 15 min, dB 

A 19:04 19:19 58.6 

B 19:31 19:46 61.4 

C 19:55 20:10 62.0 

D 20:30 20:45 52.2 

A 20:55 21:05 63.9 

B 21:29 21:44 61.6 

C 21:54 22:09 61.9 

A 22:20 22:35 64.4 

B 22:47 23:02 60.5 

 
 
As shown in Tables 2 and 3, no recorded LAeq,15min value exceeded the 65 dB criteria at the 
façade of the nearest residential receivers on the Friday and Saturday.  

236

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 10 

Date: 31 August 2017 

Table 4: Noise level measurements on Sunday 27th 

Location Start End LAeq, 15 min, dB 

A 18:56 19:11 65.2[1] 

A 19:18 19:20 65.8[1] 

A 19:24 19:39 62.0 

B 20:11 20:26 62.3 

C 20:34 20:49 59.1 

A 21:01 21:07 68.8[2]* 

A 21:15 21:20 68.3[2]* 

A 21:26 21:32 66.8[2]* 

A 21:40 21:55 62.5 

B 22:12 22:27 63.2 

C 22:36 22:50 67.8[3] 
 

 
[1] Upon arriving on the Sunday, noise levels subjectively appeared louder around the 
perimeter of the festival site, which was confirmed by the first 15 minute reading of the day.  
This may have been due to the frequency content of the music being performed at the time, 
which was punk rock.  Significant rumbling low frequency content from the bass and kick 
drum could be heard throughout the performance without respite, as opposed to the genres 
of music played on the previous night, in which the presence of low frequencies varied 
throughout.  The constant nature of the low frequency content within songs is likely to have 
contributed to a louder 15 minute LAeq. 
 
Whilst the exceedance of the Music Noise level was negligible this was addressed by liaising 
with the sound engineer running the desk and asking for a reduction in the sound level of the 
main mix and also a low shelf filter be applied under 100 Hz on the parametric equaliser.  
After the initial changes, the reduction in noise levels sounded negligible so further 
adjustments were made which resulted in a suitable 15 minute LAeq, recorded between 19:24-
19:39. 

 
[2] Upon returning to monitoring location A for the next round of measurements, the noise 
level was noticeably higher than at locations B and C.  In a rare period when no music was 
playing, the LAF trace was showing a level of approximately 62.5 dB for crowd noise alone, so 
it is possible that the larger crowd on the final night was contributing to the louder levels at 
location A.   
 
The asterisked values are 5-6 minute LAeq values.  Recording was stopped in each case to 
inform the engineer that sound levels needed reducing in order to be compliant with the 
licensing criteria.  As it was a continuous DJ set, there was no pause in the music and a 
judgement was made for each that the 15 minute LAeq would not be < 65 dB if the monitoring 
were continued.  The LAeq values continue to decrease over the course of these short term 
measurements until the levels were deemed acceptable, which was demonstrated in the 
measurement of a 62.5 dB LAeq(15 minute) between 21:40  21:55. 

237

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk     0117 986 2956 

 

 
Project: 6848 (Outdoor Music Event, Witcombe Cider Festival, Brockworth  Noise Monitoring Report) 11 

Date: 31 August 2017 

[3] headline set.  The LAeq recorded 
exceeded the 65 dB criteria and sounded significantly louder than any previous recordings at 
monitoring location C.  There was not enough time to walk back to the sound tent and inform 
the engineer of this, so text messages and calls were made, although with no response.  Upon 
returning to the tent it transpired that a m
and had refused to comply with the limit shown on the sound level meter. 
 
We suggest that to avoid a similar issue in future years the festival sound engineer is to 
maintain control of the mixing desk at all times. The festival engineers were very responsive 
to requests to reduce or alter the noise levels from the stage. 

 

5. Limitations 

The report limits itself to addressing solely on the noise aspects as included herein. We 
provide advice only in relation to noise and acoustics. It is recommended that appropriate 
expert advice is sought on all the ramifications (e.g. CDM, structural, condensation, fire, legal, 
etc.) associated with any proposals in this report or as advised and concerning the 
appointment. 
 
The report has been prepared in good faith, with all reasonable skill, care and diligence, based 
on information provided or available at the time of its preparation and within the scope of 
work agreement with the Client. We disclaim any responsibility to the Client and others in 
respect of any matters outside the scope of the above. 
 
The report is provided for the sole use of the named client and is confidential to them and 
their professional advisors. No responsibility is accepted to other parties. 

 

6. Conclusion 

Acoustic Consultants Limited were appointed by JDL Events Limited to advise on the 
environmental noise impact of Witcombe Cider Festival, Painswick Road, Brockworth, 
Gloucester, GL3 4RP, and to monitor noise levels on the day of the event to ensure 
compliance with the relevant code of practice and the requirements of the licensing 
conditions. 
 
Monitoring locations were agreed prior to the event, based on previous years, and 15 minute 
monitoring exercises were carried out in a regular cycle between them. 
 
Regular liaison between the noise consultants and backstage crew ensured that noise 
emission from the event was kept to acceptable levels throughout its duration.  The only 
window of non-
the desk and refused to comply with the agreed limits.  To avoid a reoccurrence of this in 
future years, acts could be contractually required to relinquish control of the master faders to 
the in-house staff upon being booked.

238

http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


  

 

 

 

 

Raleigh House, Wellsway, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1HS 

T: 0117 986 2956    E: mail@acoustic-ltd.co.uk    www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk 

 

Incorporated in the UK as Acoustic Consultants Limited. Registered Office: Raleigh House, Wellsway, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1HS. Registered No: 8544901. 

239

mailto:mail@acoustic-ltd.co.uk
http://www.acoustic-ltd.co.uk/


 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 17 
Body-Worn CCTV Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

240



• Footage 22:44 - 22:47 Saturday 26/08/17 
Shows Main Entrance/Exit and Reception desk with CCTV system. 
Customers starting to leave in orderly fashion. Patrons leaving are not unsteady on feet. 
Door Supervisors present and Medics observing in case needed.  
Calm atmosphere.  
 

• Footage 22:50 - 22:52  Saturday 26/08/17 
Main Stage entertainment can be heard. 
Shows children still on site. 
Briefly shows the area near the Drinks Marquee/Main Stage area.  
 

• Footage 22:59 - 23:19 Saturday 26/08/17 
Shows people leaving via Main Exit.  Steady on feet. 
Fairground in operation. 
Families with children present. Teenagers present too. 
Food Village (in distance). 
Trackway on the ground. 
Customers queuing in orderly manner for Buses. Buses loading up & leaving. 
Toilets by Exit heavily used. 
Doorstaff monitoring calm dispersal.  Darren Simms overseeing. 
Two Police Officers standing observing (in distance) 
Main Stage music ends. 
 

• Footage 23:19 - 23:39 Saturday 26/08/17 
Shows people leaving in greater numbers but still in an orderly fashion. 
Door supervisors can be seen heading out to Painswick Road. 
Side-exit in use but closed when buses enter and leave. 
Families still present & seen leaving. 
Fairground still operating but fairground music now stopped. 
Buses operating well. 
Attendees posing for photos in front of illuminated Festival sign. 
Couple of extra Police Officers arrive. 
Argument between customers. 
 

• Footage 23:39 - 23:59 Saturday 26/08/17 
Music in Marquee cannot be heard from position near Main Exit. 
Doorstaff start shepherding people towards the Exit. 
Shows Drinks Marquee thinning out.  Adult only in Bar area 
Door supervisor in Bar area. 
Marquee half-empty. 
Music in marquee stops. 
Bar closure. 
Doorstaff empty marquee. 
People having fun & laughing. 
Remaining customers head for exit.  

241



Appendix 18

242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



 

 

APPENDIX 20 
 

Incident Reports 2017 
  

336



 STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS 
LTD                

Maxet House 
Gloucester Road 

GL51 8PL 
 
 

INCIDENT REPORT LOG 
 
 
VENUE  WITCOMBE CIDER FESTIVAL 
 
DATE OF INCIDENT  26/8/17 
 
RECORDED BY    JASON RICKARD 
 
TIME OF INCIDENT  20:00 
 
WITNESSED BY    
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
On 26THAugust at around 20:00pm a customer of Witcombe Cider Festival 
approached Jason Rickard (Door supervisor) in a panic explaining her friend 
was vomiting blood after coming off a fairground ride. Jason assisted the lady 
and called the on site paramedics. After further investigation the on site 
paramedics called for an ambulance to take the lady to hospital. 
 
 
 
 
SIGNED BRADLEY SIMMS DATED 1/9/17 
  
 

 

 

 

 

337



STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD                
Maxet House 

Gloucester Road 
GL51 8PL 

 
 

INCIDENT REPORT LOG 
 
 
VENUE  WITCOMBE CIDER FESTIVAL 
 
DATE OF INCIDENT  26/8/17 
 
RECORDED BY    MATHEW JONES 
 
TIME OF INCIDENT  21:00 
 
WITNESSED BY    
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
On 26THAugust at around 21:00pm a customer of Witcombe Cider Festival 
approached Mathew Jones(steward) saying she had a cut on the top of her 
head. She was cut by a plastic cup whilst jumping around in the “mosh pit”. Mr 
Jones then radioed through to the paramedics that were on site who then 
looked at the cut, cleaned it up and advised the lady to go to hospital to get it 
treated. The customer then left in a Taxi to go to A& E. 
 
 
SIGNED BRADLEY SIMMS DATED 1/9/17 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

338



STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD                
Maxet House 

Gloucester Road 
GL51 8PL 

 
 

INCIDENT REPORT LOG 
 
 
VENUE  WITCOMBE CIDER FESTIVAL 
 
DATE OF INCIDENT  26/8/17 
 
RECORDED BY    JASON RICKARD 
 
TIME OF INCIDENT  22:30 
 
WITNESSED BY    
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
On 26THAugust at around 22:30pm a customer of Witcombe Cider Festival 
approached a member of the security team explaining they had just been 
assaulted by another in the crowd. The description was then passed through 
the radios. The male was then identified and removed off site as the victim did 
not want to press charges. 
 
 
 
SIGNED BRADLEY SIMMS DATED 1/9/17 
  
 

 

 

 

 

  

339



STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD                
Maxet House 

Gloucester Road 
GL51 8PL 

 
 

INCIDENT REPORT LOG 
 
 
VENUE  WITCOMBE CIDER FESTIVAL 
 
DATE OF INCIDENT  26/8/17 
 
RECORDED BY    BRADLEY SIMMS 
 
TIME OF INCIDENT           23:00pm 
 
WITNESSED BY:  Bradley Simms, Floyd Cruickshank 
 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
On 26THAugust at around 23:00PM  a member of bar staff was removed from 
site for being too drunk and was being very aggressive. The individual kept 
trying to re enter the site and was threatening the security team.  I asked a 
police officer on site to speak to the individual as he was very aggressive and 
threatening my colleagues.  
The police officer replied “ I can’t get involved this is what you are being paid 
to do”  
 
I replied “I have removed him from site and now need your assistance”  
 
The officer then replied “You can’t even deal with one drunk person” and the 
officer turned away.  
 
After around an hour the individual then left on his own accord. 
 
 
 
 
SIGNED BRADLEY SIMMS DATED 30/8/17  

 

340



STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD                
Maxet House 

Gloucester Road 
GL51 8PL 

 
 

INCIDENT REPORT LOG 
 
 
VENUE  WITCOMBE CIDER FESTIVAL 
 
DATE OF INCIDENT  27/8/17 
 
RECORDED BY    BRADLEY SIMMS 
 
TIME OF INCIDENT  13:00 
 
WITNESSED BY   BRADLEY SIMMS 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
On 27THAugust at around 13:00pm a customer of Witcombe Cider Festival 
approached me saying she was concerned that an individual was to drunk and 
was behaving in a wild manor. I then monitored the individual for around 5-10 
minutes and felt that he had too much to drink and noticed that his state had 
gotten worse. I then asked the individual to come with me and I escorted him 
off the site.  
 
 
SIGNED BRADLEY SIMMS DATED 30/8/17 
  
 

  

341



STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD                
Maxet House 

Gloucester Road 
GL51 8PL 

 
 

INCIDENT REPORT LOG 
 
 
VENUE  WITCOMBE CIDER FESTIVAL 
 
DATE OF INCIDENT  27/8/17 
 
RECORDED BY    DARREN SIMMS 
 
TIME OF INCIDENT           20:00pm 
 
WITNESSED BY:    
 
 Floyd Cruickshank , Matthew Jones, Darren Simms 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
On 27THAugust at around 20:00PM  a customer of Witcombe Cider Festival 
reported a Male was being aggressive and was intimidating other festival 
goers. The male was very aggressive and was barging other customers and 
shouting at them. He seemed to be very intoxicated. A steward witnessed this 
behavior and radioed for security assistance. A member of the security team 
asked the male to calm down and he then threatened to “knock him out”.  The 
guard then radioed for the response team who then escorted Mark Singh off 
site. The male was verbally abusive and still showed signs of aggression and he 
was still making threats after he was removed from the site. After 5 minutes 
another festival goer who knew the male walked him away from the site and 
they left together.  
 
 
 
 
SIGNED DARREN SIMMS DATED 30/8/17 
  
 

342



STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD                
Maxet House 

Gloucester Road 
GL51 8PL 

 
 

INCIDENT REPORT LOG 
 
 
VENUE  WITCOMBE CIDER FESTIVAL 
 
DATE OF INCIDENT  28/8/17 
 
RECORDED BY    DARREN SIMMS 
 
TIME OF INCIDENT           00:00 
 
WITNESSED BY   JED SEERS 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
On 28THAugust at around 00:15am a customer of Witcombe Cider Festival tried 
to enter a drive way of a house nearby. A member of the security team 
removed him from the Garden and told him to move on. The Customer then 
punched the guard in the face. There was a call for assistance on the radio 
which the whole team responded to as it was the end of the night. The 
individual was then detained and handed over to the police. 
 
The policeman said that the aggressor was truly sorry for his actions and would 
like to apologize to the security guard. The security guard accepted the apology 
and the aggressor was released by the police with no further action. 
 
SIGNED DARREN SIMMS DATED 30/8/17 
  

 

343



DECISION NOTICE 
 
 
COMMITTEE: Licensing Sub-Committee (Licensing Act 2003 and 

 Gambling Act 2005) 
 
DATE: Tuesday, 25 July 2017 
 
 

Premises: Witcombe Cider Festival, Part Parcel 6568, Painswick Road, 
Brockworth.  

Applicant:  Joseph Pointon. 

Application for a premises licence. 

Present: Councillors Mrs G F Blackwell, Mrs J Greening and                                  
R E Garnham (Chair). 

Representatives of the Applicant: Andrew Cook – Independent Licensing Consultant for Easy 
Licensing. 

  Thinus Delport - Rugby for Heroes. 

  John Dix – John Dix Transport. 

  Alan Lamb - Rugby for Heroes. 

  Jeremy Phillips - Licensing Barrister. 

  Joseph Pointon – Applicant. 

  Dewi Scourfield – Health and Safety Adviser. 

  Darren Simms –Simms Security Solutions.  

Responsible Authorities: Michael Griffiths – Head of Legal Services at Gloucestershire 
Constabulary. 

 Yvonne Hope – Interim Environmental Health Manager at 
Tewkesbury Borough Council. 

 David McFarlane – Head of Crime Prevention and Licensing 
at Gloucestershire Constabulary. 

 Emma McMillan – Licensing Unit, Harm Reduction 
Department at Gloucestershire Constabulary. 

 Clare Morgan – Community Neighbourhood Policing Sergeant 
for Gloucestershire Constabulary. 

Other Parties Addressing the Mr Jim Hunt – Chair of Brockworth Parish Council and  
Sub-Committee: resident of Shurdington Road. 

     Four residents of Abbotswood Road. 

     Three residents of Painswick Road.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 21

344



SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
1. Three responsible authorities had made representations in relation to the application: 

Gloucestershire Constabulary, Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Environmental Health 
Department and Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service. 

2. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service subsequently agreed four conditions with the 
applicant for inclusion within the Operating Schedule. 

3. 34 valid representations had been received from members of the public: 13 representations in 
support of the application and 21 representations in objection to the application. 

THE APPLICATION 

Relevant licensable activities and hours applied for: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Live music or similar activity Friday 17:00 to 00:00 

Saturday, Sunday and 
Monday 

10:00 to 00:00 

Recorded music or similar 
activity 

Friday 17:00 to 00:00 

Saturday, Sunday and 
Monday 

10:00 to 00:00 

Performance of dance or similar 
activity  

Friday 17:00 to 00:00 

Saturday, Sunday and 
Monday 

10:00 to 00:00 

Late night refreshment Friday, Saturday, 
Sunday and Monday 

23:00 to 00:00 

Supply of alcohol Friday 17:00 to 00:00 

Saturday, Sunday and 
Monday 

10:00 to 00:00 

Hours premises open to public Friday 16:00 to 00:30 

Saturday, Sunday and 
Monday 

09:00 to 00:30 

345



AMENDMENT TO THE APPLICATION BY THE APPLICANT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DECISION 
Having considered the application; the evidence provided; the representations made by all parties, 
including those made at the hearing; the four licencing objectives; the National Guidance; and the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, it was resolved that the premises licence be GRANTED in 
accordance with the application set out, subject to the following amendments and conditions: 

AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING 
SCHEDULE AS AMENDED BY THE SUB-COMMTTEE 
General 
1. All mandatory conditions to be added to the licence. 

2. The hours of the event will be Friday 16:00 to 00:30, Saturday and Sunday 09:00 to 00:30 of 
the August Bank Holiday weekend. 

3. No private camping is to be provided on the site itself, save for pre-booked yurts, or 
equivalent.  Campers must be included within the total number of patrons allowed on the site. 

Public Safety 

1. There shall be a capacity of 1,500 attendees at the event at any one time (which includes 
staff and performers) on Friday.  On Saturday and Sunday no more than 2,250 patrons shall 
be permitted at the event at any one time; additionally total staff and performers shall not 
exceed 500. 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
1. A minimum ratio of 1 door supervisor per 75 customers shall be employed on the site 

between the hours of 20:00 and 00:00 on all event days. 

2. There must be a 24 hour security presence on the site; this is extended to the camping site 
for the duration of the event. 

 

Live music or similar activity Friday 17:00 to 00:00 

Saturday and Sunday 10:00 to 00:00 

Recorded music or similar 
activity 

Friday 17:00 to 00:00 

Saturday and Sunday 10:00 to 00:00 

Performance of dance or similar 
activity  

Friday 17:00 to 00:00 

Saturday and Sunday 10:00 to 00:00 

Late night refreshment Friday, Saturday and 
Sunday 

23:00 to 00:00 

Supply of alcohol Friday 17:00 to 00:00 

Saturday and Sunday 10:00 to 00:00 

Hours premises open to public Friday 16:00 to 00:30 

Saturday and Sunday 09:00 to 00:30 

346



Prevention of Public Nuisance 
1. A detailed noise management plan must be provided which will set out how the applicant is 

going to ensure that throughout the event the Music Noise Levels (MNL) does not exceed 
 65dB(A) over a 15 minute period at 1 metre from the façade of any noise sensitive premises. 
This includes inaudibility of music noise between the hours of 23:00 and 09:00 (as detailed in 
section 3 of The Noise Council Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at 
Concerts).  The plan must identify the noise monitoring locations; the duration and pattern of 
the noise monitoring throughout the event; details of the noise monitoring equipment, 
including calibration details; and the credentials of the persons undertaking the monitoring – 
this must be a member of the Institute of Acoustics, or equivalent body. 

2. There will be no operating fun fair on the Friday night and no dodgems on any day. 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE RECOMMENDED BY THE RESPONSIBLE 
AUTHORITIES AND AGREED WITH THE APPLICANT 
1. The organiser will ensure that the main access point is no less than 4.5 metres wide. 

2. The access route for vehicles will be clearly marked by means of posts and tape. 

3. The alternative means of escape in the south-west corner of the festival site will remain 
accessible at all times and be permanently staffed when the festival is open to the public. 

4. The organiser will assess the firmness of all vehicle routes prior to and during the festival and 
will install trackway if necessary. 

The Sub-Committee also sought the following undertakings from the premises licence holder: 

1. That, if this licence is accepted, the premises licence holder will surrender his existing 
premises licence. 

2. That the premises licence holder will hold a public engagement exercise, to which the Parish 
Council should be formally invited, to brief the community on plans for the subsequent festival 
at least three months prior to the event. 

3. That the premises licence holder will facilitate a follow-up meeting with all interested parties 
within one month following the last day of the event. 

REASON 

The Sub-Committee recognised that the applicant had the benefit of a good track record for the 
operating of the event over the last few years and that the residents themselves were happy with 
the security measures provided at the event by Mr Simms and his team. The Sub-Committee noted 
that Mr Simms stated that there was always a 24 hour security presence at the site but, when 
looking at the conditions, the Sub-Committee noted that this was not a condition of the licence and 
they decided that it should be added to reassure residents. 

The Sub-Committee noted that the Police raised a lot of issues of public safety in relation to the 
proposed use of buses by the applicant; however, Gloucestershire Highways had had the 
opportunity to register an objection and attend the meeting and had chosen not to do so. The Sub-
Committee had heard from Mr Dix, a transport manager, about how he proposed to deal with the 
buses at the event and it was satisfied that he would take every precaution necessary to ensure the 
safety of the public; therefore the relevant licensing objective would be adhered to. 

The Sub-Committee had also heard from Yvonne Hope, Interim Environmental Health Manager at 
Tewkesbury Borough Council, in relation to the necessity for the condition that an independent 
competent acoustic consultant, who is accredited by a relevant professional body, should 
undertake the noise level readings due to the fact that, historically, the data provided had been 
insufficient. The Sub-Committee believed that this condition was a requirement due not only to the 
representations of Ms Hope, but also those of the residents living within the immediate vicinity of 
the event and therefore impacted by the noise levels.   

 

347



The Sub-Committee believed that the introduction of “glamping” would be a positive addition to the 
festival but was concerned that private camping could get out of hand and should not be allowed. 
Further camping should only be from the patrons of the event, therefore the numbers should be 
included with the number of patrons attending the event and there should be a 24 hour security 
presence on site for protection of the patrons and the residents. 

The Sub-Committee was happy to agree to the amendment offered and accept Friday night with 
1,500 patrons, including staff, but was concerned about the addition of another evening with a 
funfair and the associated noise impact on residents. On that basis it decided to impose a condition 
that there be no operating funfair on the Friday night but otherwise the applicant could operate as 
applied for.  As suggested by the applicant the use of "dodgems" would not be allowed. 

The Sub-Committee deliberated for a long time over the number of patrons that should be allowed 
to the event. It noted that the license as it currently stood allowed 1,500 persons on site per day 
including the staff. The applicant had stated that there were 378 staff currently but that this could 
rise to 500 if the application was successful.  The Sub-Committee decided to restrict the number of 
patrons to 2,250 per day, excluding staff of up to 500, because it felt that a fair amount of the 
mitigation measures proposed were untried and tested and, to allow the number of patrons to go 
from below about 1,200 (once staff were excluded) on the current license, up to 3,000 patrons (plus 
staff and an unknown number of children) was a large increase to deal with when the applicant 
could not evidence experience of controlling that number of people - especially at closing time.  
Given the public and Police concerns about how people would disperse from the site, the Sub-
Committee was mindful of the licensing objectives and felt that, whilst the mitigation measures - 
especially the buses - should hopefully prove very successful, there were a number of unknowns 
and the Licensing Authority needed to control numbers until experience showed the mitigation 
measures worked. The Sub-Committee acknowledged the considerable efforts of the applicant to 
put in place all the measures proposed and felt these would help address the concerns raised by 
both the public and the Police. 

The Sub-Committee had regard to the Human Rights Act 1990 and the European Convention on 
Human Rights as well as its duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998; however, it found that it 
had heard no evidence that any persons human rights would be infringed by granting the 
application, nor was it sufficient to convince the Panel that any significant crime and disorder would 
be caused by granting the application. 

The Sub-Committee noted that there was disagreement on the amount of engagement between the 
applicant and local residents, and that this was a matter of contention at the hearing, and wanted to 
clarify that situation.  Therefore the suggestion of two public engagement exercises, in advance of 
and post the event, was felt prudent and necessary. 

The Sub-Committee therefore determined that it was necessary and proportionate to apply these 
additional conditions to promote the licensing objectives of public safety, the prevention of crime 
and disorder, and public nuisance.  In all other respects, the Sub-Committee found that, despite the 
recommendations made by other parties, the licensing objectives had been satisfied and the 
conditions imposed on the licence would ensure that the licence would continue to meet those 
objectives.  

All parties were reminded of their right of appeal to the local Magistrates Court within 21 days of the 
decision. 

 
 

348



Page 1 of 3 
(YH. 11.08.17) 

Safety Advisory Group 
10th August 2017 

Tewkesbury Borough Council (CR1) 
 
 
Present: 
PT: Peter Tonge (chair)  Head of Community Services, TBC    
DMc: Dave Mc Farlane  Gloucestershire Constabulary   
EMc: Emma McMillan   Gloucestershire Constabulary 
CM: Claire Morgan   Gloucestershire Constabulary 
YH: Yvonne Hope    Interim EH Manager, TBC 
AC: Andy Cook   Easy Licensing (representing Witcombe Cider Festival) 
BN: Bhavdip Nakum   Licensing, TBC   
 
Item Discussion Action 
Introductions 

 
as given above  

 Notes of discussion/issues  

PT Asked for update on issues discussed at site visit: 
AC: 

 second exit (to car park) is for exit only and is radio linked to main gate. Anyone leaving this way will have to 
go down to main entrance for readmission 

 Toilets will be moved to other side of main gate to assist on pedestrian and vehicle separation 
 Revised plan to be submitted 
 Pedestrians and buses will be separated at the main gate with posts and tape 
 Management office is behind the bag search area and will be clearly marked on the plan 
 Power company visited site on Tuesday and require a 3m sterile zone from the power cables. WCF will 

operate a 6m sterile zone 
 Movements and operation of plant during set up and demolition will be via goal post system – to be included 

in the risk assessments 
 Ambulance route to first aid tent preferred will be via the left perimeter as you enter the site. There is also a 

main vehicle route towards the marquee and stage. Both routes marked with posts and tape  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 22

349



Page 2 of 3 
(YH. 11.08.17) 

CM If ambulance arrives with blue lights – how will be directed 
 
AC: always staff at entrance to direct emergency vehicles.  All staff are radio linked  

 

 

BN  First aid provision? 
 
AC: 2 trained medics in first aid tent throughout the event. 
  

 

PT Acoustic music after 11pm – what does this mean 
 
AC:  Dewi is chasing company doing noise management plan. Outdoor music stops at 11pm with non amplified 
music within the beer tent which they consider is technically indoors – similar to the smoking legislation. 
 
YH: The conditions of the licence are that music must not be audible in the nearest neighbouring properties (with 
windows open) after 11pm. The noise management plan will address this requirement and monitoring at the 
specified locations will evidence compliance.   
 

 

PT Other updates required: 
 
Safeguarding lacks detail e.g key personnel are not names 
 
Fire notification – shouting fire tends to cause panic – suggest coded messaging in the first instance followed by 
evacuation if necessary. 

 

 

DMcF Police have not had copy of licence – BN to action 
 
Will all police recommendations be incorporated including the revisions from road safety? 
AC: Dewi is on the case and amending  
 
Constabulary remain of the opinion that this event is in a bad location.  DMcF to confirm in writing. 
 
 
 
 

 

350



Page 3 of 3 
(YH. 11.08.17) 

PT  Meeting closure:  
 

 Final plan with all information (including ticket sales numbers) to be submitted by Friday 18th August.   
 PT will get letter to organisers w/c 21st 

 

 

 

351



Appendix 23

352



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 24 
 

Statement of Darren Simms

353



Page 1 of 7 
 

To the Licensing Committee 

I, Darren Simms, am the owner of Sterling Security (formerly Simms Security). 

I have 28 years’ experience in security work and hold an SIA Licence.  I have operated my own 
security company for over 14 years. 

For the last 3 years I have arranged the security for all aspects of the annual Witcombe Cider 
Festival on behalf of the festival organiser Joe Pointon.   

I am pleased that I have been able to arrange security for the festival. I believe our security 
provision has been a key factor in enabling this festival to operate in a safe and well-controlled 
manner, with an exceptionally low number of  minor incidents. This is a huge accomplishment for 
a music festival which is enjoyed by thousands of people.   

I already have an extensive event resume which includes Elton John and Katherine Jenkins 
concerts.  These were secured by my company and I have personally managed various teams 
across Europe.   

The experience I have gained over the past few years with this festival has enabled Joe Pointon 
and me to build in small improvements each year, so that it runs even more smoothly and safely 
each year.  I wish to point out that the festival has increased in size and duration each year, but 
the level of incidents and crimes has remained exceptionally low, and far below the level of 
incidents to be found in many Bars and Nightclubs.  This is an accomplishment of which I am 
proud. 

The festival is extremely popular with the local communities, including children and teenagers, 
which it would not be if it was a threatening atmosphere or a harmful or disorderly event. 

The provision of security for the event is actually a complex and large-scale operation, because it 
involves a wide range of functions: 

• Maintaining perimeter security, to prevent unauthorised entry or ‘gatecrashing’. 
• Controlling all entrances and exits, including the use of clickers to monitor numbers. 
• Crowd management. 
• Screening individuals at point of entry, so that drunks and known troublemakers are 

refused entry. 
• Carrying out physical searches of those entering the event, to ensure they are not in 

possession of weapons, drugs, glass or alcohol etc. 
• High-visibility patrolling inside the festival site, so as to make customers aware of the 

presence of staff. 
• Monitoring activity that is taking place inside and outside the festival so as to intervene 

promptly if any undesirable activity takes place.   
• Ejecting anyone who persists with unacceptable behaviour. 
• Maintaining vigilance for Under-age drinking. 
• Assisting with general requests for help, such as first-aid needs etc. 

354



Page 2 of 7 
 

• General observations for anyone committing criminal damage or lighting fires etc. 
• Stewarding and monitoring the car-park. 
• Static guarding of neighbouring sites.  
• Providing security to the management team so that large quantities of cash are secure 

and not vulnerable to robbery or theft. 
• Maintaining a presence in the Bars at all times and offering support for bar staff if they 

get troublesome customers or need to refuse drinks due to drunkenness or under-age 
issues. 

• Assisting in identifying anyone who has consumed too much alcohol and escorting them 
off the site if necessary. 

• Providing a greater presence in the Bar at closing- time, so that customers do not give 
bar staff a hard time when they close the bar. 

• Assisting in the safe dispersal of festival-goers at the conclusion of the event.  
• Accompanying passengers on buses that take patrons home, so as to maintain orderly 

conduct and protect the drivers. 
• Support for any Emergency Services that are required to attend. 
• Protection of Musicians and the main stage when performing. 
• A range of other occasional duties such as incidents involving lost children, lost and 

found property, etc. 
• Overnight security and the protection of equipment on site. 

An event of this scale requires a great deal of planning and preparation, which takes place long 
before the event.  I have a number of meetings with Joe Pointon each year to discuss the security 
operation in advance, and I assume responsibility for all aspects of security during the event.  

I also have meetings with Joe after each event, in order to review in detail how things went, 
discuss any issues and consider improvements for the following year.  I also attend the feedback 
meeting with interested parties. 

One of the first tasks I have prior to the festival is to arrange a large number of door supervisors 
(male and female) to work at the event.  Preparation for this starts months in advance.  
Thankfully, my 28 years’ experience has provided me with strong connections within the security 
industry and I have a very good working relationship with a number of other security companies 
in the region.  We always work in support of each other for major events.  

I also send out invitations to a large number of individual doorstaff I have got to know over the 
years.  In particular I seek out staff that have hands-on experience at major public events.  Many 
doorstaff enjoy working at this festival, because it has such a great atmosphere and there is so 
little trouble. I have people queuing up to work this event. 

All door supervisors are vetted for this role, which includes checking they hold valid SIA licences 
and checking other forms of identification. Under no circumstances will I allow people to carry 
out security work on my behalf if they are not licenced.  Not only is it illegal, but it would damage 
our reputation and put me and my company at risk of litigation if anything went wrong. 

355



Page 3 of 7 
 

I always arrange more doorstaff than the number I actually require, to allow for any drop outs, 
plus Joe has always stated that he would rather have too many guards than too little, which is 
always a great help to me when planning for this event.  

One of the companies that I work closely with on this particular event is Assure Security Ltd.  This 
is also a professional Security Company which has SIA Approved Contractor Status and has its 
head office in Stourbridge.  It is operated by Ash Munir who is a close friend of mine. Like me 
Ash has a great deal of experience in the industry and is very reliable.  He has supplied a group of 
his doorstaff to me for the Witcombe Cider Festival for the previous 3 years.  He has also acted as 
my right-hand man and deputy, and I have been able to divide up the responsibilities from the 
above list with him, knowing that he will do a good job.  This arrangement has worked extremely 
well in past years. 

When the festival commenced last year, I was confident that I had arranged more than enough 
doorstaff.  I had a good number scheduled to work in the mornings (most of whom would stay 
the whole day), and I had more doorstaff arranged for the evenings, when risks increase and 
demand for doorstaff services is higher.  I had Ash’s support arranged, and everything seemed to 
be covered on the security side of things, to the extent that I had even accepted an invitation to 
attend a close friend’s wedding on the Saturday morning. 

However, I received an unexpected setback last year, for which I could not have planned.  Ash 
rang me on the morning of Friday 25th August (the first day of the festival) to inform me that his 
father had died unexpectedly during the night.  Ash was in a state of grief and shock. 
He explained that he was unable to attend. Understandably, Ash had to cancel all his plans for 
the weekend and support his family.  Ash had also arranged to bring with him 10 of his doorstaff. 
The arrangements to pick up and transport his staff (who do not live locally) fell apart at the last 
moment, and this unforeseen event left me with fewer doorstaff than I had planned. 

Due to Ash dropping out, along with his staff, I had 22 doorstaff (during the daytime and early 
evening).  Had Ash not dropped out we would have had 33.  However, in addition to the 
doorstaff who were present, I also provided 23 stewards, most of whom have worked at the 
festival previously and many of whom are ex-doorstaff.  So with 45 staff in total, I actually still had 
a good contingent to carry out the above functions, especially as not all the functions legally 
require a registered door supervisor.  I knew it would be impossible to arrange replacement 
doorstaff at such short notice, but I was confident that we could cope with daytime demand with 
the numbers of doorstaff and stewards we had.  In fact we did manage, without any significant 
problems. Whilst our doorstaff numbers were slightly lower than we had planned during the 
daytime, thankfully, we had additional staff working in the evening.  

As Ash had dropped out, I arranged for my son Bradley to deputise for me on Saturday morning.  
Bradley is an experienced and registered door supervisor and is employed full-time for my 
company as a director.  I knew that I could rely on him to carry out a supervisory role until my 
arrival, and I would be able to relieve him well before the peak demands of the day (which are 
during the evening between 9pm and midnight/1 am). 

356



Page 4 of 7 
 

I understand that the police are, again, objecting to Joe Pointon’s latest licensing application. 
I have not seen the latest police objection, but I assume it is similar in nature to the Review 
application made by Mr McFarlane on behalf of the police last year, which I have seen.  I have to 
say that there were a number of inaccuracies.  

Firstly, he states that the SIA Officer, Charlotte Haslam, attended on Sunday 27th September.  That 
is incorrect.  I assume Mr McFarlane meant Sunday 27th August, however that is still incorrect, as 
it was actually Saturday 26th August when she visited, and I met up and spoke with her at the 
time. 

Secondly, he alleged that one of the doorstaff (John Mendy) was not badged.  That is incorrect.  
I can confirm that he does hold a current SIA licence (Badge number 0130 1105 8087 5957 valid 
until 21.08.18 of which I can submit a copy).   I have double-checked his status by carrying out a 
search on the SIA database.  He was not wearing his correct badge on the day, but we knew that 
he was the holder of a valid licence.  

Thirdly, Mr McFarlane’s overall numbers are higher than our figures. I think this might be because 
he has not taken account of those attendees that left by the rear exit, some of whom re-entered.  

Prior to the festival, Joe had made me aware that the maximum capacity on the licence was 2,750 
(2,250 patrons, plus up to 500 staff). On top of this, an unlimited number of children were 
allowed, so long as they came in with parents. 

My task was to count everyone in and out of the festival, so that, should there be any type of 
emergency, we would know the total number of people on site.  Joe was tracking separately the 
numbers of adult customers through the use of an electronic scanner at the reception point, as 
tickets were all scanned in. 

I wish to point out that, at all-day festivals, people are coming and going from the site all the 
time, which makes for a constantly-changing overall figure.  Customers and staff pop out for an 
assortment of reasons, which they often tell my staff in the hope that it will facilitate their re-
entry on their return.  Many customers nipped down to the garage at the nearby Cross Hands 
roundabout to get cash out of the cashpoint machine, or to buy cigarettes, sweets, chewing gum, 
snacks, or drinks (the latter being cheaper than the festival prices).  Others went home for meals, 
instead of purchasing meals on site.  Many parents took their children home, especially when the 
children’s activities finished around 5pm, then returned without the children.  In addition to 
customers popping in and out constantly, some staff were also coming and going, for a variety of 
other reasons.  

In addition, throughout each day, several hundred people went out of the rear exit which led to 
the car-park.  It also led to a public footpath which locals use to walk down to the Cross-Hands 
roundabout. This exit was permanently manned by my staff and they had been instructed to let 
people out, but not to let anyone in.  People who wished to return had to come back through the 
main entrance again, where my staff would carry out another stringent search and their wristband 
would be re-checked. Numbers leaving from the rear exit were relayed to the main entrance by 
radio.  

357



Page 5 of 7 
 

Bradley and I had a roving managerial role, so we were checking in with the staff at the exits 
regularly to check that everything was working well.   

The security operation went extremely well again last year, especially considering the strain we 
had been put under due to our unfortunate setback.  The event had a constant queue from 
opening straight through to about 8.30pm every day, which, I believe was down to our extra 
vigilant checks being carried out at the entrance.  

There were no emergencies, no major incidents, and we maintained good order throughout.  
There were just a few incidents, which were all dealt with promptly and positively.  I submit the 
Incident Records for the Committee’s attention.  The Committee will note the low number and 
nature of the incidents. These Incident Reports were supplied to PC Matt Hammond after the 
festival. 

The number of customers expected can be gauged fairly accurately before the festival by the 
number of tickets sold.  Joe lets me know these figures and I then factor in additional staff.   

I would like to point out that, in addition to my security staff, there was also a constant police 
presence during the evenings last year.  Two officers arrived at about 6pm and walked around on 
the festival site until closing-time. This is something we have not had in the past, but it was 
welcome, as their presence was also likely to deter problems. 

The police officers actually spent most of their time walking around or just standing watching, as 
there was little going on that needed their attention.  Even at the peak time, immediately after 
the entertainment stopped at 11pm, they were not actually required to deal with anything major, 
as the dispersal was calm and orderly.   

However, I was disappointed with the police officers’ response when we had a member of the 
Barstaff being very aggressive towards security staff after he had been ejected for drinking on 
duty.  They refused to assist when asked, even though they had a legal responsibility to do so.  
They said they were there to observe and not to police the event.  It became apparent that they 
were there simply to gather evidence to use against the festival and not to support it. 

I am aware that Joe has applied this year for a licence for a new site at Brockworth Road.  He has 
asked that I continue to provide the security, so I have had several early discussions with him.  
I have visited the new site, carried out a survey, have discussed layout, and have seen the Plan.  
This site is considerably better than the previous one, making it slightly easier to manage from a 
security perspective.  For example, the previous site required a high number of security staff lined 
up along the residential street of Painswick Road at closing-time in order to reassure local 
residents and encourage pedestrians to stay on the pavement.  It also had sterile areas between 
the festival activities and the neighbours’ gardens which had to be constantly monitored. It also 
had a shared entrance for pedestrians and the Buses, and was on an ‘A’ Road. 

I am aware that Joe is seeking a maximum capacity of 9,999 on the new licence; however this 
does not cause me any concern.    I am arranging for 150 door supervisors to be available, which 
would allow the maximum number of customers on the site.  Many of these door supervisors are 

358



Page 6 of 7 
 

already booked. If numbers at the festival are lower, some doorstaff will be stood down, and they 
are aware of this.  My management structure will be upgraded to take account of the additional 
staff, and supervisors will be allocated separate areas of responsibility. 

We will again carry out rigorous searching of all attendees in search areas that are covered by 
CCTV cameras.  This will provide good quality footage of all persons entering.  I am also happy to 
incorporate the suggestion from the police at the recent SAG meeting that some of my door 
supervisors wear body-worn cameras.  I own several sets and will issue them to staff working in 
areas where CCTV footage may prove to be most valuable. 

In addition, I will have one or two vehicles carrying out mobile patrols up and down Brockworth 
Road and Court Road, plus a ‘sniffer’ dog to operate in the searching area.  (This dog is being 
provided by Ash Munir and is trained to indicate to its handler when illegal drugs are smelt.  Its 
presence will also tend to deter drugs being brought in.)  

Door Supervisors will be stationed on raised viewing platforms alongside the Main Stage for the 
exclusive use of door supervisors, so that crowd activity can be closely monitored.  Any person 
seen throwing any objects in the crowd will be escorted off the site immediately and will 
be banned from attending future festivals.  

I am happy to incorporate recommendations from the police regarding their preferred way of us 
dealing with Drugs and Weapons should they be found or seized.  For example we would be 
happy to incorporate Amnesty boxes, in which case we would also put in place robust measures 
to protect them before handing them to the police.  Alternatively, we will detain anyone found 
with drugs if the police wish to attend and arrest them. 

Security staff and stewards working at the edge of the site, alongside the road, will be provided 
with high-visibility sleeved jackets so they can be easily seen in the dark.  This will help drivers 
identify the festival site as they approach along Brockworth Road, although the area will also be 
well-lit by floodlights. 

I am confident that I can provide an effective security operation again this year (and in future 
years) and that the festival will continue to be safe, well-managed, and tightly-controlled event 
and that crime and disorder will remain at very low levels. 

Witcombe Festival is becoming a very popular event in Gloucestershire and I am very proud to be 
involved in it.  I have noticed a huge increase in attendees since the very first one we were 
involved in, and it is pleasing to see so many people having such a great time.  

With the success of Witcombe 2017 we have already made plans to restructure the security 
facilities at the festival to include a new purpose-built security HQ with a permanent crisis 
management officer on site amongst many other changes. 

I, along with many members of our team, share a passion for this event as it is based in our home 
town and is supported by many of our friends, family and associates.  I feel that this personal 
touch, coupled with my knowledge of Gloucestershire gained from working as a door supervisor 

359



Page 7 of 7 
 

in the area for over 20 years plays a major part in keeping the crime and disorder down to a 
minimum. 

I am looking forward to Witcombe 2018, and always welcome any support or recommendations 
from our local constabulary. 

Darren Simms 

23 May 2018 

360



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 25 
 

Statement of Ash Munir 
  

361



Page 1 of 2 
 

To the Licensing Committee 

My name is Ash Munir and I have over 25 years experience within the Security Industry.  

I am also the owner of Assure Security Limited which is based in the West 
Midlands. www.assuresecurityltd.co.uk   We hold ACS (Approved Contractor Status) with the SIA and 
specialise in the following security services: 

• Key Holding 
• Mobile Response 
• Door Supervision 
• Static Guarding 
• Security Dogs 
• Drugs Dogs 
• CCTV sytem monitoring 
• Intruder Alarms 
• Access Control. 

Many of my staff have considerable experience within the security industry.  We provide door 
supervisors to several festivals in the U.K. 

I am also a close friend of Darren Simms who owns Sterling Security, which is based in Gloucester.  
I have known Darren for many years and we sometimes work together on large events, pooling our 
resources. This arrangement works extremely well and is commonplace within the security industry 
so that peak demands can be met. 

One such ‘shared’ event that I have been involved in, for three years, is the Witcombe Cider Festival 
at Brockworth, which takes place over the August Bank Holiday weekend.  I act as Darren’s deputy 
and also provide him with a team of my door supervisors to assist at the event.  I attended the 
festival in 2015, and then again in 2016, transporting a number of my staff to the event on each 
occasion.   

I can say that the event is extremely well-organised and safe.  It is family-oriented and has a relaxed 
atmosphere and is not at all threatening.  The festival also finishes at a relatively early hour. The 
level of incidents at the festival is exceptionally low, and my door supervisors have rarely had to 
intervene in incidents of disorder or misbehaviour as it is a good-natured event and their presence in 
high-visibility patrols is usually sufficient to deter problems.  My staff are keen to work it because 
they enjoy it and it has now become a well anticipated finale to our festival season.  

Last year (2017), I had made arrangements to support Darren Simms at the festival and had 
arranged to take along around 15 of my staff. These arrangements had, as usual, been made well in 
advance. 

Unfortunately, my father died unexpectedly during the night of Thursday 24th August, as a result of 
which my family and I were all distraught and in complete shock.  Naturally, I remained at home to 
comfort and support my mother and family and to make various arrangements in relation to the 
death.   

362

http://www.assuresecurityltd.co.uk/


Page 2 of 2 
 

My memory of the precise details on that day is hazy, due to shock; however, at some point in the 
morning I remembered that I was supposed to be attending the Witcombe Cider Festival.  I had also 
arranged to pick my staff up at various places in a minibus.  I rang Darren, and told him that it was all 
out of the question and apologised for dropping out.  He said he would manage without me and told 
me not to worry. 

At a later date, I asked Darren how things went and he told me that it all went extremely well, which 
I was pleased to hear as although I wasn’t there in person I still have a vested interest in its smooth 
running.  

This year, Darren mentioned to me in January that he would like me to support him again with the 
Witcombe Cider Festival in August and asked me to bring a larger team of door supervisors. He 
mentioned that the event would be considerably bigger this year if the application for the new site 
went as planned. 

I have provisionally factored this event into my business and staff planning and have set aside a 
higher number of staff to attend with me. 

As part of my business, I have a number of licensed dogs (for various purposes) all of which are 
trained on accredited courses alongside police dogs and have Accreditation Certificates.  I also have 
several qualified dog handlers, and am a qualified General Purpose dog handler myself.   

Darren has asked me to provide a Drugs ‘sniffer’ dog that can be walked along the queue of people 
entering the festival in order to deter drugs being brought in and to identify those individuals who 
have the scent of illegal drugs on them.  These individuals and their possessions will be meticulously 
searched by door supervisors prior to entry.  When not being used for searching the queue, the dog 
will be walked around the site seeking any drugs that may have been hidden or dropped.   

I have met Joe Pointon on the times I have attended his previous festivals and it is clear that he is 
passionate about making the festival as safe as it can possibly be.  Darren has previously supplied 
over and above the number of doorstaff actually required on the licence, and this allows my staff 
and his to take breaks etc. 

I have no hesitation in supporting the event and providing my door supervisors, and will happily do 
so in future years.  I am also happy to work alongside other security companies that Darren may 
involve. 

 

Ash Munir 

(Ash Munir)  

23/5/18 

 

 

363



 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 26 
 

Statement of Joe Pointon  

364



Page 1 of 7 
 

To the Licensing Committee 

I am the Main Organiser for the Witcombe Cider Festival, which has been running very 
successfully over the August Bank Holiday weekend for the past 6 years, and I am 
responding to police opposition regarding a Premises Licence for a new site. 

Mr David McFarlane, acting on behalf of the Constabulary, has repeatedly made known his 
opposition to the festival, and has submitted objections to each of my licensing applications 
over the years.  His opposition was particularly blatant during last year’s application for an 
extended licence, when he arranged for PCSO’s to canvass residents on the Abbotswood 
housing estate near the festival site in order to encourage objections.  This action stirred 
things up among the local community and encouraged negativity towards the festival, which 
was unhelpful to say the least.  

Last year, Mr McFarlane arranged for two police officers to be in attendance at the festival.  
However, they were not actually there to assist.  They were simply there to observe in the 
hope of gathering evidence to use against me.  This became evident when an incident took 
place involving an aggressive individual and the officers refused to assist security officers in 
dealing with it.  (My Head of Security, Mr Darren Simms, comments further on this point in 
his statement.) 

Following the 2017 festival, and despite the fact that it had an extremely low level of crime 
and disorder (which should be the police’s main concern), Mr McFarlane requested copies of 
my CCTV footage from the event under the pretext of investigating crimes and used it to try 
and prove that I had breached my licence by allowing more people into the festival than the 
permitted capacity.  He then lodged an application for a Review seeking revocation of the 
Licence. 

I was dismayed and very disappointed by all these actions.  This was his second such Review 
application in just 3 years and his actions are entirely disproportionate to the level of crime 
and disorder associated with the event. 

This continual opposition to the festival is, in my view, inappropriate given the fact that it was 
licensed by a Council Committee after a thorough Hearing, is well-managed, tightly-
controlled, takes place just one-weekend-per-year, the Main Stage finishes before midnight, 
and there are so few incidents and crimes connected with it.   

The festival has a fun atmosphere and brings a great deal of pleasure to thousands of people 
that attend and it also provides an economic boost and employment to a number of local 
traders, the local community and hundreds of staff who are involved. 

The preparation that goes into running such an event is enormous and extends over the 
whole year.  I would also like to point out that I also participated unreservedly in the multi-
agency SAG (Safety Advisory Group) meetings in the run up to the festival last year and took 
on board all the suggestions and recommendations made to me.  However, I have to say 
that it is extremely difficult to work in cooperation with the police when they are actually 
intent on stopping the event, are constantly fault-finding, encouraging negativity with locals 
(who are my potential customers), oppose all applications and misuse evidential material 
provided in good faith. 

365



Page 2 of 7 
 

I am happy to concede that the previous site had limitations and we had probably reached 
the capacity for that site.  The Committee may recall that, at the last Hearing (and prior to 
that), the police objected to the festival being accessed from an ‘A’ road and also its close 
proximity to residents.   

I have been searching for a better site for several years. Thankfully, I have been able to 
identify and secure the use of a new site which is considerably better and is not on an ‘A’ 
Road or close to residents.  In my view the new site is an ideal site for a festival, and sites 
such as this are very hard to find.  

I had intended to oppose the Review in October last year , as it contained a large number of 
errors, however, because I had identified a better site, I decided to surrender the previous 
licence and concentrate my efforts on the new site rather than contest the Review, so the 
Review did not proceed and was discontinued.  

Mr McFarlane has indicated that he will again object to my current application.  It will, no 
doubt, be based largely on the Review material previously raised.  Unfortunately, it is very 
misleading and contains numerous errors.  It also resurrects similar objections to those made 
in the previous hearings, which were taken fully into account by the Committees when 
granting the previous licences. 
 
The numbers quoted by Mr McFarlane in his Review application are not the numbers of 
people actually on the site at any one time, as suggested.  They are based only on the total 
numbers coming in and out of the main entrance.  These figures fail to take any account of 
people who exited the site by the rear exit.   

More importantly, they totally fail to take account of children and young people (under 18’s) 
who were admitted free if accompanied by an adult and who did not count as ‘patrons’.  
The number of children was not limited on the licence.  The Committee specified ‘patrons’ 
(i.e. paying adults) in the Decision Notice and referred to an ‘unknown number of children’ 
who would be in addition. 

The entry arrangements last year were upgraded from previous years in that a search tent 
was erected near the main entrance to the field.  This tent incorporated search stations 
(along with several doorstaff), and a Reception desk which checked tickets, fitted wristbands, 
dispensed reusable plastic beakers and handed out leaflets showing the stage programme 
and layout of the site.  Last year, for the first time, I also incorporated CCTV cameras at the 
main entrance.   

I had arranged a number of methods to keep a track on numbers of patrons (adult 
customers) at the festival.  Firstly, I knew exactly how many tickets had been sold in advance.  
In fact, I had stopped selling tickets a week in advance because the event was a ‘sell out’.   

In addition to knowing how many tickets had been sold, I had installed electronic scanning at 
the Reception desk.  Customers had to show their ticket to Reception staff on entry, and the 
tickets were electronically scanned onto a database.  This tracked exactly how many adult 
customers had come through the gate, so the limits were not exceeded.   

366



Page 3 of 7 
 

The customers then had a wristband fitted by Reception staff before they were allowed in.  
Under 18’s were fitted with wristbands of a different colour, and I knew how many 
wristbands were being issued for adults and children.   

I visited the Reception desk repeatedly throughout the festival, liaising with staff regarding 
all issues and checking numbers, and I am satisfied that my staff did not allow in more 
patrons than the licence permitted.  

Responsibility for monitoring and controlling the overall numbers on the site - for the 
purposes of Health & Safety and Fire Risks - was allocated to my Head of Security Mr Darren 
Simms.  The main entrance tent had a dedicated doorman in possession of clickers to record 
the total number of people entering and the other to record the people leaving.   

However, there was also a rear exit from the festival site in the far corner of the field, which 
led to the car-park and a public footpath.  Significant numbers of people used this rear exit, 
especially if they wanted to return to their vehicle or use the public footpath running down 
the rear of the festival field.   

The rear exit was permanently staffed by a door supervisor to monitor numbers leaving and 
turn away anyone seeking entry.  It was not used as an entry point for patrons because all 
the search facilities and ticketing were situated at the Main Entrance.  Everyone who left by 
this rear exit was told that, if they wanted to get back in, they would have to re-enter by the 
Main Entrance, where they would again be searched and their wristband checked.  When 
customers left via this exit, the door supervisor radioed the numbers through to staff at the 
Main Entrance so that an accurate count could be kept of overall numbers of people on the 
site.   

The figures put forward by Mr McFarlane include all the children and teenagers who were 
admitted with their parents, for which there was no limit specified.  They also include 
customers that left by the rear exit and returned later. 

In the review material Mr McFarlane states that Sgt Claire Morgan spoke to the Security 
Manager at some point regarding the numbers.  I am not sure who Sgt Morgan spoke to, 
but Mr Simms has assured me that no-one spoke to him to discuss numbers at any point. 

It is normal practice for any police officer, fire officer or council officer who is carrying out a 
licensed premises visit to speak to the Licence Holder, especially if they have concerns about 
the manner in which premises are being run.   

I was on site the whole time and my mobile number had been provided in advance to all the 
Responsible Authorities, along with the location of the management office, yet at no point 
did anyone from the police speak to me regarding their concerns of numbers being too high, 
or on any other issue.  Had they done so, I would have called Mr Simms and gone through 
with the police the figures for overall numbers on the site.  I would also have shown them 
the scanning system and provided figures for patrons from the reception point. 

I wish to point out that Mr Peter Tong and Mr Alastair Low (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
both carried out separate licensing visits to the festival and had no difficulty getting hold of 
me. The SIA Officer, Charlotte Haslam also visited and met up with my Head of Security with 
no difficulty.   

367



Page 4 of 7 
 

The police made no effort to speak to me about anything during the whole weekend. 
This was despite two police officers wandering around the festival each evening until the 
festival ended.  At the end of the evening I thanked them for patrolling around, and neither 
of them raised any concerns with me at that point.   

Furthermore, after the festival, I had contact with PC Matt Hammond who had been 
allocated the task of collating any incidents from the festival. He complimented me 
regarding the fact that the festival had a low number of incidents.  He stated to me that 
there had been far less incidents at the festival than they have on any weekend in the town 
centres. 

Regarding the wristbands, again the material from Mr McFarlane is wrong and misleading.  
At no point did we run out of patron wristbands as stated.   We did run out of children’s 
wristbands, because numbers of children attending last year was much greater than  I 
anticipated.  We had ordered 1,000 children’s wristbands for the weekend and we ran out 
during Sunday morning.  However, this was something we welcomed.  The festival is 
designed to be a family event.  Running out of children’s wristbands was a minor hiccup 
because we simply improvised by making use of the spare Friday night yellow wristbands, 
which did not cause any problem as it allowed us to continue to identify those under 18 
years of age. Staff at the Bar were instructed accordingly.  

The comment regarding running out of water and beer is also misleading.  Some of our 
drinks suppliers operate on a ‘sale or return’ basis, which allows us to have larger stocks of 
certain brands.  Other suppliers will not accept returns, so we have to try and estimate in 
advance the quantity required so that we do not have large quantities left over.  The quantity 
consumed is also determined partly by the weather, and the Bank Holiday weekend last year 
was very hot.  We always had a limited stock of beer anyway, because the main focus of the 
festival is cider.  We ran out of some brands of cider, but did not run out completely.  In any 
event, even though it is untrue, it is surprising to hear the Constabulary complaining that we 
were not in a position to sell more alcoholic drinks!  As far as water is concerned, we never 
ran out and, in fact, had a permanent supply of piped drinking water in the field. 

As far as doorstaff numbers are concerned, Mr Simms comments on this in his statement.  
Suffice to say that Mr McFarlane’s doorstaff calculations are also wrong, as they are based on 
incorrect numbers of ‘patrons’. 

In relation to the incident reports, these were supplied (on 30th October) to PC Matt 
Hammond who requested them.  There was unfortunately a slight delay in supplying these 
reports.  I can only apologise for the delay and ensure it is not repeated in the future.  I will 
ensure that practices around Incident Reports are tightened up. 

I now wish to respond to the allegation by Mr McFarlane of drugs being freely available and 
being sold on site.  This is a very grave allegation, on an issue that I take extremely seriously.   

We have a ‘zero-tolerance’ policy in place regarding illegal drugs, and I have gone to great 
lengths to make sure that drugs are discouraged at the festival.  Police advised me that I 
should carry out searches on around 1 in 5 people.  However, I made the decision that 
rigorous searches should be carried out of everyone entering the festival last year, rather 
than random searches (as had been implemented in previous years).  These searches are, in 

368



Page 5 of 7 
 

my view, an important element in contributing to the overall safety of the event, as they 
make it difficult for customers to bring in knives, drugs, glassware and alcohol.  Every person 
entering (males, females and teenagers) were searched meticulously, including emptying 
pockets, checking inside wallets, cigarette packets, handbags and other bags and clothing. 
(Unfortunately, whilst raising safety, that decision created congestion in the entrance tent 
and long queues extending onto the pavement, both of which, with the benefit of hindsight, 
we had not sufficiently allowed for.) 

It is, frankly, outrageous that Mr McFarlane is making these serious accusations about drugs 
based largely on a few Social Media reports.  Such comments are unreliable, especially given 
the fact that he stirred up anti-festival feelings toward the event among local people.   

I wish to remind the Committee that there were police officers wandering around on the site 
for substantial periods of time and, apart from one officer, none refers to drugs in their 
reports!  The only reference made to drugs was by Nigel Davies, who states that he smelt 
cannabis being smoked but was unable to identify the culprit. 

All doorstaff on duty at the event were instructed to be vigilant for any sign of drugs/drug 
dealing and were told to deal positively with this issue if they saw anything or if anyone drew 
their attention to any drug issues.  If the people reporting on social media saw drug-dealing 
taking place, they could easily have informed the police officers present and the suspects 
could have been searched (as police have powers to search, which doorstaff do not have). 

I am very keen to ensure that the festival maintains a good reputation as a family-friendly 
and drug-intolerant environment and I greatly resent this sort of accusation, which casts a 
slur on the festival.   

Furthermore, it is my intention to reinforce the anti-drugs stance even further by 
incorporating a ‘sniffer’ dog this year.  The dog and handler will be able to identify people 
who have the scent of drugs on them while queuing and immediately prior to them being 
searched.  I would also be prepared to provide Amnesty boxes where people could dispose 
of illegal drugs prior to entry, plus a small tent where police officers could carry out strip-
searching of suspects if the police wished to cooperate.  Mr McFarlane was informed of my 
willingness to implement both these measures at the SAG meeting on 14th May this year. 
The presence of a sniffer dog will also be advertised in advance so customers are aware and 
it acts as a deterrent. 

On the subject of social media, the committee would find (if they found time to view it) that 
99% of festival goers had a great time and were very positive about the way the festival was 
run.  Incidents involving drugs were obviously ‘few and far between’ and did not take place 
with my consent.  I had instructed Mr Simms to take very firm action against anyone caught 
with drugs.  I saw no-one taking or dealing drugs whilst I was walking around the festival. 

I now wish to comment on the crime and disorder aspect.   

Given the size and duration of the festival, it is a remarkable achievement that there were 
only a handful of complaints made.  Most of the incidents referred to by Mr McFarlane are 
actually low-level or unfounded.  Unlike other music festivals we had no major incidents.  
There were no stabbings, rapes, sexual assaults, ABH, GBH, deaths, mass disorder, robberies 
or hospitalisation.  Furthermore no children came to harm, there was no evidence of under-

369



Page 6 of 7 
 

age drinking, and there were no Road Accidents, Health & Safety accidents, fires, 
electrocutions or fatalities.   

This record has not come about by chance.  An enormous amount of planning and a great 
deal of effort and expense has gone into making the festival safe each year.  I employ a 
number of companies to undertake various aspects of the festival.  For example I have 
specialists in Event Management, Health & Safety, Electrical specialists, Noise Management, 
Security, Traffic Management, Waste Management, and Transport. 

However, I am mindful that there is always room for improvement, especially now that I have 
found a bigger and better site.  A number of improvements are already planned. 

Use of the buses was so successful last year that we are also planning to bring people in by 
bus this year, which would increase the numbers using the bus to get home and reduce the 
number of customers arriving by car.  This would also help reduce the risk of drink-driving 
and the number of people walking home.  We will be expanding the number of buses to ten 
or so, and promoting it much more to encourage use.  Bus tickets will be pre-sold with the 
festival tickets and they will also be available to buy on the day with 2 drinks-tokens or £4 
cash. This is cheaper than if customers use their own car, as it would cost £10 to park. 

I now wish to respond to the allegation that Noise was “excessive and above the prescribed 
limit.”  The committee will probably be aware that, last year, at the request of the 
Environmental Health Officer Yvonne Hope, an independent Acoustic Engineer was brought 
in to monitor the noise levels and ensure that they remained within the limits prescribed. 
This was a condition placed on the licence (due to the proximity of residents) and it was fully 
implemented.  This was a costly measure but, thankfully, I am now in a position to provide 
the committee with the independent acoustic engineer’s report detailing exactly what took 
place from a noise perspective. This report has already been provided to the EHO (who lead 
on this issue) and they have not criticised it or given any indication of non-compliance.  Nor 
did they join the police in submitting the review application in October, so I refute any 
suggestion that noise levels were excessive or above the limits. 

So far as profane language is concerned, the use of bad language and swear words has 
become an intrinsic part of our society and can be heard on our streets, in our schools and 
on the television every day.  We discourage excessive use of swearing by artists.  However I 
would like to point out that the swearing referred to took place during the evening 
performance, after the 9pm watershed. 

Mr McFarlane alleges that I have a disregard for the conditions on my licence and advice 
given by the Safety Advisory Group.  This is simply not true.  I adhere to all the conditions on 
my licence and implement many more voluntary measures to ensure things run as they 
should.  Furthermore, all of the recommendations made by the SAG were implemented 
where possible, including widening the main entrance, separation of buses and pedestrians 
using railings, moving the toilets to a different location, fire and ambulance route-marking, 
use of trackway, enhancing child safeguarding measures, and revision of other policies and 
procedures.  This allegation by the police is not, as far as I am aware, supported by other 
members of the SAG group (EHO, Licensing, Fire Service, or Highways).   

370



Page 7 of 7 
 

The police actions and allegations have caused me a great deal of stress and anxiety over the 
years, as well as significant financial costs.  They are completely unjustified and unfounded.  
I would go so far as to say that it is harassment and I ask the Committee to dismiss their 
objection.  

The Witcombe Cider Festival has brought a great deal of pleasure to a very large number of 
people and has helped create a community spirit between the individuals who attend from 
different areas of Gloucestershire.  It has been supported by the local Citizen media group 
and was recently shortlisted for Gloucestershire’s Event of the Year by SoGlos. 

It provides an economic boost to a large number of local and regional businesses that are 
involved in the provision of services such as trackway, fencing, portaloos, floodlighting, 
marquees and catering, along with the fairground operator, doorstaff companies and local 
breweries.  I produce a list of the companies involved. 

It also provides an economic boost and opportunities for the local community, i.e. 
Brockworth, as visitors tend to buy goods in local shops on their way to and from the festival.  
For example, the Toby Carvery saw a massive increase in customers using their restaurant 
during the festival each year and will, no doubt, be disappointed to see it move away. 
Some festival attendees, who come from further afield, also stay in local accommodation 
over the weekend.   

In addition, I am keen to support local musicians by giving them the opportunity to perform 
in front of a large audience alongside well-known bands. 

I am not seeking to establish any camping facility for patrons on this new site.  However, 
there will be an overnight security presence on the site (as previous years) to protect all the 
valuable equipment and there is a possibility that a few staff may choose to remain on the 
site overnight (e.g. in their vehicle) to give additional protection to their own equipment. 

To sum up, the festival is a well-organised, tightly-managed and safe event which is 
extremely popular with the local community.  It takes place over just one-weekend-per-year 
and has not made high demands on police resources.  I am not aware that even one person 
was arrested on site last year. This year, on the new site, the festival promises to be even 
better and safer than previous years. 

I respectfully ask the Committee to take account of the festival’s outstanding record, 
excellent reputation and to grant the licence as in the application.  I am happy for all the 
volunteered measures contained in the current application to be added as conditions.  
Whether added as conditions or not, I undertake to implement them, as I intend to grow the 
festival and build on its reputation. 

 

Joe Pointon 
Mr Joseph Pointon.  

24/05/18 

371



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 27 
 

Email supplying contact details 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

372



Re: WCF 
  
Reply| 
Tue 22/08/2017, 10:24 
McFarlane, David (David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk); 

'Yvonne Hope' (Yvonne.Hope@tewkesbury.gov.uk); 

'AndyCook100@hotmail.co.uk'; 

+2 more 

Hi Dave 

Joe will be using his mobile number as the contact point, 07761 476103 

The noise management plan was sent to the EHO by Dewi a couple of days ago. The 
company being employed is Acoustic Consultants Ltd from Bristol.  They employ a 
number of qualified acoustic specialists, so there is not just one named person.  
I can forward the plan separately if you wish. 
 

Andy 

 

 

 
On 22 Aug 2017 8:48 am, "McFarlane, David" 
<David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk> wrote: 

Good Morning All, 

 Please can you confirm  the contact numbers that will be used during the event? Points 
of contact? Who is the credited person conducting the noise monitoring? 

 Kind Regards 

  

David McFarlane  
Senior Harm Reduction Advisor 

Head of Crime Prevention and Licensing.  
Gloucestershire Constabulary Headquarters 
 No 1 Waterwells, Waterwells Drive, Quedgeley, Gloucester, GL2 2AN 

 (01452) 752173  
 David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk 

373

mailto:David.McFarlane2@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk


 

 

 

Cider Festival 2017 
Debrief and Review of Festival arrangements to 
neighbouring residents 

 
 

Minutes of Meeting held at Witcombe Cricket Club on Monday 27 Sept 2017 at 7.00pm  
 
Present:   

Ros Hamblet Stubbs  (RHS) - Resident 
Tony Oakley  (TO)  - Resident 
Katie Ward (KW)  -  Resident 

Ruth Baldwin (RW)  - Resident 

Tony Gover (TG)  - Resident 
Vince Perez (VP)  -  Resident 
Jim Hunt  (JH)   - Parish Councillor   
Alastair Low (AL)  - TBC Environmental Health Officer 
Andy Cook (AC)  - Licensing Agent on behalf of J Pointon 
Joe Pointon  (JP)  - Festival applicant/ organiser 

Mrs Pointon (EP)  - Joe Pointon’s mother 
Darren Simms (DS)  - Simms Security (Festival security) 
  

 
Apologies:   Tony Roberts  (TR)  - Resident 
 
 

Distribution: Those present, Apologies 
 
Minutes taken by V Perez 

    
  ACTION 

 

1.0 Apologies – received from Tony Roberts although his comments were issued 
ahead of the meeting (see attached) 
 

 

2.0 Review of Festival measures 
 

 

2.1 Entrance to site – JP stated a number of changes had occurred this year at the 
bequest of TBC Licensing board. The approach to the site entrance had been 

widened to allow the passage of vehicles onto the site, particularly emergency 
vehicles if required. Although not a requirement JP had gone to the trouble of 
including Track Way, at significant cost to himself, which permits the passage 
and traction of vehicles on the thick plastic mats which prevent the bogging 
down and slippage of wheels on mud. A separate passageway for pedestrians 

was also formed to segregate their passage from that of vehicles. 
 

The pedestrian site entrance comprised two large entrance tents with CCTV, 
which is a new addition from the previous year. The tents housed the ‘tap and 
search’ area where wallets, cigarette packets and even under hats was checked 
for the drugs and alcohol. It was noted the search process was certainly robust 
and all credit should be given to Simms Security for its thoroughness. 
 

TO commented that there was more queuing this year which spilled out on the 
pavements outside of the Festival and resulted in an immense number of 
people queuing down the road. This wasn’t helped by Taxis dropping off by the 
entrance rather than the carpark. RHS stated she could not walk along the 
pavement without having to walk onto the road, the pavement should be kept 
clear. JP responded the queuing was an unforeseen event and had resulted 
from a larger number of visitors this year. The Festival has grown significantly 

and is now nationally recognised. There appeared to be a temporary peak in 

visitors which was quickly attended to and resolved. Data and statistics collated 
from digital entry indicated a peak on Saturday between 2pm and 4pm. 
Certainly there were lessons to be learnt which would be catered for during 

 
 

 

Appendix 28

374



 2 

next year’s Festival. DS commented the issue on Saturday was mitigated on 

Sunday by quickening the security process and getting people into the Festival 
and out of the queues. 

 
TO commented perhaps a multi-bay entrance, such as Disney World, could be 
deployed to improve matters. JP stated the Licensing Board requirements to 
introduce significant infrastructure was impractical. 
 
TO asked DS whether he had enough security to deal with the numbers 

involved. DS replied he had approximately 10 security staff over the minimum 
requirements. 
 

2.2 Carpark arrangements – JP advised there had been no use of the overflow 
carpark provision in the adjacent field. There had been approximately 100 cars 
on Saturday and approximately 100 cars on Sunday. There was a car parking 
charge of £5 which had resulted in putting people off using the facility. The 

introduction of a bus service this year had also reduced car numbers. 
 
RHS commented there were no issues this year with car parking. TO stated car 
parking arrangements should remain as they are as they have no effect on the 
local residents. 
 

 

2.3 Perimeter fencing - submitted comments from TR confirmed the black shielding 

is a big improvement which was endorsed by TO. 
 
TO asked about black shielding around the bus pick up point as some of the bus 
drivers had urinated around their vehicles. JP commented that he had provided 
toilet facilities at the entrance/exit of the site and he could not see what else he 
could do to encourage their use by the bus drivers, but certainly his comments 

would be taken note of for next year. 
 
TO commented that the Heras fencing appeared to work well but there were 

still signs of entry through hedges. JP responded the whole of the site had been 
Heras fenced this year which is a significant deterrent for unauthorised entry 
but perhaps a security fencing inspection regime r throughout the day can be 
introduced. 

 

 

2.4 Traffic management – Traffic signs reducing speed to 20mph were welcomed 
this year although JH advised there had been a red car that had speeded along 
the road at break-neck speed from the Cross Hands garage. AC commented 
that the Festival would not condone or be held accountable for irresponsible 
driving and indeed that which broke the law.  
 

JH commented the road signs were positioned on the pavements which 
although highly visible were an obstruction for pedestrians. JP confirmed the 
traffic management set-up was installed by a professional organisation but 
comments would be relayed back for next year. 

 
TO advised the traffic signs by his entrance should be pulled back from the kerb 

line as they did interfere with the visibility line as he exits his driveway. 
 

 

3.0 Review of Festival site controls 
 

 

3.1 Security measures – KW stated there was an incident at the Cross Hands 
roundabout where there was a sudden influx of hundreds of people arrive at the 
roundabout to the extent that a drunk girl stepped out onto the road and was 

knocked over by a car. The incident happened about 12.10am in the morning 
and KW had even recorded the incident on her phone. 
 
KW stated she is not against the holding of the Festival and indeed relished she 
had received free tickets and had thoroughly enjoyed the event, but there 
seemed to be a different dynamic this year with other cars arriving at the Cross 
Hands roundabout during the early hours and which seemed not to be from the 

Festival. There were people sat on the wall of the garage with music playing for 
about 4 hours. KW stated there was no security at the roundabout which she 
was actively seeking as a fight had broken out at about 1.30am. KW was 

 
 

375



 3 

disappointed that there had been no Police covering the dispersal on the 

highways. DS confirmed there had been security present but after his 
assessment at about 12.30am that the crowds had sufficiently cleared the 

security team were called off. The other difficulty is the extent of jurisdiction 
that can be exerted by the security team out of the Festival grounds. Security 
are there to disperse and ‘move on’ the crowds from the Festival and certainly 
their presence can have a deterrent effect but certainly their powers of 
resolving issues on the highway are extremely diminished. AC commented that 
he had driven back to the Festival on Saturday night around midnight and had 

witnessed security on the highway, in their hi-viz vests, but he could not see 
security at the roundabout. 
 
It was commented that this was the worst year for security with no security to 
the frontages of the properties that were previously agreed to be in place. It 
was noted that Saturday was the worst day with no incidents on the Friday or 
Sunday nights. 

 
Taxis continue to use the Cross Hands garage as a pick up point and JP 
confirmed this year Tewkesbury BC had contacted all the taxis firms reaffirming 
the need to avoid turning in the highway outside of the Festival. It was noted 
taxis had not been an issue this year. 
 
KW stated the profile of Festival attendees had not changed but there seemed 

to be a younger contingent that had remained and sat on the wall playing their 
loud music after the event. 
 
JP stated there is a lot of planning that goes into the various aspects of the 
Festival and as improvements and changes take place each year to the Festival 
organisation there is an unknown entity that can arise each year. DS security 

guys do the best they can, considering some of the situations and the 
comments received about security will be taken on board and if more security 
needs to be employed next year that is what will occur. 

 
RHS stated there must be more of a security presence. 
 
TO commented that DS had let JP down. DS stated he had employed 55 

security personnel. 
 
A question was raised whether the Police mind being called to the Festival. AC 
replied JP is not permitted to employ the services of the Police with the only 
exception being the Cheltenham races but the public are at liberty to call the 
Police. 
 

It was confirmed Police were in attendance on both Saturday and Sunday from 
6pm. 
 
JH stated the Parish Council had received a number of emails stating the rife 

use of drugs. VP stated he had attended the 3 days and had not witnessed any 
drug use. 

 
DS stated during 2018 he will employ a drugs dog to help eliminate any drug 
use should there be any. All he wanted was Festival goers to enjoy the event 
and in light of some of the comments received he is prepared to give his phone 
number to any of the local residents for comfort. 
 

3.2 Attendance – JP confirmed the maximum peak number in attendance was 2200. 

 

 

3.3 Toilet facilities – JP confirmed last year there 55 toilets with 3 disabled toilets 
and 3 communal urinals. This year there were 85 toilets with 6 disabled and 6 
communal urinals with a number of toilets also positioned at the exit of the site 
for convenience. JP intends to increase the number of toilets next year to 100 
units. 
 

TO commented despite there being toilets at the exit by where the busses 
parked, the bus drivers continued to urinate to the side of the busses. It was 
ironic the bus company is called John Dix. 

 
 
 
 

376



 4 

 

3.4 Bus service – JP advised this year busses had been arranged to help take 
Festival goers back along various bus routes, which currently had not included 

Stroud. Bus users were charged 1 token which was very reasonably priced 
whilst JP covered the other half of the cost. 
 
There were 2 double decker busses on the Friday, 2 double and 2 single 
deckers on the Saturday and 4 double and 6 single deckers on Sunday. 
 

Certainly the use of buses had relieved the burden on security with dispersal. 
 
JP confirmed the most captive audience is currently Cheltenham and Gloucester 
and buses has picked Festival goers from these areas.  
 

 

3.5 On-site facilities – JP stated a circus top arena had been set up just within the 
entrance of the Festival which conducted circus based activities, such as 

juggling, for children. The circus activities were not advertised in any manner 
and was a costly affair costing several thousand pounds to arrange but proved 
to very popular and will return in 2018, there may even be a bigger top next 
time. 
 
There were 3 fair ground rides. TO asked whether the fairground rides could be 
got rid of. There was also an area for Rugby for Heroes. 

 
The question of bad language was brought up which was prevalent by some of 
the headline acts and whether it is appropriate. JP commented that headline 
acts were on from 10pm, way past the watershed and suggested that swearing 
is part of modern living. There needs to be more parental responsibility if 
children are to be kept away from such language. Certainly JP had experienced 

bad language from young adolescents on normal bus journeys. 
 

 

3.6 Refreshments – VP commented he noticed that the food stalls were all situated 

in one area rather than scattered around the Festival which he thought was an 
improvement. JP advised that this year there had been a lot of restrictions 
imposed by the TBC licencing board and there was insufficient time to arrange 
food traders. People expect good quality food and whilst all food outlets were 

busy they all did run out of food on the Saturday night. 
 

 

4.0 Communications to residents 
 

 

4.1 
 

TO commented that whilst email communication is good to a point, doing a 
paper drop is preferred. 
 

JP commented that social media is an almost immediate communicator of 
information. 
 
It was commented that the licencing conditions required consultation with 

residents and the Parish to allow their points and opinions to be voiced. AC 
stated this very meeting is part of that consultation process. 

 

 

5.0 Site control measures 
 

 

5.1 Security – it was agreed that security had been extensively discussed early in 
the meeting and there were no further points anyone wanted to raise. 
 

 

5.2 Cleanliness – all agreed the clear up operation of litter etc. was ‘brilliant’ as 

always. 
 
JP confirmed the eco plastic cups, which are chargeable at £1 per cup with 
proceeds going to ‘Rugby for Heroes’ had all gone by Saturday. Cups had to 
revert to disposal cups on the Sunday. There will be more of stock in 2018.  
 
Funds raised for ‘Rugby for Heroes’ was £2279.00 which all agreed was 

commendable. 
 

 

377



 5 

5.3 Noise levels – JH commented there had been a number of complaints received 

at Brockworth Parish Council regarding noise. 
 

JP confirmed a team of independent noise monitors had been employed with 
monitoring from agreed positions. Sound engineers controlling the music output 
were under strict instruction not to surpass the permissible levels. The cost for 
the noise monitoring plan was £4k and the report had been sent to TBC without 
any reply to date. 
 

AC commented that previous years’ noise levels were carried out to the letter. 
Having met with TBC environmental officer they had requested for independent 
monitoring by a professional company. 
 
AL confirmed TBC were unable to issue details of the report at the moment but 
it is planned to go to the Council today and a follow up meeting with JP and his 
representative will be required. If the results are not satisfactory, measures will 

need to be deployed during the 2018 Festival. 
 
TO stated fairground rides operated under different rules and he thought JP had 
jumped through hoops using an independent sound specialist. It was noted that 
Bass can be heard through walls. The current limit is 65db which is the basis for 
concerts. 
 

RHL asked whether the sound results would be available publicly, AL confirmed 
they would. RHL stated she had asked for various responses to questions from 
the TBC Licensing Board, including copy of the latest licensing meeting minutes,  
since 20 August but had still not received a response. 
 
JP commented that massive corporations do not have to undergo the rules and 

conditions that are being imposed him and he thought matters were massively 
over the top. 
 

 

6.0 Tewkesbury Borough Licensing Comments 
 

 

6.1 AL advised his position at TBC is an environmental officer which has a different 
stance to that of a licensing officer. 

 
There is a statutory duty to reply to queries raised by the public and these were 
being attended to in due course. Results from the recent sound monitoring, 
complaints and TBC’s position on matters were being compiled and would be 
reported to JP once available. Matters would also cover H&S aspects including 
risk assessments, compliance to licensing conditions, etc. 
 

RHL raised the point that sound monitoring does not take account of internal 
sound levels inside houses. 
 

 

7.0 AOB 

 

 

7.1 VP advised that whilst waiting to be served at the bar he had witnessed the 

‘Challenge 25’ in operation. A young man was asked for his ID and was refused 
service for not having any. 
 

 

 
End of meeting.  

 
Meeting ended at 8.15pm 

 
 
 

 
 

378



From: Anthony Roberts

Sent: 21 September 2017 12:08

To: stoeltclericus@stoeltclericus.plus.com; jimmadeira@blueyonder.co.uk; vinceperez@live.co.uk; 

hamblettstubbs@btinternet.com; alan.taylor1938@btinternet.com; boboruss60@googlemail.com; 

licensing@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk; licensing@tewkesbury.gov.uk; nick.bishop@pgt.co.uk; Joe 

Pointon; dmacey@natstar.ac.uk

Cc: Simms Group; dannypointon9; Andrew Cook; dewi@saylittleshh.co.uk

Subject: Re: Witcombe Cider Festival 2017 Residents Feedback Meeting

Dear Joe,

Thank you for the invitation to the residents' debrief meeting however; unfortunately, I am 

unable to attend due to a longstanding speaking engagement.

Please do not interpret my inability to attend on this occasion as any disinterest in the 

process. I am happy for my views to be represented by others present and I will brief them 

accordingly prior to the meeting.

However, there are a few headline points that I would like to submit to you (and the chair) 

now for inclusion in the minutes.

Antisocial behaviour.

I still witnessed antisocial behaviour on the nights that I was present.

1. A number of males urinated in my front gateway whilst the guard was present on the 

drive. ( I have photographic evidence of this is required at any stage).

2. I witnessed a male urinating on the other side of the road in full view after being 

ejected from my drive by a guard.

3. A male threw the chair I had lent to the guard into the road in the path of oncoming 

vehicles.

4. I had to personally attend to a distressed female who was on her knees in my drive 

worse for drink during a period when the guard had disappeared from the 

drive. This puts me in a very awkward situation.

Noise Levels

I believe that the noise levels from the music on Sunday night varied in intensity and were 

excessively loud at times  more so than in other years. I was not present on Saturday night.

Fairground

I still believe that the fairground is a very intrusive element. The light and noise coming 

from the large spinning rides is very intrusive in my front room.

379



Camping

People were setting up tents on the Council land to the rear of the Shell garage.

General

I am concerned at the alleged incidents on social media of underage drinking, drug taking 

and hostile, nonfamily friendly atmosphere at the Festival.

The fabric covering on the HERAS fencing was a great improvement in terms of privacy.

I hope that these points will be taken in the constructive manner that they are intended and 

will be added to the other comments raised at the meeting.

Regards

Tony

Tony Roberts

From: Joe Pointon <joe@witcombeciderfestival.co.uk>

Sent: 21 September 2017 08:10

To: stoeltclericus@stoeltclericus.plus.com; jimmadeira@blueyonder.co.uk; vinceperez@live.co.uk; 

archeoscan@hotmail.co.uk; hamblettstubbs@btinternet.com; alan.taylor1938@btinternet.com; 

boboruss60@googlemail.com; licensing@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk; 

licensing@tewkesbury.gov.uk; nick.bishop@pgt.co.uk

Cc: Simms Group; dannypointon9; Andrew Cook; dewi@saylittleshh.co.uk; Joe Pointon

Subject: Witcombe Cider Festival 2017 Residents Feedback Meeting

Dear All, Hope you are well.

Witcombe Cider Festival 2017 Residents Feedback Meeting:

Myself and my team invite you to join us at Witcombe Cricket Club (GL3 4SP) on Wednesday 

27/09/2016 at 7pm to hear your feedback about this years festival. If you wish to attend 

please can you let me know so I can arrange enough seating.

Thanks to Vince Perez for agreeing to chair and minute the meeting.

Many thanks

Joe

380



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 29 
 

Statement of Mike Hopkins 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

381



 

To whom it may concern 

 

I am the owner and occupant of Dean Farm, Brockworth Road, Churchdown, GL3 4QZ.  
This farm sits at the eastern end of a 260 metre (285 yard) track which joins Brockworth 
Road opposite some fields owned by another local farmer named Will Speakman.   

One of Mr Speakman’s fields is alongside the motorway and adjacent to Pressmead Farm, 
which is owned by Mr & Mrs Schreuder.   

Earlier this year, I was consulted by Mr Pointon about the possibility of a music festival 
(Witcombe Cider Festival) taking place over the August Bank Holiday weekend on that field. 
I have also seen a Plan showing the proposed layout for the event.  The distance from my 
farm to the intended music stage position is approximately 1,000 metres (over 1/2 mile). 

I understand that music on the main stage would continue throughout the day until around 
11pm. Thereafter there may be low-level music. I also appreciate that the event would be 
attended by several thousand people, and that alcohol would be on sale, but that the event 
would have a high number of security officers to manage and control the event.  

In view of the considerable distance between the festival field and my home, and the fact 
that the event would be held for only one weekend per year, I can say that I have no 
objection to the festival being held there. It would not impact on me to any great extent.  

I realise that the event would increase traffic on Brockworth Road over that weekend, 
but do not anticipate that would cause a significant problem, as car-parking facilities would 
be provided on the field. 

 

Mike Hopkins 

Mike Hopkins    Dated  22nd May 2018 

382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419


	Agenda
	4 Application for a Premises Licence - Witcombe Cider Festival
	Appendix 1 - Application
	Appendix 2 - Public Notice
	Appendix 3 - Original Site Plan
	Appendix 5 - Responsible Authority Reps
	Appendix 6 - Other Persons Reps
	Appendix 7 - Applicants Reps
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10
	Appendix 11
	Appendix 12
	Appendix 13
	Appendix 14
	Appendix 15
	Appendix 16
	Appendix 17
	Appendix 18
	Appendix 20
	STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD
	STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD
	STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD
	STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD
	STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD
	STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD
	STERLING SECURITY SOLUTIONS LTD

	Appendix 21
	Appendix 22
	Appendix 23
	Appendix 24
	Appendix 25
	Appendix 26
	Appendix 27
	Appendix 28
	Appendix 29

	Appendix 8 -Statement Licensing Policy




